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SL AGRITECH CORPORATION 
STERLING PLACE 2302 PASONG TAMO EXTENSION 
MAKATI CITY 1231, PHILIPPINES 
+632 813 7828 
 
SL AGRITECH CORPORATION  (the “Issuer” or the “Company) is offering Short Term Commercial 
Papers (the “STCPs”) in the aggregate principal amount of P1,000,000,000.00  (the “Offer”). This is 
the first issuance of STCPs by the Company.  The STCPs, which may be issued in lump sum or in 
tranches, shall have an interest rate fixed prior to issuance. 
 
The STCPs will be unsecured obligations of the Company and will rank pari passu without any 
preference amongst themselves and at least pari passu with other unsecured and unsubordinated 
obligations of the Company, present and future, other than obligations preferred by law.  The STCPs 
will be effectively subordinated in right of payment to all secured debt of the Company to the extent 
of the value of the assets securing such debt and all debt that is evidenced by a public instrument 
under Article 2244(14) of the Civil Code of the Philippines.  
 
The Company expects the Net Offer proceeds to amount to approximately Php990,388,375.00.  
Such proceeds will be used by the Company for general working capital requirements to finance 
inventory acquisition and refinance existing obligations.  See “Use of Proceeds” on page 27.  The 
Underwriter will receive 0.50% on the aggregate value of the STCPs issued.  Such amount shall be 
inclusive of the underwriting and selling agency fees and shall be deductible from the net proceeds 
of the Offering. 
 

The Company was registered with the SEC on September 11, 2000 with an authorized capital stock 
of Php100,000,000.00 divided into 1,000,000 common shares with a par value of Php100.00.  In 
September 28, 2010, the SEC approved the increase in the Company’s authorized capital stock to 
Php1,000,000,000.00 divided into 1,000,000,000 common shares with a par value of Php1.00 per 
share. In July 9, 2012, the SEC approved the increase in the Company’s authorized capital stock to 
Php2,000,000,000.00 divided into 2,000,000,000 common shares with a par value of Php1.00 per 
share. 
 

The Company is the only Philippine producer of hybrid rice seeds with fully integrated operations.  
The Company operates two business segments: the production of hybrid rice seeds and premium 
rice.  The majority of the Company’s business is currently derived from hybrid rice seeds, after its 
first product, SL-8H, was successfully developed and distributed.  Another objective of the Company 
is to develop premium rice from its hybrid rice seed products.  The Company currently conducts 
research and propagates proprietary hybrid rice seed varieties, and distributes premium rice 
products under the brand names “Doña Maria”, “Cherry Blossom” and “Willy Farms.” 
 
The Company was granted by the BOI non-pioneer status for its hybrid rice production in Nueva 
Ecija in March 2015 and pioneer status for its seeds production in Lupon, Davao Oriental in February 
2009. The Company’s main activities are covered under the Investment Priority Plan of the Board of 
Investments and thereby granted BOI incentives.  The hybrid seed production in Lupon, Davao 
Oriental is registered as a pioneer producer of hybrid rice seed with an annual capacity of 3.2 million 
tons, while the rice processing plant in Talavera, Nueva Ecija is registered as a new producer of 
hybrid rice with an annual capacity of 29,225 metric tons. As a registered company, it is entitled to 
certain benefits including Income Tax Holiday for a period of five (5) years from the date of 
registration with an extension of two (2) years.  The Company further avails of BOI benefits under 
the law as a result of the additions to and expansion of its production facilities. 
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The Company’s Board of Directors (the “Board”) is authorized to declare cash or stock dividends or 
a combination thereof.  A cash dividend declaration requires the approval of the Board and no 
shareholder approval is necessary.  A stock dividend declaration requires the approval of the Board 
and shareholders representing at least two-thirds of the Company’s outstanding capital stock.  
Holders of outstanding shares on a dividend record date for such shares will be entitled to the full 
dividend declared without regard to any subsequent transfer of shares. The Company, intends to 
declare as a policy at least 5% of its prior year’s net income as dividends whether in stock or in cash, 
subject to statutory limitations.  See “Dividend Policy” on page 72. 
 
Unless otherwise stated, all information contained in this Prospectus has been supplied by the 
Company. The  Company, through its Board, having made all reasonable inquiries, accepts full 
responsibility for the information contained in this Prospectus and confirms that this Prospectus 
contains all material information with regard to the Company, its business and operations and the 
STCPs, which as of the date of this Prospectus is material in the context of the Offer; that, to the 
best of its knowledge and belief as of the date hereof, the information contained in this Prospectus 
are true and correct and is not misleading in any material respect; that the opinions and intentions 
expressed herein are honestly held; and, that there are no other facts, the omission of which makes 
this Prospectus, as a whole or in part, misleading in any material respect.  The delivery of this 
Prospectus shall not, under any circumstances, create any implication that the information contained 
herein is correct as of any time subsequent to the date hereof. 
 
Multinational Investment Bancorporation, the Sole Issue Manager, Arranger and Underwriter, 
warrants that it has, to the best of its ability, exercised the level of due diligence required under 
existing regulations in ascertaining that all material information contained in this Prospectus are true 
and correct, and that to the best of its knowledge no material information was omitted, which was 
necessary in order to make the statements contained in this Prospectus not misleading.  Except for 
its failure to exercise the required due diligence, the sole Issue Manager, Lead Arranger and 
Underwriter assumes no responsibility for any breach of the representations of the Company. 
 
Market data and certain industry information used throughout this Prospectus were obtained from 
internal surveys, market research, publicly available information and industry publications.   Industry 
publications generally state that the information contained therein has been obtained from sources 
believed to be reliable, but that the accuracy and completeness of such information is not 
guaranteed. Similarly, internal surveys, industry forecasts and market research, while believed to be 
reliable, have not been independently verified and neither the Company nor the Sole Issue Manager, 
Arranger and Underwriter makes any representation as to the accuracy and completeness of such 
information. 
 
In making an investment decision, applicants are advised to carefully consider all the information 
contained in this Prospectus, including the following key points characterizing potential risks in an 
investment in the STCPs: 
 
Risks relating to the Company and its business 
 

 Dependency on programs developed or supported by the Department of Agriculture of the 
Philippines; 

 Risk of non-acceptance of the Company’s hybrid rice seed products; 

 Risk of being affected by changes in the preferences or purchasing power of consumers; 

 Risks of the Company not executing its sales strategy efficiently; 

 Dependence on its proprietary rights on hybrid seeds and rice; 
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 The Company’s business is affected by seasonality;  

 Revocation of BOI Registration; 

 Dependence on key personnel, the loss of which could adversely affect its business and 
growth; 

 Dependence on certain key managers of Sterling Paper Enterprise, Inc.; 

 Reliance on third parties;  

 Risk of products not meeting customer’s requirements; 

 Increased amount of debt. 
 
General Risks 

 

 Political or social instability 

 Slowdown in the Philippine economy 

 Natural catastrophe and calamity 
 

Risks Relating to the Short Term Commercial Papers 
 

 Liquidity Risk – the Philippine securities markets are substantially smaller, less liquid and  
more concentrated than major securities markets 

 Price Risk – the STCPs market value moves (either up or down) depending on the change 
in interest rates 

 Retention of Ratings Risk – there is no assurance that the rating of the STCPs will be 
retained throughout the life of the STCPs 

 
For a more detailed discussion on the risks in investing, see section on “Risk Factors” beginning on 
page 19 of this Prospectus, which, while not intended to be an exhaustive enumeration of all risks, 
must be considered in connection with a purchase of the STCPs. 
 
This Prospectus includes forward-looking statements.  The Company has based these forward-
looking statements largely on its current expectation and projections about future events and 
financial trends affecting its business and operations.  Words including, but not limited to “believe”, 
“may”, “will”, “estimates”, “continues”, “anticipates”, “intends”, “expects” and similar words are 
intended to identify forward-looking statements.  In light of the risks and uncertainties associated 
with forward-looking statements, investors should be aware that the forward-looking events and 
circumstances in this Prospectus may or may not occur.  The Company’s actual results could differ 
significantly from those anticipated in the Company’s forward-looking statements. 
 
The contents of this Prospectus are not to be considered as legal, business or tax advice. Each 
prospective purchaser of the STCPs receiving a copy of this Prospectus acknowledges that he has 
not relied on the Sole Issue Manager, Arranger and Underwriter or Selling Agents in his investigation 
of the accuracy of such information or his investment decision. Prospective purchasers should 
consult their own counsel, accountants or other advisors as to legal, tax, business, financial and 
related aspects of a purchase of the STCPs. 
 
The STCPs are offered solely on the basis of the information contained and the representations 
made in this Prospectus.  No dealer, salesman or other person has been authorized by the 
Company or by the Sole Issue Manager, Arranger and Underwriter to issue any advertisement or 
to give any information or make any representation in connection with the Offer other than those 
contained in this Prospectus and, if issued, given or made, such advertisement information or 
representation must not be relied upon as having been authorized by the Company or by the Sole 
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Issue Manager, Arranger and Underwriter. 
 
The laws of certain jurisdictions may restrict the distribution of this Prospectus and the offer and sale 
of the STCPs. Persons into whose possession this Prospectus or any of the STCPs come must 
inform themselves about, and observe any such restrictions. Neither the Company, the Issue 
Manager/Underwriter and the Selling Agents, nor any of its or their respective representatives are 
making any representation to any prospective purchaser of the STCPs of the legality of any 
investment in the STCPs by such prospective purchaser under applicable legal investment or similar 
laws or regulations. 
 

ALL REGISTRATION REQUIREMENTS HAVE BEEN MET AND ALL INFORMATION 
CONTAINED HEREIN IS TRUE AND CURRENT. 
 
The Company is organized under the laws of the Republic of the Philippines. Its principal office is 
located at Sterling Place 2302 Pasong Tamo Extension Makati City 1231, Philippines with telephone 
number +632 813 7828. Any inquiry regarding this Prospectus should be forwarded to the Company, 
or to Multinational Investment Bancorporation. 
 
SL AGRITECH CORPORATION 
 
By: 
 
 
 
HENRY LIM BON LIONG  
Chairman 
 
 SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me this ____th day of ___________ 2015 in 
__________, Philippines, affiant exhibiting to me his ____________________________________ 
issued on _____________ in ____________ 
 
 
 
Doc. No ________; 
Page No________; 
Book No ________; 
Series of 2015. 
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DEFINITION OF TERMS 
 

 
Banking Day……………….. A day (except Saturdays, Sundays and holidays) on which banks 

in the Philippines are open for business 
  
BIR………………..………… Bureau of Internal Revenue 
  
BOI………………..………… Board of Investments 
  
BPI………………..………… Bureau of Plant and Industry 
  
BSP………………..………... Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas, the central bank of the Philippines 
  
Company………………..….. SL Agritech Corporation 
  
Corporation Code…………. Batas Pambansa Blg. 68, otherwise known as “The Corporation 

Code of the Philippines”  
  
DA………………..…………. Department of Agriculture 
  
DENR………………..……… Philippine Department of Environment and Natural Resources 
  
Directors……………………. The members of the Board of Directors of the Company 
  
Government………………... The Government of the Republic of the Philippines 
  
GRT…………………………. Gross receipts tax 
  
Issue Date………………….. A date at which the STCPs or a portion thereof shall be issued by 

the Issuer, which date shall be set by the Issuer in consultation with 
the Sole Issue Manager, Arranger and Underwriter. For the 
avoidance of doubt, an Issue Date shall at any time be a date which 
is within the validity of the SEC Permit to Sell. 

Listing Date………………… The date at which the STCP shall be listed with PDEx 
  
Lim Family………………….. Mr. Henry Lim Bon Liong, Mr. Joseph Lim Bon Huan, Mr. Gerry Lim 

Bon Hiong, and Mr. Ruben Lim Bon Siong.  
  
MAO………………………… Municipal Agricultural Officers 
  
NFA…………………………. National Food Authority 
  
Offer………………………… Up to Php1,000,000,000 Short-‐Term Commercial Papers 
  
Offer Price………………….. Discount to face value 
  
P or Php or P………………. Philippine Pesos, the lawful currency of the Republic of the 

Philippines 
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PDEx……………………...... Philippine Dealing & Exchange Corp. 
  
PDST……………………….. Philippine Dealing System Treasury 
  
PDTC……………………...... The Philippine Depository and Trust Corporation 
  
PFRS……………………….. Philippine Financial Reporting Standards 
  
Philratings………………….. Philippine Ratings Services Corporation 
  
Prospectus…………………. This Prospectus together with all its annexes, appendices and 

amendments, if any 
  
SEC…………………………. The Philippine Securities and Exchange Commission 
  
SLAC or SL Agritech……… SL Agritech Corporation 
 
STCP………………………... 

 
The short term commercial papers, an evidence of indebtedness 
of any person with maturity of three hundred and sixty five (365) 
days or less 

  
STCP Holder………………. A purchaser of the STCPs 
  
Sole Issue Manager and 
Arranger……………………. 

 
Multinational    Investment    Bancorporation     

  
SRC…………………………. Republic Act No. 8799, otherwise known as “The Securities 

Regulation Code” 
  
Underwriter………………… Multinational    Investment    Bancorporation     
  
Underwriting Agreement….. The agreement entered into by and between the Company and the 

Underwriter, indicating the terms and conditions of the Offer and 
providing that the Offer shall be fully underwritten by the 
Underwriter 

  
USD…………………………. U.S. Dollars, the lawful currency of the United States of America 
  
VAT…………………………. Value Added Tax 
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EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
The following summary does not purport to be complete and is taken from and qualified in its entirety 
by the more detailed information including the Company’s financial statements and notes relating 
thereto, appearing elsewhere in this Prospectus.  For a discussion of certain matters that should be 
considered in evaluating any investment in the STCPs, see the section entitled “Risk Factors” 
beginning on page 19 of this Prospectus. 
 
OVERVIEW OF THE COMPANY 
 
SL Agritech Corporation, incorporated in 2000, is the only Philippine producer of hybrid rice seeds 
with fully integrated operations.  The Company operates two business segments: the production of 
hybrid rice seeds and premium rice.  The majority of the Company’s business is currently derived 
from the hybrid rice seeds business, after its first product, SL-8H, was successfully developed and 
distributed.  Another objective of the Company is to develop premium rice from its hybrid rice seed 
products.  The Company currently conducts research and propagates proprietary hybrid rice seed 
varieties, and distributes premium rice products under the brand names “Doña Maria”, “Cherry 
Blossom” and “Willy Farms.” 
 
The Company’s fully integrated operations, which begins with hybrid rice seed research and ends 
with the sale of premium rice products, provides an advantage over traditional rice producers. This 
structure enables the Company to develop its proprietary hybrid rice seed varieties to either sell to 
local and international markets or to mass produce as premium rice.  Having a fully integrated 
operations allows the Company to utilize its technology while simultaneously maximizing volume 
production with consistent quality.   
 
The Doña Maria brand of rice is positioned as premium quality rice targeting the High and Middle 
income consumers.  The Company’s second brand, Cherry Blossom, aims to attract the lower middle 
income consumers.  All of the Company’s rice products also originate from its proprietary hybrid rice 
seeds.  The premium rice business currently has five (5) Doña Maria variants, one (1) Cherry 
Blossom variant and three (3) Willy Farms variants.  The Doña Maria products currently compete in 
the market against the Thai Jasmine rice varieties, while Cherry Blossom aims to compete against 
the local varieties. The Company recently launched a third brand, Willy Farms, targeting the middle 
income pricing range. 
 
The Company was founded by the Lim Family and is affiliated with Sterling Paper Enterprise which 
is simultaneously headed by Mr. Henry Lim Bon Liong, as Chairman.   The Company is positioning 
itself to be the Philippines’ leading proponent of hybrid rice farming technology and industry model 
for sound farm management practices.  Its objectives are to help the country to achieve rice self-
sufficiency and improve the livelihood of local farmers. 
 
COMPETITIVE STRENGTHS 
 
The Company believes that its strengths lie in the following: 

 

 Innovation of high yielding rice technology 

 Superior and consistent product quality 

 Fully integrated operations 

 Attractive growth prospects 

 Strong market position 
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Additional information on the Company’s Competitive Strengths may be found in the “The Company” 
beginning page 46. 
 
BUSINESS STRATEGY 
 
The Company plans to further strengthen its position as the only local producer of high-yielding 
hybrid rice seeds and increase its market share of its premium rice products.  The Company intends 
to achieve this by pursuing the following strategies:  
  

 Increase brand awareness 

 Improve operational efficiency 

 Maintain product leadership 

 Improve customer and market knowledge 

 Develop new products 

 Expand market share 
 
RISKS OF INVESTING 
 
Before making an investment decision, investors should carefully consider the risks associated with 
an investment in the STCPs.  These risks include: 
 
Risks relating to the Company and its business 
 

 Dependency on programs developed or supported by the Department of Agriculture of the 
Philippines; 

 Risk of non-acceptance of the Company’s hybrid rice seed products; 

 Risk of being affected by changes in the preferences or purchasing power of consumers; 

 Risks of the Company not executing its sales strategy efficiently; 

 Dependence on its proprietary rights on hybrid seeds and rice; 

 The Company’s business is affected by seasonality; 

 Revocation of BOI Registration; 

 Dependence on key personnel, the loss of which could adversely affect its business and 
growth; 

 Dependence on certain key managers of Sterling Paper Enterprise, Inc.; 

 Reliance on third parties;  

 Risk of products not meeting customer’s requirements; 

 Increased amount of debt. 
 
Risks relating to the Short Term Commercial Papers 
 

 Liquidity Risk  

 Price Risk  

 Retention of Ratings Risk 
 

General Risks 
 

 Political or social instability 

 Slowdown in the Philippine economy 
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 Natural catastrophe and calamity 
 
Please refer to the section entitled “Risk Factors” beginning on page 19 of this Prospectus, which, 
while not intended to be an exhaustive enumeration of all risks, must be considered in connection 
with a purchase of the STCPs. 
 
CORPORATE INFORMATION 
 
The Company’s principal place of business is at Sterling Place, 2302 Pasong Tamo Extension, 
Makati City 1231, Philippines with telephone number +632 813 7828. Information on the Company 
may be obtained at www.sl-agritech.com 
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SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION 
 

The selected financial information set forth in the following table has been derived from the 
Company’s audited financial statements for fiscal years ended May 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013 and 
the unaudited financial statement for the first quarter ended August 31, 2015. These should be read 
in conjunction with the financial statements and notes thereto contained in this Prospectus and the 
section entitled “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition” and other financial 
information included herein. 
 
The Company’s financial statements were prepared by SyCip Gorres Velayo & Co. (SGV) a member 
practice of Ernst & Young Global, in accordance with PFRS.  The summary financial information set 
out below does not purport to project the results of operations or financial condition of the Company 
for any future period or date. 
 

INCOME STATEMENT DATA (in Php millions) 

 
2013* 2014* 2015 

August 2015 
(unaudited) 

Revenues 1,262 1,392 2,066 228 

Cost and Expenses 985 1,072 1,677 132 

Other Income/ (Charges) (96) (118) (135) 74 

Income/ (Loss) Before Tax  and 
Other Items 181 202 254 

 
22 

Pre-Acquisition Loss     

Excess of Fair Value over Acquisition 
Costs    

 

Tax Income (Expense) 0.02 0.60 0.05  

Net Income 181 201 254 22 

*Restated 
 

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL POSITION DATA (in Php millions) 

 
2013 2014 2015 

August 2015 
(unaudited) 

ASSETS     
Current Assets     

Cash 280 107 291 35 

Receivables 857 1,017 1,485 1,580 

Inventories 794 1,301 1,704 1,572 

Prepayments 13 15 19 20 

Total Current Assets 1,944 2,442 3,499 3,207 

Non-current Assets     

Property, Plant and Equipment 511 453 520 521 

Development Costs 560 770 920 
917 

Biological assets** 7    

Security Deposits 1 1 7 7 

Total Non-current Assets 1,079 1,224 1,447 1,445 

Total Assets 3,023 3,666 4,947 4,652 

**Biological assets refer to standing crops as of the end of the fiscal year. 
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 2013 2014 2015 
August 2015 
(unaudited) 

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY     

Current Liabilities     

Accounts and other payables 116 110 158 165 

Trust receipts payables 297 249 792 570 

Short term notes payable 1,563 2,060 2,493 2,391 

Total Current Liabilities 1,976 2,418 3,443 3,126 

Non-current liabilities     

Pension liability 9 11 13 13 

Total Non-current Liabilities 9 11 13 13 

Total Liabilities 1,985 2,430 3,456 3,139 

Equity     

Capital stock-Common 710 710 710 810 

Retained earnings 330 531 785 704 

Remeasurement loss on pension 
liability (3) (4) (4) 

 

Total Equity 1,036 1,236 1,491 1,514 

Total Liabilities and Equity 3,023 3,666 4,947 4,653 
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THE OFFER 

 
The following do not purport to be a complete listing of all the rights, obligations and privileges of 
the STCPs. STCPs Some rights, obligations or privileges may be further limited or restricted by 
other documents and subject to final documentation.  Prospective note holders are enjoined to 
perform their own independent investigation and analysis of the Issuer and the Short Term 
Commercial Papers. Each prospective note holder must rely on its own appraisal of the Issuer and 
the proposed financing and its own independent verification of the information contained herein and 
any other investigation it may deem appropriate for the purpose of determining whether to 
participate in the proposed financing and must not rely solely on any statement or the significance, 
adequacy or accuracy of any information contained herein.  The information and data contained 
herein are not a substitute for the prospective note holder’s independent evaluation and analysis. 
 
The following overview should be read as an introduction to, and is qualified in its entirety by 
reference to, the more detailed information appearing elsewhere in this Prospectus. This overview 
may not contain all of the information that prospective investors should consider before deciding to 
invest in the STCP. Accordingly, any decision by a prospective investor to invest in the STCPs 
should be based on a consideration of this Prospectus as a whole, which provides the material 
rights, obligations and privileges of an STCP Holder. Should there be any inconsistency between 
the summary below and the final documentation, the final documentation shall prevail. 
 
The following are the terms and conditions of the Offer: 
 

Issuer : SL Agritech Corp. 

Instrument : Negotiable Short Term Commercial Papers (“STCPs”) 
registered with the SEC 

Issue Size : Up to P1,000,000,000.00 to be issued in one lump sum or 
multiple tranches, at the determination of the Issuer in 
consultation with the Sole Issue Manager, Arranger and 
Underwriter.  

Sole Issue Manager, Arranger 
and Underwriter  

: Multinational Investment Bancorporation 

Selling Agents : AB Capital and Investment Corporation  

Philippine Commercial Capital Inc. 

Use of Proceeds : For loan refinancing and purchase of inventories 

Issue or Offer Price : Discount to face value of the STCPs 

Issue Date : In one or more dates to be set by the Issuer in consultation 
with the Sole Issue Manager, Arranger and Underwriter on 
a when and as needed basis. The target issue date for the 
sole or first tranche, as the case may be, is 1Q2016.  For 
the avoidance of doubt, an Issue Date shall at any time be 
any date which is within the validity of the SEC Permit to 
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Sell. 

Tenor/Term : Up to three hundred sixty (360) days; provided portions of 
the issuance of the STCPs may, as determined by the 
Issuer in consultation with the Sole Issue Manager, 
Arranger and Underwriter, have the following tenor/term. 
The day count convention is Actual/360. 

Series A: 90 days  
Series B: 180 days 
Series C: 360 days 

 
 

Denomination : Primary Market: 

For Series 
A and B 

Minimum of Pesos: Five Million 
(P5,000,000) face value and increments of 
Pesos: One Hundred Thousand 
(P100,000) 

For Series 
C 

Minimum of Pesos: Five Hundred 
Thousand (P500,000) face value and 
increments of Pesos: One Hundred 
Thousand (P100,000) 

Secondary Market 

For Series 
A, B, and 
C 

Minimum of Pesos: One Hundred 
Thousand (P100,000) face value and 
increments of Pesos: Ten Thousand 
(P10,000) 

 

Discount Rate : The sum of the Base Rate and the Credit Spread 
determined prior to each Issue Date (the “Rate Setting 
Date”); provided in no case shall the Discount Rate be below 
the BSP policy rate at the Rate Setting Date. 

 

The following are the discount rates for the Initial Tranche: 

Series A: 4.50% 
Series B: 4.75% 
Series C: 5.25% 

 
 

Base Rate : Should the Issuer decide to issue in tranches, the base rate 
of the succeeding tranches is the higher of the three day 
average PDST-R2 Reference Rate of the corresponding 
tenor or the closest tenor of the Special Deposit Account of 
the BSP; for the avoidance of doubt, the base rates are as 
follows: 
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Series A: PDST-R2 3Mos 
Series B: PDST-R2 6Mos 
Series C: PDST-R2 12Mos 

 
 

Credit Spread : Should the Issuer decide to issue in tranches, the credit 
spread over the benchmark will be determined during the 
Rate Setting Date. 

Discount Rate Computation : The Interest/Discount Rate will be calculated on a true-
discount basis 

Penalty Interest : Twelve percent (12.0%) per annum from the time the 
amount is due until it is fully paid. 

Manner of Purchase : The STCPs will be available for sale from the Sole 
Underwriter and Selling Agents, subject to minimum 
purchase amount and denomination. 

Acceptance / Rejection of the 
Application 

 

: The Issuer and the Sole Issue Manager, Arranger and 
Underwriter reserve the right to accept or reject any 
application for STCPs. In case of over-subscription, the 
Issuer and the Sole Issue Manager, Arranger and 
Underwriter reserve the right to allocate the STCPs available 
to the investors in a manner they deem appropriate. 

Delivery of STCP : Delivery of the STCPs will be made upon full payment of the 
Offer Price to the Sole Underwriter and/or Selling Agents 

Principal Repayment  : The principal amount of the STCPs will be repaid in full at 
the Principal Repayment Date 

Principal Repayment Date : The date of maturity of an STCP as stated in the STCP 
certificate, at which the Issuer shall effect payment in full of 
the STCPs.  If such Principal Repayment is due on a day 
that is not a Banking Day, the Principal Repayment Date 
shall be made on the immediately succeeding Banking Day. 
No additional interest will be paid in such case. 

Status : The STCPs will constitute direct, unconditional, 
unsubordinated, general and unsecured obligations of the 
Issuer ranking at least pari passu in all respects and without 
preference or priority (except for any statutory preference or 
priority applicable in the winding-up of the Issuer) with all 
other outstanding unsecured and unsubordinated 
obligations (contingent or otherwise, present and future) of 
the Issuer. 

Form : The STCPs shall be issued scripless and will be maintained 
in electronic form with the Registrar. 
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Taxation on the Discount : Generally, the Discount on the STCPs shall be subject to a 
20% final withholding tax. An STCP Holder who is exempt 
from or is not subject to the aforesaid withholding tax shall 
be required to submit the following: (i) certified true copy of 
the tax exemption certificate issued by the Bureau of Internal 
Revenue; (ii) a duly notarized undertaking, in the prescribed 
form, declaring and warranting its tax exempt status, 
undertaking to immediately notify the Issuer of any 
suspension or revocation of the tax exemption certificates 
and agreeing to indemnify and hold the Issuer free and 
harmless against any claims, actions, suits, and liabilities 
resulting from the non-withholding of the required tax; and 
(iii) such other documentary requirements as may be 
required under the applicable regulations of the relevant 
taxing or other authorities. The Issuer reserves the right to 
withhold the required tax on the discount of an STCP Holder 
otherwise representing itself to be a tax-exempt institution in 
the event that such STCP Holder fails to comply with or 
submit the foregoing documentary requirements. 

Documentary Stamps on 
Original Issuance 

: The cost of the documentary stamps on the original issuance 
of the STCPs shall be for the account of the Issuer. 

Registrar and Paying Agent : PDTC 

Secondary Trading : The STCPs are intended to be listed at the PDEx for 
secondary trading of the STCPs and upon such listing, all 
secondary trading may be coursed through eligible PDEx 
Trading Participants 

Liabilities : The Company as the STCP issuer is liable and responsible 
for any and all obligations arising from the sale of the STCP 
as provided under pertinent sections of the Negotiable 
Instruments Law, the SRC and applicable laws of the 
Philippines as well as in the Underwriting Agreement and 
related agreements. In addition, the Issuer is responsible for 
complying with all reportorial requirements of the SEC in 
connection with the issuance of the STCP. 

Credit Ratings : The Issuer has a rating of PRS Aa (Corp.) as assigned by 
Philratings effective September 11, 2015. 

Philratings assigned an issuer credit rating of PRS Aa (corp.) 
for SL Agritech Corporation based on the following 
considerations:  

- Good market position, though with a relatively short 
track record 

- Strong core revenue generation 
- Positive industry prospects 

The assigned rating is subject to regular annual reviews, or 
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more frequently as market developments may dictate, for as 
long as they are outstanding. 

Financial Ratios : 
The following are the Issuer’s financial ratios as of end-May 
and August 2015: 
 
  May 2015 Aug 2015 
Current and Liquidity Ratios   

Current Ratio (1) 1.02 1.03 
Acid Test Ratio (2) 0.52 0.52 

Solvency Ratio (3) 0.10 0.02 
Asset to Equity Ratio 3.32 3.07 
Debt-to-Equity Ratio (4) 2.32 0.67 
Debt Ratio (5) 0.70 0.67 
Interest Coverage Ratio (6) 2.87 1.61 
Profitability Ratios 

Return on Assets (7) 5% 0.49% 
Return on Equity (8) 17% 1.5% 

Earnings per share attributable  
to equity 

Php 0.36 Php0.03 

 
(1) Current Assets / Current Liabilities 
(2) Monetary Current Assets / Total Liabilities 
(3) (Net Income + Depreciation) / Total Liabilities 
(4) Total Liabilities / Stockholder’s Equity 
(5) Total Liabilities / Total Assets 
(6) EBIT / Interest Expense 
(7) Net Income / Total Assets 
(8) Net Income / Ending Stockholder’s Equity 
 

Facility Agent : AB Capital and Investment Corporation – Trust Department 

The Facility Agent has no direct relations with the Issuer. 

 Security : Negative pledge on the Company’s existing and future 
assets, except (i) to secure statutory obligations, (ii) to 
enable the Company to continue to enter into its usual 
transactions in the ordinary course of business, (iii) those 
imposed by law or arising out of pledges or deposits under 
workmen’s compensation laws or other social security or 
retirement benefits or similar legislation, and (iv) those 
created for the purpose of paying current taxes, 
assessments or other governmental charges which are not 
delinquent or remain payable without any penalty, or the 
validity of which is contested in good faith by appropriate 
proceedings upon stay of execution of the enforcement 
thereof. 

Cross Default : The Company shall be considered to be in default in case 
the Company fails to pay or defaults in the payment of any 
installment of the principal or interest relative to, or fails to 
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comply with or to perform, any other obligation, or commits 
a breach or violation of any of the terms, conditions or 
stipulations, of any agreement, contract or document with 
any persons to which the Company is a party or privy, 
whether executed prior to or after the date hereof, or under 
which the Company has agreed to act as guarantor, surety 
or accommodation party, which, under the terms of such 
agreement, contract, document, guaranty or suretyship, 
including any agreement similar or analogous thereto, shall 
constitute a default thereunder after allowing for all 
applicable grace periods. 

Other Terms and Conditions 

 

: 1. The STCPs will not be convertible to any other security 
or equity of the Issuer. 

2. The Issuer will not set up any sinking fund for the 
redemption of the STCPs.  

3. Substitution of the STCP with another type of security 
will not be permitted.  

4. The Issuer will not appoint any Trustee. 

5. Other terms and conditions as may be agreed upon 
among the Issuer, the Sole Issue Manager, Arranger and 
Underwriter. 
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RISK FACTORS 
 

GENERAL RISK WARNING 
 
The price of securities can and does fluctuate, and any individual security may experience upward 
or downward movements, and may even become valueless.  There is an inherent risk that losses 
may be incurred rather than profit made as a result of buying and selling securities.  Past 
performance is not a guide to future performance. 
 
There is an extra risk of losing money when securities are issued by smaller companies.  There may 
be a big difference between the buying price and the selling price of these securities. 
 
Investors deal in a range of investments each of which may carry a different level of risk. 
 
PRUDENCE REQUIRED 
 
The risk disclosure does not purport to disclose all the risks and other significant aspects of investing 
in these securities.  Investors should undertake independent research and study on the trading of 
these securities before commencing any trading activity.  Investors may request publicly-available 
information on the STCPs and the Company from the SEC and PDEx. 
 
PROFESSIONAL ADVICE 
 
An investor should seek professional advice if he or she is uncertain of, or has not understood, any 
aspect of the securities to invest in or the nature of risks involved in trading of securities, especially 
high risk securities. 
 
RISK FACTORS 
 
An investment in the STCPs described in this Prospectus involves a certain degree of risk.  A 
prospective purchaser of the STCPs should carefully consider the following factors, in addition to 
the other information contained in this Prospectus, in deciding whether to invest in the STCPs. This 
Prospectus contains forward-looking statements that involve risks and uncertainties. SLAC adopts 
what it considers conservative financial and operational controls and policies to manage its business 
risks. The Company’s actual results may differ significantly from the results discussed in this 
Prospectus. Factors that might cause such differences, thereby making the offering speculative or 
risky, may be summarized into those that pertain to the business and operations of SLAC, in 
particular, and those that pertain to the over-all political, economic, and business environment, in 
general.  These risk factors and the manner by which these risks shall be managed are presented 
below.  The risk factors discussed in this section are of equal importance and are only separated 
into categories for easy reference. 
 
Investors should carefully consider all the information contained in this Prospectus including the risk 
factors described below, before deciding to invest in the STCPs.  The Company’s business, financial 
condition and results of operations could be materially adversely affected by any of these risk factors. 
 
RISKS RELATING TO THE COMPANY AND ITS BUSINESS 
 
The following discussion is not intended to be a comprehensive description of all applicable risk 
considerations, and is not in any way meant to disclose all risk considerations or other significant 
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aspects of participation in the STCPs. Prospective participants are encouraged to make their own 
independent legal, financial, and business examination of the Company.   
 
EXTERNAL SOURCES 
 
The Company’s business may be affected by any program developed or supported by the 
Department of Agriculture of the Philippines. 
 
The Company currently derives the majority of its profits from sales of hybrid rice seeds from the 
Philippines.  Any agricultural program that the Department of Agriculture develops for the farmers of 
the country may affect the Company’s business.  The Department of Agriculture creates programs 
that affect certain inputs required for rice planting, such as irrigation, subsidies, and financial support.  
In the event that the government is unable to effectively implement its programs, this might result in 
a slowdown of the Company’s business as farmers might not have the required resources to 
purchase the Company’s products.  There is no guarantee that the Philippine government will not 
change or prioritize these programs in the coming years.   
 
The Philippines may also opt to support the importation of rice, which would make it difficult for the 
Company’s products to compete in both the hybrid rice seed and premium rice markets.  In this 
event, the Company may have difficulty in selling its hybrid rice seed products to farmers as its use 
is not supported by the government.  The demand for the Company’s premium rice products may 
also diminish as cheaper imported substitutes may be made available to the market.  In the past 
years, the Philippine government has been supporting rice importation, but the Company has been 
able to grow its business despite having little support. 
 
To mitigate this risk, the Company communicates regularly with the Department of Agriculture 
regarding any policies or programs developed for the rice industry.  This allows the Company to take 
an active participation in government programs which promote the use of hybrid rice as a means of 
obtaining rice self-sufficiency.  It also enables the Company to express its opinions on the DA’s 
ongoing or future policies or programs. 
 
The Company also conducts its own marketing activities to promote the use or consumption of its 
products.  These marketing activities are done in order to introduce the products and to convince 
customers of either the usefulness of the hybrid rice seeds or the superior quality of the premium 
rice products.  The Company intends to strengthen its marketing efforts in the event that the 
government does not actively support the use of hybrid rice technology or the cause of rice self-
sufficiency.  
   
There is no guarantee that the Company’s hybrid rice seed technology will be accepted by 
Filipino farmers. 
 
The Philippines has had access to hybrid rice seed varieties since its inception in the 1970s.  
However, the technology was not adapted by local farmers as the earlier varieties were not as high 
yielding or adaptive to Philippine conditions.  Some farmers were also unwilling to forego old habits 
and processes which utilize more traditional ways of farming. In 2009, plantation of hybrid rice only 
composed 4.2% of the total rice plantation area of the Philippines.  The Company however is 
presenting a new variety to the market, one that is high yielding and adaptable to the tropical 
conditions of the Philippines.  Along with the Company’s sales efforts to promote the use of hybrid 
rice seeds, the Company provides seminars to local farmers to explain the proper cultivation and 
effects of planting hybrid rice seeds.  Details on the Company’s products and marketing, sales, and 
distribution may be found beginning page 56. 
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The Company’s business and operations may be affected by any changes in the preferences 
or purchasing power of consumers. 
 
The Company’s ability to increase or maintain sales is dependent on the public’s acceptance of its 
products.  Changes in demographic, social or health proclivity may alter the demand for the 
Company’s products.  For its hybrid rice seed products, demand for specific types of rice may dictate 
the planting trend of farmers.  Likewise, for its premium rice products, consumer preferences may 
change due to the influence of social trends or perceptions of health.  Young and health conscious 
consumers may opt to shift to organic rice or healthier carbohydrates, instead of the Company’s 
products.   
 
In addition, the price of premium rice may not be as inelastic as the price of ordinary rice.  Any 
adverse downturn in the economy of the Philippines may cause consumers to opt for cheaper or 
more affordable types of rice.  Cheaper alternatives are supplied by the government and the private 
sector, both of which are readily available in the market.  The Company prices its premium rice 
products in between the cheaper local rice and the costly imported varieties, targeting the high to 
mid income consumers.  This market is believed to be less sensitive to price fluctuations, as 
consumers belonging to this demographic are willing to spend for quality products.  The Company 
also provides options for its products, such as varying sizes and varieties, which may attract a loyal 
following from certain niche markets. 
 
The variety of hybrid rice seeds that the Company produces is considered to be of high quality, and 
thus demands a higher price than inbred seeds.  The yield of the Company’s hybrid rice seeds may 
conservatively yield 5 tons per hectare which is equivalent to 100 cavans (cav) of palay or 5,000 kl.  
The technology may provide a substantial increase in farmers’ production and income.  The potential 
increase in income is what encourages farmers to select the Company’s product over the local inbred 
varieties.   
 
The Company may not efficiently execute its strategy to increase sales volume. 
 
The Company intends to grow its sales in both hybrid rice seeds and premium rice products through 
continuous research on higher-yielding hybrid rice seeds, release of new products, increased 
exportation, additional tie-ups, and aggressive marketing activities.  The success of these strategies 
cannot be guaranteed.  As discussed earlier, farmers in the Philippines are used to traditional 
methods of farming rice, thus they may not be susceptible to the change presented by hybrid-rice 
production.  Similarly, many rice consumers purchase other brands due to its affordability.  The 
Company must be able to convince a portion of this market to purchase its products in order to grow 
its premium rice business.  Failure to change the mindset of its target market may hinder the 
Company’s growth in both the hybrid rice seeds and premium rice products. 
 
The Company employs innovative marketing and sales activities in order to encourage customer 
loyalty and patronage.  These initiatives include promos, sampling, and boothing for both the hybrid 
rice seed and premium rice products.  To ensure its continuous growth and strength in sales, the 
Company intends to hire additional manpower for its sales and marketing team.  Details on the 
Company’s marketing, sales, and distribution may be found beginning page 56. 
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The Company’s business is dependent on its proprietary rights on hybrid rice seeds and 
premium rice products.  The infringement on the proprietary rights of these products may 
lead to the loss of the Company’s advantage over its competitors. 
 
The Company has obtained Certificates of Plant Variety Protection from the Bureau of Plant Industry 
for its hybrid rice varieties to protect their biological features from any infringement.  The Company’s 
continued success is dependent on the research and development initiatives of its breeding 
program.  Failure to ensure the secrecy of the breeding program could be detrimental to the 
Company’s success.  The production of the hybrid rice seeds is dependent on the hybrid rice seed 
formula, which was discovered and known only to the Company’s researchers and scientists.  In the 
event that competitors are able to gain access to this particular line of rice plants, they may develop 
similar hybrid rice seeds that could lessen the Company’s current market share.    
 
The Company also packages its hybrid rice seeds in specially designed sacks that are marked with 
the brand names “Doña Maria”, or “Willy Farms” and the Company’s name.  Competitors may copy 
the design of the sacks, which may lead to market confusion amongst hybrid rice seeds or premium 
rice buyers.  Unscrupulous individuals may also obtain the Company’s old or discarded sacks, 
repack them with non-hybrid or low yield seeds, and then sell them to farmers.  This event may 
damage the reputation of the product and the Company in the particular area the fraud was 
committed, and cause an adverse effect on the Company’s sales and revenue targets.  The 
Company has obtained the necessary certifications and trademarks for both its hybrid rice 
technology and its marketing materials.  It shall be responsible for filing the necessary court 
documents pertaining to the infringement of its products. 
 
The Company has also obtained the necessary registration of its Plant Variety Trademarks from the 
Intellectual Property Office.  These serve as protective measures which give the Company the 
exclusive rights to produce and reproduce its products and marketing materials.  If there is an 
attempt to infringe on any of the Company’s intellectual properties, the Company is prepared to take 
the proper legal action to protect itself and its products.    
 
In addition, the Company also continues to conduct research and development initiatives for both its 
hybrid rice seed and premium rice business.  It has advanced in its research efforts, and in the future 
may discover better products.  The presence of a strong research and development team to develop 
products may mitigate the risk of losing its business in the event that a competitor reproduces one 
of the Company’s products.   
 
The Company’s performance is affected by weather and seasonality. 
 
The Company’s sales and production of hybrid rice seeds are affected by the seasonality of the 
palay planting process.  In the Philippines, farmers are limited to two planting seasons, as the climate 
dictates a 120-day cultivation time on the crops.  Typically, rice yield is higher during the dry season, 
which in the Philippines occurs on the first half of the year, from January to May.  Output during the 
second half of the year is less due to less sunlight resulting to lower photosynthesis.   
 
In order to mitigate the effects of unexpected seasonality or weather changes, the Company has 
broadened its operation areas to different areas within and outside the Philippines.  The Company 
has strategically located its breeding and/or production hubs in Laguna, Nueva Ecija, and Davao to 
produce both its hybrid rice seed and premium rice products.  The weather in Davao is milder as 
rainfall in this area of the Philippines is evenly distributed throughout the year, as compared to the 
weather in Luzon which may experience pronounced dry and wet seasons.  As typhoons and other 
adverse weather conditions normally follow a northwesterly direction, Mindanao is normally not hit 
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directly by the majority of typhoons or other phenomena that enter the Philippines.  The locations of 
the Company’s operations are essential to ensure the continuity of its business. In the event that 
one of its hybrid rice seed production sites is damaged, the other will still be able to sustain the 
business. 
 
The Company currently benefits from income tax holidays due to its BOI registration. 
 
If the Company did not have the benefit of income tax holidays its profitability may be affected, as it 
will have to pay regular income tax at the prevailing rates. 
 
The Company depends on key personnel, the loss of which could adversely affect its 
business and growth. 
 
The Company’s future growth is largely anchored on the continuous development of new varieties 
of hybrid rice seeds.  The Research and Development Department of the Company is dependent on 
key researchers and scientists.  The resignation of these personnel could disrupt the normal 
business operations of the Company, and finding replacements could be difficult.  The head 
researcher and scientist of the Company was trained by Professor Yuan Longping, the scientist 
considered as the father of hybrid rice.  The Company currently has an exclusivity contract with the 
researchers and scientists with a non-compete clause that bars researchers and scientists from 
joining competitor firms in the future. 
 
The Company’s operation is dependent on certain key managers of Sterling Paper Enterprise, 
Inc. 
 
Some departments and employees of the Company are currently being shared with its affiliate, 
Sterling Paper Enterprise, Inc. The Management Information System and Human Resources 
departments are currently being shared by both Companies, while the Chairman is concurrent for 
both the Company and Sterling Paper Enterprise, Inc.   In the event that Sterling Paper Enterprise, 
Inc. is not able to provide the necessary services to the Company, there is no guarantee that the 
Company will be able to immediately employ the required employees.  Business and operations may 
be affected if the shared employees will be unable to fulfill their duties to the Company.   
 
The Company may not always be able to employ reliable third parties to provide its various 
service requirements. 
 
The Company relies on independent third parties such as contract growers, farmers, transport 
service providers, local cooperatives, and distributors to provide various services, including planting, 
harvesting, deliveries, distribution, and sales of the Company’s hybrid rice seeds and premium rice 
products.  Failure to find or engage reliable third parties for a particular planting season may result 
in additional costs or lesser output.  There can be no assurance that the services rendered will 
always be satisfactory or match the Company’s requirements for quality.  Third party service 
providers may also experience financial or other difficulties, and shortages or increases in the cost 
of their inputs, any of which may decrease the output of either seeds or rice for the Company.  Any 
of these factors could have a material adverse effect on the Company’s business, financial condition, 
and results of operations.  The Company mitigates this risk by ensuring proper documentation that 
states the expected output is in place.  The Company also selects third party service providers based 
on experience, financial resources, previous relationship with the Company, reputation for quality, 
and track record. Finally, the Company has reduced its dependence on such third parties by 
embarking on its own production and distribution system. 
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The Company’s reputation, business, and financial condition will be affected if the products 
do not meet customer requirements. 
 
The business of the Company is reliant on the quality of the hybrid rice seeds or premium rice 
products that it produces.  The hybrid rice seeds are expected to be substantially higher yielding as 
compared to the in-bred seeds, while the premium rice products must be of higher palate quality 
than that of ordinary rice.  Any negative effect on the Company’s reputation or its brand could also 
affect the Company’s ability to reduce its capital outlays from internally generated funds.  The 
Company cannot provide any assurance that such events will not occur in a manner that would 
adversely affect its results of operations or financial condition.  
 
Increased amount of debt 
 
The increase in debt of the Company could have certain adverse consequences.  For example it 
could: 
 

• reduce the Company’s ability to service its existing debt obligations, including the STCPs; 
• limit  the Company’s  ability  to  obtain  additional  financing  for  working  capital,  capital 

expenditures, debt service and other purposes; 
• require the Company to divert a substantial portion of its cash flow from operations to debt 

service; or 
• place the Company at a competitive disadvantage to its competitors that have less debt. 

 
The Company’s ability to refinance or repay its debt depends on its successful financial and 
operating performance, which will be affected by a number of factors, many of which are beyond its 
control. If the Company is unable to refinance its debt, obtain necessary waivers or obtain new 
financing under  these  circumstances,  the Company  would  have  to  consider  various  other 
financing options such as sale of assets, procuring additional capital and other options available to 
the Company under applicable law. The Company might also have to modify, delay or abandon its 
development and expansion plans.  See “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial 
Condition and Results of Operation” 
 
Some of the Company’s short term debt are partially secured by current inventories and real estate 
mortgage. 
 
The Terms and Conditions for the STCPs and agreements for certain of the Company’s other debt 
contain covenants that limit its ability to, among other things: 
 

• incur additional debt to the extent that such additional indebtedness results in a breach of 
a required financial ratio; 

• materially change its nature of business; 
• merge, consolidate, or dispose of substantially all its assets; 
• materially change its ownership and control of its capital stock; and 
• encumber, mortgage or pledge certain of its assets. 

 
Complying with these covenants may cause the Company to take actions that it otherwise would not 
take or not take actions that it otherwise would take.  The Company’s failure to comply with these 
covenants would cause a default, which, if not waived, could result in the debt becoming immediately 
due and payable.  In this event, the Company may not be able to repay or refinance such debt on 
terms that are acceptable to the Company or at all.  See “Management’s Discussion and Analysis 
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of Financial Condition and Results of Operations,” “Description of Certain Debt” and “Description of 
STCPs.” 
 
The triggering of certain events of default under the Company's other debts could make it difficult for 
the Company to repay the STCPs. 
 
A significant portion of the debt of the Company contains terms which allow a lender to accelerate 
the Company’s debt if any event or change in circumstances occurs which, in the sole opinion of 
such lender, would materially impair the Company's ability to repay its debt.  If any amount 
outstanding were  to  be  accelerated,  it  could  potentially  trigger  a  cross-default  under 
substantially all of the Company’s debt, in which case the Company may not be able to perform its 
payment obligations under the STCPs. 
 
The STCPs will be effectively subordinated in right of payment to all secured debt of the Company 
to the extent of the value of the assets securing such debt and all debt that is evidenced by a public 
instrument under Article 2244(14) of the Civil Code of the Philippines.  Debt notarized under 
Philippine law could have effective priority over the STCPs. 
 
Under Philippine law, in the event a borrower submits to insolvency or liquidation proceedings in 
which the borrower’s assets are liquidated, unsecured debt evidenced by a public instrument as 
provided in Article 2244(14) of the Civil Code of the Philippines will rank ahead of unsecured debt 
not evidenced by a public instrument.  Debt becomes evidenced by a public instrument when it has 
been acknowledged by the creditor and the debtor before a notary or any person authorized to 
administer oaths in the Philippines.   
 
RISKS RELATING TO THE PHILIPPINES 
 
A slowdown in the Philippine economy could adversely affect the Company.   
 
Results of operations of the Company have generally been influenced, and will continue to be 
influenced by the performance of the Philippine economy.  Consequently, the Company’s income 
and results of operations depend, to a significant extent, on the performance of the Philippine 
economy.   
 
In the past, the Philippines has experienced periods of slow or negative growth, high inflation, 
significant devaluation of the Philippine Peso and debt restructuring, and has been significantly 
affected by economic volatilities in the Asia-Pacific region. The Company cannot assure prospective 
investors that one or more of these factors will not negatively impact Philippine consumers’ 
purchasing power, which could materially and adversely affect the Company’s financial condition 
and results of operations.  
 
In addition, global financial, credit and currency markets have, since the second half of 2007, 
experienced, and may continue to experience, significant dislocations and liquidity disruptions. 
There is significant uncertainty as to the potential for a continued downturn in the U.S. and the global 
economy, which would be likely to cause economic conditions in the Philippines to deteriorate.  
 
A slowdown in the Philippine economy may adversely affect consumer sentiment and lead to a 
reduction in demand for the Company’s products.  There is also no assurance that current or future 
Government administrations will adopt economic policies conducive to sustaining economic growth. 
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Political or social instability could adversely affect the financial results of the Company.   
 
The Philippines has experienced political and military instability.  In the past decade, political 
instability has been observed headlined by impeachment proceedings against former presidents 
Joseph Estrada and Gloria Macapagal-Arroyo, and public and military protests arising from alleged 
misconduct by previous administrations.  There is no assurance that acts of election-related violence 
will not occur in the future and such events have the potential to negatively impact the Philippine 
economy.  An unstable political environment, whether due to the imposition of emergency executive 
rule, martial law or widespread popular demonstrations or rioting, could negatively affect the general 
economic conditions and operating environment in the Philippines, which could have a material 
adverse effect on the Company’s business, financial condition and results of operations. 
 
The occurrence of natural catastrophes may materially disrupt the Company’s operations.  
 
The Philippines has experienced a number of major natural catastrophes over the years, including 
droughts, typhoons, volcanic eruptions and earthquakes, which may materially disrupt and adversely 
affect the business operations of the Company.   While The Company maintains a comprehensive 
business insurance against natural catastrophes, there can be no assurance that it will be 
adequately compensated for all damages and economic losses resulting from natural catastrophes. 
 
RISKS RELATING TO THE SHORT-TERM COMMERCIAL PAPER  
 
Liquidity Risk 
 
The Philippine securities markets are substantially smaller, less liquid and more concentrated than 
major securities markets. The Company cannot guarantee that the market for the STCPs will always 
be active or liquid. Even if the STCPs are listed in the PDEx,  trading in securities such as the 
STCPs may be subject to extreme volatility at times, in response to fluctuating interest rates, 
developments in local and international capital markets and the overall market for debt securities 
among other factors. There is no assurance that the STCPs may be easily disposed of at prices 
and volumes and at instances best deemed appropriate by their holders. 
 
Price Risk 
 
The STCP’s market value may move (either up or down) depending on the change in interest rates 
in the market. The STCPs when sold in the secondary market may be worth more if interest rates 
drop. Conversely, if the prevailing interest rates rise, the STCPs may be worth less when sold in 
the secondary market. In such instance, an investor faces possible loss if he decides to sell. 
 

Retention of Ratings Risk 
 
There is no assurance that the rating of the Issuer will be retained throughout the life of the STCPs. 
The rating  is  not  a  recommendation   to  buy,  sell,  or  hold  securities  and  may  be  subject  to  
revision, suspension, or withdrawal at any time by the assigning rating organization. 
 
MANAGEMENT OF RISKS 
 
In general, the Company believes that the risk factors discussed herein are mitigated by its 
competitive strengths and business strategies.  See discussion on Competitive Strengths and 
Business Strategy on pages 58 to 60 of this Prospectus.  
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USE OF PROCEEDS 
 
The Company estimates that its net proceeds from the Offer is expected to be approximately 
Php990,388,375.00 after deducting the applicable fees and expenses.  
 
Expenses related to the Offer, all of which will be for the account of the Company, are broken down 
as follows: 
 

Gross Proceeds from the Offer P 1,000,000,000.00 

Less:   

    SEC Filing Fees 820,625.00 

    Legal Research Fees 20,000.00 

    Underwriting and Selling Fees (maximum) 5,000,000.00 

    Issue Management Fee 2,500,000.00 

    Philratings credit rating report fees 896,000.00 

    PDTC Registry fees 175,000.00 

    PDEx listing maintenance fees 25,000.00 

Facility agency fees 125,000.00 

    Estimated Costs of Printing and Publication 50,000.00 

    Total expenses P      9,611,625.00 

Net Proceeds P 990,388,375.00 

 
In the event that the actual expenses relating to the Offer differ from the above estimates, the actual 
net proceeds to the Company from the Offer may be higher or lower than the expected net proceeds 
set forth above.  Any increase or decrease in the net proceeds to the Company shall be addressed 
by making a corresponding increase or decrease, as the case may be, to the Company’s provision 
for working capital requirements. 
 
The Company intends to use the proceeds from the Offer for working capital and refinancing 
purposes. Proceeds will be used to acquire inventory (palay and seeds from contract growers) and 
pay-off some debt obligations, the approximate amount of which are as follows: 
 

Purchase of Inventories  Php690,388,375.00 

Refinance Existing Obligations  Php300,000,000.00 

 
The Company expects to use part of the net proceeds of the Offer to purchase palay and seed 
inventories from contract growers (see “Production Process” on pages 53 to 56 for the contract 
growing model) of up to Seven Hundred Million Pesos (Php700,000,000.00). Of this, up to Two 
Hundred Twenty One Million Pesos (Php210,000,000.00) will be allocated to purchase seed 
inventories equivalent to approximately One Million Four Hundred Thousand (1,400,000) kilos of 
seeds to be cultivated in more than Seven Hundred (700) ha of farm land. Meanwhile, up to Four 
Hundred Ninety Million Pesos (Php490,000,000.00) will be allocated to purchase rice inventories 
equivalent to approximately Twenty Two Million Two Hundred Seventy Thousand (22,270,000) kilos 
of rice cultivated in more than Three Thousand One Hundred Eighty (3,180) ha of farm land.  
 
The Company expects use the net proceeds of the Offer to pay short-term debts of the Company 
amounting to Three Hundred Million Pesos (Php300,000,000.00) with terms of up to One Hundred 
Eighty (180) days and interest rates above 5.25%. The foregoing use of proceeds was to acquire 
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palay inventory equivalent to approximately Twelve Million Five Hundred Thousand (12,500,000) 
kilos. 
 
The Company will use the net proceeds from the Offer in accordance with the following table of 
disbursement: 
 

Indicative Date  Amount  Purpose 

January 2016 
P 90,000,000.00 Seed Inventory Purchase 

P 210,000,000.00 Rice Inventory Purchase 

February 2016 
P 60,000,000.00 Seed Inventory Purchase 

P 140,000,000.00 Rice Inventory Purchase 

March 2016 

P 57,116,512.50 Seed Inventory Purchase 

P 133,271,862.50 Rice Inventory Purchase 

P 300,000,000.00 Refinancing 

TOTAL P 990,388,375.00  
Note: This timetable assumes that the entire One Billion Pesos (Php1,000,000,000.00) 
STCP will be fully subscribed by investors. 

 

No portion of the proceeds will be used to acquire major assets or finance the acquisition of other 
business nor will the proceeds be used to reimburse any officer, director, employee or shareholder 
for service rendered, assets previously transferred, money loaned or advanced or otherwise. The 
Sole Issue Manager, Arranger and Underwriter shall not receive any amount from the proceeds 
other than the underwriting and selling fees. 
 
The foregoing discussion represents a best estimate of the use of proceeds of the Offer based on 
the Company’s current plans and anticipated expenditures. In the event that there is any change 
in the Company’s disbursement plan, including force majeure, the Company will carefully evaluate 
the situation and may reallocate the proceeds and/or hold such funds on short term deposit 
whichever is better for the Company’s and its shareholders’ interest taken as whole.  In such event, 
the Company will issue an announcement if there is any material change in the above proposed use 
of proceeds. 
 
In the event of any significant deviation, material adjustment or reallocation in the planned use of 
proceeds, the Company will secure the approval of its Board of Directors for such deviation, 
adjustment or reallocation and promptly make the appropriate disclosures to the SEC and the PDex. 
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DETERMINATION OF THE OFFER PRICE 
 
The STCPs shall be issued at a discount to face value. 
 
Below is an illustration of the computation of the Offer Price for an Issuance:  
 

  Series A Series B Series C 

Tenor (in Days) 90 180 360 

Discount Rate 4.50% 4.75% 5.25% 

Cost Breakdown     

Face Value  5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00   500,000.00  

Discount  (55,624.23)  (115,995.12)  (249,406.18) 

Tax on Discount   11,124.85   23,199.02   49,881.24  

Cost  4,955,500.62 4,907,203.91 4,800,475.06 

Offer Price 99.11 98.14 96.92 
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PLAN OF DISTRIBUTION 
 
The Company plans to issue the STCPs in one lump sum or several tranches, through the 
designated issue manager, underwriter and selling agents.  The sole issuance or first issuance, as 
the case may be, shall be in the 4th quarter of 2015 for such amount as shall be determined by the 
Issuer in consultation with the designated issue manager and underwriter. 
 
ISSUE MANAGER/UNDERWRITER AND UNDERWRITING OBLIGATION 
 
The Company has engaged Multinational Investment Bancorporation as its Underwriter pursuant to 
an Underwriting Agreement (the “Underwriting Agreement”). The Underwriter has agreed to act as 
the Underwriter for the Offer and as such, distribute and sell the STCPs at the Offer Price, and has 
committed to underwrite the STCPs on a firm basis, in either case subject to the satisfaction of 
certain conditions and in consideration for certain fees and expenses.  There is no arrangement for 
the Underwriter to put back to the Issuer any unsold STCPs.  
 
The Underwriter is duly licensed by the SEC to engage in distribution of securities to the public. The 
Underwriter may, from time to time, engage in transactions with and perform services in the ordinary 
course of business with the Company or other members of the Group. 
 
Multinational Investment Bancorporation is the oldest existing independent investment house in the 
Philippines. It provides a full range of investment banking services that include debt and equity 
underwriting, loan syndication and financial advisory services for mergers and acquisitions, 
corporate reorganization and financial restructuring. 
 
The Underwriter has no direct relations with the Company in terms of ownership. The Underwriter 
has no right to designate or nominate any member of the Board of the Company. 
 
SALE AND DISTRIBUTION 
 
The distribution and sale of the STCPs shall be undertaken by the Underwriter and Selling Agents 
who shall sell and distribute the STCPs to third party buyers/investors. Nothing herein shall limit the 
rights of the Underwriter and each Selling Agent from purchasing the STCPs for its own account. 
There are no persons to whom the STCPs are allocated or designated. The STCPs shall be offered 
to the public at large and without preference. 
 
Unless otherwise terminated, the engagement of the Sole Issue Manager, Arranger and Underwriter 
and Selling Agents shall subsist so long as the SEC Permit to Sell remains valid. 
 
FEES AND COMMISSIONS 
 
The Company will pay the Underwriter a fee of 0.50% on the aggregate face value of the STCPs 
issued, which is inclusive of the underwriting and the selling agency fees.  The fees shall be 
deductible from the net proceeds of the Offer for a particular tranche on a relevant Issue Date. 
 
The Company will also pay the Issue Manager a flat fee of 0.25% of the STCP Issue Size. 
 
OFFER PERIOD 
 
The Offer Period shall commence upon or immediately after approval by the SEC of, and will end 
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on or before the expiry of the license to sell for, the STCPs. 
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DESCRIPTION OF THE SECURITIES TO BE 
REGISTERED 

 

Instrument : Negotiable Short Term Commercial Papers (“STCPs”) 
registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission 

Issue Size : Up to P1,000,000,000.00 to be issued in one lump sum or 
multiple tranches, at the determination of the Issuer in 
consultation with the Sole Issue Manager, Arranger and 
Underwriter. 

Issue or Offer Price : Discount to face value of the STCPs 

Discount Rate : The sum of the Base Rate and the Credit Spread 
determined prior to each Issue Date (the “Rate Setting 
Date”); provided in no case shall the Discount Rate be 
below the BSP policy rate at the Rate Setting Date. 

The following are the discount rates for the Initial Tranche: 

Series A: 4.50% 
Series B: 4.75% 
Series C: 5.25% 

 

Base Rate : Should the Issuer decide to issue in tranches, the base rate 
of the succeeding tranches is the higher of the three day 
average PDST-R2 Reference Rate of the corresponding 
tenor or the closest tenor of the Special Deposit Account of 
the BSP; for the avoidance of doubt, the base rates are as 
follows: 

Series A: PDST-R2 3Mos 
Series B: PDST-R2 6Mos 
Series C: PDST-R2 12Mos 

 

Credit Spread : Should the Issuer decide to issue in tranches, the credit 
spread over the benchmark will be determined during the 
Rate Setting Date. 

Tenor/Term : Up to three hundred sixty (360) days; provided portions of 
the issuance of the STCPs may, as determined by the 
Issuer in consultation with the Sole Issue Manager, 
Arranger and Underwriter, have the following tenor/term. 
The day count convention is Actual/360. 

Series A: 90 days  
Series B: 180 days 
Series C: 360 days 

 

Penalty Interest : Twelve percent (12.0%) per annum from the time the 
amount is due until it is fully paid. 
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Manner of Purchase : The STCPs will be available for sale from the Sole 
Underwriter and Selling Agents, subject to minimum 
purchase amount and denomination. 

Delivery of STCP : Delivery of the STCPs will be made upon full payment of 
the Offer Price to the Sole Underwriter and/or Selling 
Agents 

Principal Repayment : The principal amount of the STCPs will be repaid in full at 
the Principal Repayment Date 

Principal Repayment Date : The date of maturity of an STCP as stated in the STCP 
certificate, at which the Issuer shall effect payment in full of 
the STCPs.  If such Principal Repayment is due on a day 
that is not a Banking Day, the Principal Repayment Date 
shall be made on the immediately succeeding Banking Day. 
No additional interest will be paid in such case. 

Taxation on the Discount : Generally, the Discount on the STCPs shall be subject to a 
20% final withholding tax. An STCP Holder who is exempt 
from or is not subject to the aforesaid withholding tax shall 
be required to submit the following: (i) certified true copy of 
the tax exemption certificate issued by the Bureau of 
Internal Revenue; (ii) a duly notarized undertaking, in the 
prescribed form, declaring and warranting its tax exempt 
status, undertaking to immediately notify the Issuer of any 
suspension or revocation of the tax exemption certificates 
and agreeing to indemnify and hold the Issuer free and 
harmless against any claims, actions, suits, and liabilities 
resulting from the non-withholding of the required tax; and 
(iii) such other documentary requirements as may be 
required under the applicable regulations of the relevant 
taxing or other authorities. The Issuer reserves the right to 
withhold the required tax on the discount of an STCP Holder 
otherwise representing itself to be a tax-exempt institution 
in the event that such STCP Holder fails to comply with or 
submit the foregoing documentary requirements. 

Documentary Stamps on 
Original Issuance 

: The cost of the documentary stamps on the original 
issuance of the STCPs shall be for the account of the 
Issuer. 

Secondary Trading : The STCPs are intended to be listed at the PDEx for 
secondary trading of the STCPs and upon such listing, all 
secondary trading may be coursed through eligible PDEx 
Trading Participants 

Liabilities : The Company as the STCP issuer is liable and responsible 
for any and all obligations arising from the sale of the STCP 
as provided under pertinent sections of the Negotiable 
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Instruments Law, the SRC and applicable laws of the 
Philippines as well as in the Underwriting Agreement and 
related agreements. In addition, the Issuer is responsible 
for complying with all reportorial requirements of the SEC 
in connection with the issuance of the STCP. 

Credit Ratings : The Issuer has a rating of PRS Aa (Corp.) as assigned by 
Philratings effective September 11, 2015. 

Philratings assigned an issuer credit rating of PRS Aa 
(corp.) for SL Agritech Corporation based on the following 
considerations:  

- Good market position, though with a relatively short 
track record 

- Strong core revenue generation 
- Positive industry prospects 

The assigned rating is subject to regular annual reviews, or 
more frequently as market developments may dictate, for 
as long as they are outstanding. 

Financial Ratios : 
The following are the Issuer’s financial ratios as of end-
May and August 2015: 
 
  May 2015 Aug 2015 
Current and Liquidity Ratios   

Current Ratio (1) 1.02 1.03 
Acid Test Ratio (2) 0.52 0.52 

Solvency Ratio (3) 0.10 0.02 
Asset to Equity Ratio 3.32 3.07 
Debt-to-Equity Ratio (4) 2.32 0.67 
Debt Ratio (5) 0.70 0.67 
Interest Coverage Ratio (6) 2.87 1.61 
Profitability Ratios 

Return on Assets (7) 5% 0.49% 
Return on Equity (8) 17% 1.5% 

Earnings per share attributable  
to equity 

Php 0.36 Php0.03 

 
(1) Current Assets / Current Liabilities 
(2) Monetary Current Assets / Total Liabilities 
(3) (Net Income + Depreciation) / Total Liabilities 
(4) Total Liabilities / Stockholder’s Equity 
(5) Total Liabilities / Total Assets 
(6) EBIT / Interest Expense 
(7) Net Income / Total Assets 
(8) Net Income / Ending Stockholder’s Equity 
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INTEREST OF NAMED EXPERTS AND COUNSEL 
 

 
The validity of the STCPs and tax matters pertaining thereto were passed upon by Tamayao and 
Affiliates, Attorneys-at-law (T&A), the independent legal counsel of the Company. The 
independent legal counsel has no shareholdings or any interest, direct or indirect, in the 
Company, or any right, whether legally enforceable or not to nominate persons or to subscribe to 
the securities of the Company in accordance with the standards on independence required in the 
Code of Professional Responsibility and as prescribed by the Supreme Court of the Philippines. 
 
The Philippine Depository & Trust Corporation, the Registrar and Paying Agent, has no direct and 
indirect interest in the Company. 
 
The financial statements of the Company for the periods ended May 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013 
appearing in this Prospectus have been audited by SyCip Gorres Velayo & Co., independent 
auditor, as set forth in their report thereon appearing elsewhere herein. The partner-in-charge for 
the periods ended May 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013 is Mr. Michael Sabado, CPA.   
 
There is no arrangement that experts shall receive a direct or indirect interest in the Company or 
was a promoter, underwriter, voting trustee, director, officer, or employee of Company. 
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INDUSTRY OVERVIEW AND COMPETITIVE OVERVIEW 
 
The information and data contained in this section have been taken from sources in the public 
domain. The Company does not have any knowledge that the information herein is inaccurate in 
any material respect. Neither the Company nor the Sole Issue Manager, Arranger and Underwriter 
nor any of their respective affiliates or advisors has independently verified the information included 
in this section. 
 
Rice is the staple food of more than 60 percent of the world population. About 90 percent of all 
the rice grain in the world is produced and consumed in Asia.  In India alone, rice is cultivated on 
more than 44.0 million hectares with an average productivity of 3.4 metric tons per hectare 
(MT/hectare). In countries such as China, where rice is cultivated on nearly 29.2 million hectares, 
average productivity is about 6.6 MT/hectare.  Such differences in productivity depend mainly on 
the genotypes used, the quality of the seeds, the management practices adopted and the climatic 
conditions during the crop growth period. A superior quality seed not only increases productivity 
per unit area, but it also helps produce uniform crops without any admixtures - important for 
obtaining high prices in the market. In order to increase crop productivity, significant efforts in 
breeding new conventional rice varieties and hybrid rice seeds have been made.  
 
Hybrid rice seeds are produced by crossing two genetically fixed inbred varieties of rice.  Hybrid 
varieties express what is called heterosis or hybrid vigor, the tendency of a crossbred variety to 
have qualities superior to those of either parent, particularly in terms of yield.  However, the 
heterosis effect (i.e., high yield) disappears after the first generation (F1). As seeds produced 
from a hybrid crop will no longer exhibit the same superior qualities, farmers need to purchase 
new F1 seeds every planting season to get the heterosis effect each time.  This has made hybrid 
rice seed production a growing industry.  
 
HYBRID RICE SEED TECHNOLOGY 
 
In 1970, Chinese researchers discovered a male sterile rice plant growing naturally within a 
population of wild rice (Oryza sativa f. spontanea) on Hainan Island. This plant had a particular 
cytoplasm - the material surrounding the cell nucleus - that induces male sterility through 
interaction with the nucleus. The plant was named wild rice with abortive pollen (WA). Scientists 
in China then began crossing WA with other rice varieties to determine whether this male sterility 
could be passed on to subsequent generations. Those that came out male sterile, called 
maintainer lines, were then repeatedly backcrossed until a stable sterile plant was achieved. This 
plant is called a cytoplasmic male sterile (CMS line). CMS lines form one of the parental lines for 
producing hybrid rice seeds. The other is known as the restorer line, as it restores fertility to the 
CMS line when it is crossed. The seeds from this cross are the F1 hybrid seeds.  The CMS system 
is known as the three-line system since it requires three lines of rice: a CMS line, a maintainer 
line, and a restorer line. This system is what is being used in every country working on hybrid rice 
at present. 
 
Researchers are now experimenting with new methods of hybrid rice production. One is called 
environment-sensitive genetic male sterility, which uses either photoperiod-sensitive genetic male 
sterility (PGMS) or thermo-sensitive genetic male sterility (TGMS). PGMS lines are sterile lines 
that regain fertility with daylight fluctuations. Therefore, they can only be used in temperate zones. 
TGMS lines regain fertility when the temperature fluctuates, which means they can be used in the 
highlands of the tropics. These methods are known as two-line systems since they do not require 
maintainer lines and any fertile line can be used as a pollen parent. Proponents maintain that this 
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offers a wider choice of parental lines, but both PGMS and TGMS suffer from similar limitations 
to the CMS lines. Sources of PGMS and TGMS are exceedingly rare and by 1994, only 12 had 
been identified. 
 
There is still another method which the Chinese call the one-line system. This refers to the long-
term goal of transferring apomixis into rice, in this case hybrid rice. Apomixis is the capacity of a 
plant to reproduce asexually. Apomictic plants develop seeds, but without the merger of male and 
female reproductive cells. So the seeds are clones of a single parent plant. Apomixis is common 
in weeds but rare in crop plants. It doesn't exist in the Oryza genus but it does exist in Pennisetum 
and scientists have been hoping to transfer the genes for apomixis from pearl millet. 
 
The developments in hybrid rice in China encouraged the International Rice Research Institute 
(IRRI) to explore the potentials and challenges of the technology in other parts of Asia. In 
collaboration with the Chinese Academy of Agricultural Sciences (CAAS), IRRI organized training 
courses on hybrid rice technology as early as 1980 and 1981 to train scientists from several Asian 
countries. The next few years have been an assessment of the potential of this new technology 
particularly in irrigated environments outside China. The first commercial hybrid rice outside China 
that was developed by IRRI was released in Vietnam in 1993. This has been subsequently 
followed by limited releases in India and the Philippines.  Other countries like Myanmar, 
Indonesia, Thailand and South Korea, are starting their evaluation and assessment of the 
technology but notably slow in promotion and adoption.  
 
ASIAN MARKET 
 
Hybrid rice technology may not be as important to the rest of the world as it is in Asia. Since rice 
remains the staple food in the region, it is therefore imperative to develop and utilize technologies 
that would ensure more food that concretely translates to more rice. Most major rice cultivating 
markets in Asia established collaborations and partnerships between the public and private 
sectors for hybrid rice research and development. To encourage private sector involvement in the 
development and production of hybrid parental lines, legislations were made to protect intellectual 
property rights. Hence, the private sector plays a primary role in technology dissemination as it 
leads the importation, local production, and distribution of hybrid seeds. 
 
While academic studies on hybrid rice claimed increased productivity in Asian markets, similar 
studies also show that there has been declines in area cultivated with hybrid seeds. China still 
remains as the biggest producer of hybrid rice in the world.  Despite years of research, hybrid rice 
technology remains in initial stages in most countries in the region. Table 1 in the succeeding 
page shows the status of hybrid rice research and development and its adoption and 
commercialization in several countries in Asia. 
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Table 1. Status of Hybrid Rice in Asian Markets 

      

  Cultivation Adoption  

Indonesia Vulnerability to pests and 
diseases lead to indifference 
of grain quality between 
hybrid and inbred rice. 

Government is yet to produce a 
clear policy stance for industry 
support. Current subsidy program 
is poorly targeted. 
 

Bangladesh Most varieties, imported from 
China, are not well adapted 
under local conditions 

Lack of effective campaign in 
hybrid rice production which 
resulted to non-familiarity of 
farmers in hybrid rice cultivation 
techniques. 
 

Philippines Low seed production volume 
relative to consumption 
requirements. 

Limited credit assistance 
extended by government to 
farmers. 
 

India Limited choice of hybrids 
suited to local conditions 

Weak institutional mechanism for 
production and supply of seed of 
public sector bred hybrids 
 

Vietnam While current hybrids are 
resistant to blast disease, 
these are susceptible to 
major diseases. 

Reluctance of small farmers to 
use hybrid seeds due to lack of 
proper ware house and high 
financial requirement 
 

China Demographic shifts such as 
increased migration from 
rural to urban areas cause an 
asynchronous development 
agricultural mechanization. 

Stringent industrial policy and 
commercial environment holds as 
a barrier for market access by new 
varieties. 
 
 

Source: Hybrid Rice: The Technology and The Status of its Adoption in Asia 

 
Outside China, only Vietnam and the Philippines have so far shown major increases in hybrid rice 
production areas in varying degrees and in particular conditions. Yet hybrid rice production in 
Vietnam is confined to the North and still dominated by seeds imported from China. Meanwhile, 
hybrid rice production in the Philippines is heavily supported by state subsidies.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

Page 40 

Table 2. Hybrid Rice Producing Countries in 2008 
 

 

Production 
(Million 

tonnes) of 
rough rice 

Area 
(Million 

hectares) 
Productivity 

(Tonnes/hectare) 

Area under 
hybrids 
(Million 

hectares) 

Area under 
Hybrids as 
% of Total 

Area 

China 193.00 29.20 6.61 19.00 65% 

India 148.36 43.91 3.37 1.30 3% 

Indonesia 57.83 11.85 4.88 0.13 1% 

Bangladesh 46.51 11.60 4.01 0.30 3% 

Vietnam 35.90 7.35 4.88 0.68 9% 

Myanmar 17.50 6.70 2.61 0.05 1% 

Philippines  16.81 4.40 3.82 0.20 5% 
Source: Down to Earth, 2010 

 
Table 2 summarizes the areas of hybrid rice cultivation in selected Asian countries which have 
either successfully adopted the hybrid rice technology or are in the process of doing so. China 
stands to lead in terms of productivity and outmatches every country in terms of area covered by 
hybrid rice seeds. Meanwhile, Philippine productivity is below peer average amid a low production 
volume 
 
TRENDS IN HYBRID RICE SEEDS TRADE 
 
Official statistics rarely pay attention to the trade in rice seeds which is insignificant compared to 
the trade in rice grains as a commodity. Rice grain is traditionally traded more than the rice seeds, 
except when a country or region is in dire need of seeds for planting coming from other areas due 
to natural or man-made calamities. The introduction of hybrid rice in Asia, however, is changing 
such trend. Since the potentials of the technology may be optimized only if new seeds are used 
in each planting season, it implies the need for an efficient seed industry that produces sufficient 
seeds for domestic use.  
 
In cases when the domestic requirements for hybrid rice cannot be met by local production, the 
national seed industry should be able to source out seeds from other countries. This case is 
similar to Vietnam where at least 80% of the hybrid seeds requirements are imported by state-
controlled and private seed enterprises from neighboring China where a strong hybrid seeds 
industry can meet the demand. This would have been the case in Indonesia, too, had it not been 
for the difference in agro-climatic conditions. Imported hybrid rice varieties from China would be 
unable to thrive in the warmer and more humid environment of Indonesia. Interestingly, the agro-
climatic factor that deters directly exporting hybrid rice seeds from China to the tropical countries 
in East Asia is the same reason that motivates private enterprises in the Philippines to engage in 
hybrid rice seeds development and marketing. These private enterprises have been exporting 
hybrid seeds to other countries with similar conditions. From these emerging trends, barring agro-
climatic, ecological and technological factors, hybrid rice clearly has the potential to give birth to 
a rice seeds industry in the region that could bring revolutionary changes in the future of rice 
breeding and development.  
 
The developments and trends in hybrid rice performance and adoption in China would have far-
reaching implications in the rest of Asia. The rate of adoption and contribution of the technology 
to the overall rice production of China in the coming years are expected to steadily decline. The 
reasons for this are: (1) the yield plateau in most commercially available hybrid rice varieties, (2) 
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the continuing challenge on the grain quality of hybrid rice and (3) the policy to give the farmers 
their individual responsibility to decide on their farm. 
  
This may not mean the end of hybrid rice technology because hundreds of public enterprises 
involved in the hybrid rice business in China are interested in expanding their interest on to the 
export market. The only obvious limitation to this potential is the agro-climatic conditions that 
would bar Chinese hybrids from growing productively in other areas with more tropical climates. 
In the short-term, the countries in the Indo-China region at the doorstep of China are the most 
logical targets for aggressive marketing of Chinese hybrids. Other countries that have achieved 
some successes in the development of promising locally-adapted hybrid rice varieties, such as 
the Philippines are already exploring export possibilities in other countries in the region with 
similar agro-climatic conditions. 
 
HYBRID RICE IN THE PHILIPPINES 
 
Domestic Supply and Demand Situation 
 
Rice is a staple food among Filipino households. Statistics in 2012 from the Philippine Statistics 
Authority (PSA) show that, on average, 12% of a Filipino family’s income is spent for cereals and 
cereals preparations. From a supply perspective, rice crops accounted for 37.8% of total crop 
production value in the Philippines for the last five years (2010-2014).  
 
Rice Supply and Consumption in the Philippines 
 
Growth in local rice production was stable from 2010 to 2013. During said period, rice production 
registered a 4-year compounded annual growth rate of 6%. Yet, growth in total rice supply was 
affected by declines in import volume. From 15.5% in 2010, rice imports only represented 2.7% 
of total rice supply in 2013. Following this, import dependency ratio fell to 3.2% in 2013 from 
18.7% in 2010.  
 

Table 3. Rice Supply Utilization 
 

in thousand metric ton (MT) 2010 2011 2012 2013 
SUPPLY 
Beginning Stocks 2,629 3,424 2,618 2,509 
Growth (%)  30.24  (23.54) (4.16) 

     
Rice Production 10,315 10,911 11,793 12,059 
Growth (%)  5.78 8.08 2.26 

     
Rice Importation 2,378 707 1,007 398 
Growth (%)  (70.27) 42.43  (60.48) 

     
Total Rice Supply 15,322 15,042 15,418 14,966 
Growth (%)  (1.83) 2.50  (2.93) 

 
DEMAND     
Apparent Consumption 10,601 11,056 11,440 11,340 
Growth (%)  4.29  3.47  (0.87) 
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Rice Consumption per capita (kg/yr) 114.81 117.39 119.45 116.48 
Growth (%)  2.25 1.75 (2.49) 
Source: PSA 

 

With average annual exponential population growth rate for years 2015 through 2020 pegged at 
1.64%, there are pressures to exert policy support for national rice production to attain rice self-
sufficiency. By 2020, there will be 111,784,600 Filipinos. The potential expansion in the hybrid 
rice industry is needed to cater to the increased requirements given the foregoing projected 
population base. 
 

Figure 1. Total Rice Production Area in the Philippines and Average Rice Yield  
For the Years 2000 to 2014 

 
  Source: Bureau of Agricultural Statistics 

 
Through 2000 to 2014, rice yields improved from 3.07 Metric Tons (MT)/hectare (ha) in 2000 to 
44.00 MT/hectare in year 2014. This was accompanied by an increased rice production at an 
annual average growth of 3.09% per annum from 1212.39 million MT in 2000 to 1818.97 million 
MT in year 2014.2014. Average rice yields steadily increased through 2007 until it declined in 
2008. Thereafter, in 2009, average rice yield went back to 2005 levels at 3.59 MT/ha. While the 
registered average rice yield of 4.00 MT/ha in 2014 was the highest since 2000, this is far from 
the Asian productivity average of 4.31. 
 
Hybrid Rice Production in the Philippines 
 
Increasing rice yields per unit area and unit time is an obvious strategy for increasing rice 
production. Clearly, new technologies are needed to spur further yield growth. 
 
As demonstrated in China, and more recently in India and Vietnam, rice hybrids can be used to 
increase rice production with such consequent positive benefits as generating rural employment 
and land savings.  The attainable increment in grain yield from excellent hybrids over the best 
comparable inbred is at least 15% per hectare. This translates to about 750 kg of additional 
produce per 5,000 kg of rough rice harvest.  A 15% increase in yield per unit area implies saving 
15% of these arable lands for other agricultural production purposes.  A more diversified and 
efficient agricultural land use can, therefore, be promoted with the adoption of hybrid rice.  
Excellent hybrids offer higher income opportunities to rice farmers. This can be achieved through 
hybrid rice commercial production wherein additional income can be obtained.  Both hybrid rice 
commercial and seed production system contribute to the generation of new jobs especially in 
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rural areas. At most three jobs can be created for every hectare. This is equivalent to 270 man-
days of additional farm labor. 
 
Industry experts have predicted that demand for hybrid rice technology in the Philippines will 
increase as a result of the country's high labor-to-land ratio and the high proportion of irrigated 
rice land.   
 
High Yield Technology Adoption Project 
 
The government’s renewed sentiment towards the adoption of hybrid rice seeds among local 
farmers led to the establishment of the High Yield Technology Adoption (HYTA) Project. The 
project aims to improve farm level productivity through the introduction of yield-enhancing 
technologies and the provision and utilization of high quality hybrid and inbred rice seeds. The 
project started in the dry season of Crop Year 2014-2015 and will be pursued in the succeeding 
crop seasons.  
 
The HYTA is implemented in fully irrigated rice farms to ensure attainment of high yield and 
avoidance of crop failure due to moisture stress. Under the HYTA, each farmer is entitled to a bag 
of hybrid (15-18 kilograms) or inbred (40 kilograms) seeds per hectare. The main consideration 
of varieties to be provided is according to the beneficiaries’ preference. Alongside the seeds, two 
bags (50 kilograms per bag) and other soil ameliorants such as Zinc may be provided per hectare. 
 
The HYTA is rolled out in conjunction with institutional partners for the distribution of seeds and 
fertilizers under a “Grant-Recovery-Roll Over” scheme. Implementation is spearheaded by the 
DA-National Rice Program and implemented by DA Regional Field Offices (RFOs). 
 
To further incentivize farmers to promote high productivity, farmer groups that achieve excellent 
results under the HYTA program will be rewarded with hand tractors with trailers, four-wheel drive 
tractors, threshers, water pumps, warehouses, combine harvesters, and dryers.  
 
Development of Hybrid Varieties 
 
In the Philippines, experimental hybrids must exhibit at least 15% higher yield relative to standard 
inbred check cultivars before they can be recommended by the National Seed Industry Council 
(NSIC) for commercial cultivation.   
 
Hybrid rice breeding activities in the country are undertaken by both the public and private sectors. 
In the public sector, IRRI began hybrid rice research and development (R&D) activities in the late 
1970s.  Two commercially usable cytoplasmic male sterile lines, IR58025A and IR62829A, and 
numerous restorer lines adapted to the tropics were bred at IRRI within the period 1980 to 1998.  
In 1989, the Philippine Rice Research Institute (PhilRice), which is the sole agency mandated to 
establish and coordinate all national rice R&D activities, established a hybrid rice breeding project. 
Since then, some experimental hybrids developed by PhilRice have entered the national yield 
trials. 
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Source: Information provided by management 

 
In the private sector, there are four companies which manufacture and distribute hybrid rice seeds 
in the local market. These are Bayer, Pioneer, Syngenta, and SL Agritech. Table 4 shows the 
comparative agronomic characteristics of these brands.  
 
Philippine Hybrid Rice Production 
 
Data from the Bureau of Agricultural Statistics show that hybrid rice production stood at 1.11 
million MT and 1.44 million MT in years 2013 and 2014, respectively (see Table 5).   
 

Table 5. Hybrid Rice Production 
  

  2011 2012 2013 2014 

Hybrid Rice Production ('000 MT) 977 1,294 1,138 1,361 

Growth (%)  32.5% -12.0% 19.5% 

     

Hybrid Rice Plantation Area ('000 has) 177 236 208 236 

Growth (%)  32.8% -11.9% 13.5% 

     

Average Hybrid Rice Yield (MT/ha) 5.50 5.49 5.48 5.77 

Growth (%)  -0.2% -0.1% 5.3% 

     

Total Rice Production ('000 MT) 16,684 18,033 18,439 18,968 

Hybrid Rice Production as % of Total 5.9% 7.2% 6.2% 7.2% 

 

Total Rice Plantation Area ('000 has) 4,537 4,690 4,746 4,740 

Hybrid Rice Plantation Area as % of Total 3.9% 5.0% 4.4% 5.0% 

Source: Bureau of Agricultural Statistics 

 
The 12% drop in hybrid rice production volume involume2013 came by as hybrid rice plantation 
area declined by 28,000 hectares in 2013—a 23.2% drop from 2012. Hybrid rice as a percentage 
of total rice production steadily grew in the last four years averaging to 6.6% of total output from 
2011 to 2014. Amid the steady growth in hybrid rice production, hybrid rice plantation area as a 
percentage of total rice plantation area is still below 5%.   
 
In addition to the low ratio of hybrid to total rice plantation area, the leveling off of hybrid rice yields 
contributed to the decline in hybrid rice production.  Average hybrid rice yield remained below 6.0 
MT/hectare in the last four years.  Continuous efforts to improve hybrid rice yield per hectare is 
being undertaken by both the public and private sectors through improvements in hybrid 
technology and propagation methods.  Improvement in hybrid rice production relies heavily on 

Table 4. Agronomic Characteristics of Commercially Produced Hybrid Seeds 

 SL Agritech Bayer Pioneer Syngenta 
Variety SL-8H Arize H64 PhB 77 Frontline Gold 

Ave. Yield/ha 180-200 cav/ha 155-175 cav/ha 150-170 cav/ha 130 cav/ha 

Potential Yield 17.0 MT 12.9 MT 11-13 MT 9.80 MT 

Maturity 105-115 days 100-105 days 115-119 days 115 days 
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the commercial availability of superior quality hybrid rice seeds.  As such, the government also 
extends support to local hybrid rice seed producers.  
 
Demand for Hybrid Rice and Hybrid Seeds 
 
The total domestic consumption of hybrid rice seeds is primarily dependent on the promotion 
efforts of the Philippine government through the HYTA and the DA.  While there is a lack of 
relevant available information to reasonably estimate the future demand for hybrid rice and hybrid 
rice seeds, there are several indicators that illustrate the sustainability of the hybrid rice and hybrid 
rice seeds industry. 
 
Indicators of Demand  
 
Unabated Increase in Domestic Rice Consumption 
 

 Figure 2. Rice Per Capita Consumption Trend in Selected Asian Markets 
 

 
Source: International Rice Research Institute Website 

 
Philippines is entering in a demographic sweet spot where there is a rising proportion of young, 
consumption-driven workforce. With one of the fastest growing populations in the region, the 
Philippine market for rice consumers have grown. This is coupled by a rising rice per capita 
consumption which, as shown in Figure 2, consistently grew while declines were registered in 
regional peers.  
 
Diminishing Rice Plantation Area 
 
Total rice plantation area has been growing at a rate of 2.5%, on the average, per annum in the 
last 14 years.  The deceleration of the total rice plantation area is due to land conversion owing 
to the rapid urbanization and industrialization.  With or without globalization, the increasing 
opportunity cost of land will shift its use from rice production to more profitable endeavors.  Given 
that the total area available for rice cultivation is nearing its limit, there is a need to improve rice 
yields through the propagation of hybrid rice varieties.   
 
Data from Bureau of Agricultural Statistics shows that the average yield advantage of hybrid rice 
over ordinary seeds is at least 38% or 2,500 kg/hectare. 
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Combined Yield and Price Advantage of Hybrid Rice 
 
Yield distribution shows that there are more farmers achieving hybrid rice yields of 5 MT/hectare 
and above as compared to an average of 3 MT/hectare for inbred varieties.  Hybrid rice also has 
a price advantage of around 30 centavos per kg over inbred rice. This indicates good market 
acceptability of milled hybrid rice due to its higher palate quality. 
 
The combined yield and price advantage of hybrid rice are the source of income growth among 
hybrid rice farmers. The cost difference in producing hybrid and inbred rice has also been 
narrowed as hybrid rice farmers become more familiar with the technology.  These benefits from 
the farm level have established a considerable demand for hybrid rice seeds. 
 
Continued Support from the Philippine Government 
 
The Philippine government will continue to support the hybrid rice and hybrid rice seed industry 
through R&D efforts, training and subsidy to farmers, as well as marketing support to private 
hybrid rice seed producers.  According to the DA, the total area allotted hybrid rice plantation is 
targeted to increase by 100,000 hectares bringing the total area coverage to 336,000 hectares.   
 
As the rice plantation area earmarked for hybrid rice propagation increases, the demand for 
commercially available hybrid rice seeds likewise increases.  Approximately 20 kgs of hybrid rice 
seeds is needed per hectare of hybrid rice plantation.  Given the targeted hybrid rice plantation 
area of the government, the demand for hybrid rice seeds is estimated to be approximately 6,700 
MT. 
 
Growing Exportation of Hybrid Rice Seeds 
 
There is also a growing demand for hybrid rice seeds in other countries. Aside from the 
Philippines, only China, India, and the United States have advanced in terms of hybrid rice 
technology.  The Philippines now exports hybrid rice seeds to Indonesia, Vietnam, Myanmar, 
Papua New Guinea and Bangladesh. 
 
Market Outlook 
 
Given the continued growth in population base and rice consumption per capita, the Philippines 
will continue to experience rice shortages at the current rice production growth rates.  Government 
initiatives towards increased productivity and self-sufficiency have increased the potential for the 
hybrid rice industry to expand. Despite government efforts fort self-sufficiency, around 20% of 
domestic consumption is catered by imports. 
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Table 6. Market Demand Estimates 
   

  2014A 2015E 2016E 2017E 2018E 

Implied demand for hybrid rice 1,360,769 1,248,750 1,482,188 1,783,787 2,085,386 

Growth in hybrid rice volume  -8.2% 18.7% 20.3% 16.9% 
 

Area needed to cultivate hybrid seeds 236,000 208,125 247,031 297,298 347,564 

Growth in plantation area  -11.8% 18.7% 20.3% 16.9% 
 

Potential demand for hybrid seeds 4,717 4,163 4,941 5,946 6,951 

Growth in hybrid seeds volume  -11.7% 18.7% 20.3% 16.9% 
Source:  Company estimates, Bureau of Agricultural Statistics, Bureau of Agricultural Statistics 
Notes: Hybrid seeds and rice is expressed in MT while Area needed to cultivate hybrid seeds is in Ha 

 
Table 6 shows that to cater to the implied demand for hybrid rice, the hybrid rice plantation area 
should increase to 347, 564 hectares by 2018 from 236,000 hectares in 2014—assuming that the 
average hybrid rice yield is 6 MT/hectare. This increase in acreage should be accompanied by an 
increase in demand for hybrid rice seeds from 4,717 MT in 2014 to 6,951 MT in 2018. 
 
This does not include the potential of exporting hybrid rice seeds to other countries, such as 
Vietnam which imports a large part of its hybrid rice seed requirements from China, and 
Bangladesh, Myanmar and Indonesia which have lagged behind in hybrid rice seed technology. 
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THE COMPANY 
 
COMPANY OVERVIEW 
 
The Company, registered with the SEC on September 11, 2000, is engaged in the production of 
hybrid rice seeds and buys and sells rice grains. It also conducts research and development for 
the production of aromatic super hybrid rice. The rice grains are marketed to domestic channels 
under the following brands: Dona Maria, Cherry Blossom, and Willy Farms. 
 
The Company maintains production hubs in three strategic locations: Nueva Ecija, Laguna, and 
Davao. These locations enable the Company to market its products through dealers and 
distributors situated across the Philippines. The Company also caters to foreign markets and 
exports a fraction of its production volume to countries such as Bangladesh, Vietnam, Myanmar 
and Indonesia.  For the fiscal year ending May 31, 2013, 2014, and 2015, the percentage to total 
sale contributed by sales to Asian countries is 11%, 11% and 4.5% respectively, while sales to 
the rest of the world is negligible.   
 
The Company was granted by the BOI non-pioneer status for its hybrid rice production in Nueva 
Ecija in March 2015 and pioneer status for its seeds production in Lupon, Davao Oriental in 
February 2009. The Company’s main activities are covered under the Investment Priority Plan of 
the BOI and thereby granted incentives.  The hybrid seed production in Lupon, Davao Oriental is 
a registered as a pioneer producer of hybrid rice seed with an annual capacity of 33.2 million tons, 
while the rice processing plant in Talavera, Nueva Ecija is registered as a new producer of hybrid 
rice with an annual capacity of 29,225 metric tons. As a BOI-registered company,the Company is 
entitled to certain benefits including Income Tax Holiday for a period of five (5) years from the 
date of registration with an extension of two (2)  years.  The Company further avails of BOI benefits 
under the law as result of the additions and expansion of its production facilities. 
 
Since 2010, the Company has been certified as implementing a quality management system that 
conforms to ISO 9001:2008. This certification supports the Company’s ability to provide quality 
products that meet customer and applicable statutory and regulatory requirements. The Company 
is in the process of renewing its certification. 
 
HISTORY 
 
The Company initially began its operations as a non-registered entity that conducted research on 
the development of hybrid rice seeds in 1998.  The Chairman and President of the Company, Mr. 
Henry Lim Bon Liong, took inspiration from China’s accomplishments in the production of hybrid 
rice.  In 1997, China was already the top producer and net exporter of rice, despite initially having 
food shortage problems after the Second World War.  The demand for rice in the Philippines has 
always been greater than its domestic supply, which compels the Government to import rice.  The 
Lim family considered entering into the hybrid rice market, as this specific breed of rice generates 
high crop yield and could potentially alleviate the Philippines’ rice shortage problem. 
 
Mr. Henry Lim Bon Liong sought the expertise of Professor Yuan Longping, a Chinese agricultural 
scientist and educator considered to be the “Father of Hybrid Rice” in China, as he is known for 
developing the first hybrid rice variety in China in 1973.      
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Under the tutelage of Professor Yuan Longping, Henry Lim Bon Liong engaged Professor Zhang 
Zhaodong, to test the viability of the Chinese hybrid rice in the Philippines.  The performance of 
the Chinese varieties under Philippine conditions was poor, due to the differing weather conditions 
between the two countries.  A new variety, one that that would adapt to the tropical climate and 
land conditions of the Philippines, would have to be developed locally.  In October 1999, Henry 
Lim Bon Liong and Professor Zhang Zhaodong began developing several parental lines in a 
parcel of land leased from the provincial government of Laguna.  Shortly after, Henry Lim Bon 
Liong procured a 40 hectare property in Barangay Oogong, Santa Cruz, Laguna and built a 
research and development facility especially dedicated to the production of hybrid rice. 
 
On September 11, 2000, SL Agritech Corporation was officially registered with the Securities and 
Exchange Commission with the primary objective of cultivating and growing rice seeds, palay, 
corn, and other agricultural grains.  The Company conducts research and development activities 
for the production of aromatic hybrid rice and cereals.  Two months after its registration, the 
Company discovered that it had successfully bred its first tropical hybrid rice variety, SL-8H.  The 
new variety was high yielding, sturdy, and resistant to diseases.  The Company immediately 
began to propagate the SL-8H seeds for the market.  Later in the same year, the Company 
purchased its second facility, in Banay-banay, Davao Oriental in anticipation of the mass 
production of SL-8H which included a 1.7 hectare facility for seed processing. 
 
Having successfully demonstrated the ability of SL-8H to thrive on local conditions for both the 
wet and dry seasons, the National Seed Industry Council granted the Company full accreditation 
in the year 2002.  The accreditation allows the Company to commercially produce and distribute 
the SL-8H variety to farmers.  Shortly after, the Company began marketing and selling activities 
to re-introduce the use of hybrid rice and SL-8H.  The Company also sponsored harvest festivals 
in order to educate local farmers on the advantages of using the SL-8H hybrid rice.  Farmers in 
key areas such as Regions 1, 2, 3, 4, and other parts of the Philippines began their use ofSL-8H, 
and were satisfied as their yield increased significantly.  Encouraged by the growing acceptance 
of its product, the Company expanded its seed production to Davao and Laguna. 
 
The Company continued its research efforts which resulted in the discovery of two more varieties, 
SL-7H and SL-9H.  Compared to its predecessor, the new seed varieties are of higher palate 
quality, but produce less yield.  As a result of these new varieties, the Company decided to expand 
its business by producing rice.  Under the brand name Doña Maria, named after the matriarch of 
the Lim family, the Company currently produces five kinds of premium rice, Jasponica, Jasponica 
Brown, Jasponica Plus, Miponica, and Miponica Brown.  The Company’s rice products are 
considered as premium or of higher grade than that of ordinary rice.  The products are currently 
available in leading grocery stores nationwide and are also being used by caterers and Japanese 
restaurants in Metro Manila. 
 
At present, the Company has also begun to export SL-8H to neighboring countries with similar 
tropical weather conditions, such as Indonesia, Bangladesh and Vietnam. It is also under 
negotiations with other countries such as India and Cambodia.  With the increasing demand for 
both its hybrid rice seed and premium rice products, the Company intends to expand its operations 
by increasing its lot area for production and by building facilities such as the milling plant in 
Talavera, Nueva Ecija and the soon to be constructed Bulk Grain Storage Facilities in the same 
area. 
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PRODUCTS 
 
Hybrid Seeds 
 
The Company began marketing its seed products in 2003, introducing the SL-8H variety to the 
market.  SL-8H is a high-yield resilient rice variety that allows farmers to harvest more produce at 
the end of each cropping season.  The Company has distributed the SL-8H hybrid seed variety 
across several provinces in the Philippines, particularly in Regions 1, 2, 3 and 4.  The Company 
has tested the viability of the SL-8H seeds in different areas in the Philippines to ensure its 
adaptability to local conditions. This resulted in its certification by the National Seeds Industry 
Council in 2004 as the “pioneer hybrid rice variety in the tropics, with high yielding potential and 
multiple resistance.”    
 
Aside from Philippine testing, SL-8H has also been tested in other countries such as Vietnam, 
Malaysia, China, Madagascar, Indonesia, Myanmar, India, Nigeria and Bangladesh.  All of which 
have resulted in acceptable yields.  Following the success of SL-8H, the Company is continuing 
its research efforts to develop other varieties of hybrid rice to be distributed commercially. 
 
Currently, revenues from the sale of hybrid rice seeds contribute 65% of the Company’s 2015 
fiscal year revenues.  Table 7 below sets forth each of the Company’s products, organized by 
variety, and includes a description of the product, its packaging and countries where it is exported. 
 

Table 7. List of SLAC’s Commercially Available Seed Varieties 

Variety  Description  Packaging  Country 

       
SL-8H  Hybrid seed with high 

heterotic performance, good 
disease resistance, excellent 
adaptability to tropical 
conditions, good palate 
qualities, good milling 
qualities, and easy hybrid 
seed production. 

 18kg  Philippines 
Bangladesh 
Indonesia 
Vietnam 

       

SL-7H 
 Used for the Company’s 

premium rice products. For 
contract growing 

 15kg  Philippines 

       

SL-9H 
 Used for the Company’s 

premium rice products. For 
contract growing 

 15kg  Philippines 

 
Premium Rice 
 
The Company’s premium rice products currently contribute 35% of the Company’s 2015 fiscal 
year revenues.  The rice products are currently under three brands, Doña Maria, Cherry Blossom 
and Willy Farms, each targeting a specific market segment.  All rice products were developed 
through the Company’s hybrid seed research, and were planted specifically to be marketed as 
rice ready for cooking.  Upon discovery that the produce of SL-7H and SL-9H were of superior 
palate quality, the Company opted not to distribute the seeds to the public. 
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The succeeding table sets forth each of the Company’s rice products, organized by variety, and 
includes a description of the product, its targeted market segment and packaging. 

 
Table 8 List of SLAC’s Rice Brands 

Variety  Description  
Market 

Segment 
 Packaging  

Doña Maria 
Jasponica 
Rice 

 The Doña Maria 
Jasponica Rice 
combines the fragrant 
aroma of Jasmine rice 
and the excellent 
palate quality of 
Japanese rice.  When 
cooked, the grains 
achieve a soft and 
chewy texture 
enhanced further by 
its aroma. 

 High to mid 
income 
segment 

 0.3 kg 
2.0 kg 
5.0 kg 

10.0 kg 
25.0 kg 

 

 

        
Doña Maria 
Jasponica 
Brown Rice 

 The Doña Maria 
Jasponica Brown Rice 
offers the healthy 
benefits of brown rice 
to the Jasmine-
Japanese rice mix.  
High in fiber with no 
cholesterol and fully 
flavored by the natural 
nutty texture of brown 
rice, the variant is an 
alternative for health-
conscious, rice-loving 
Filipino families.  

 High to mid 
income 
segment 

 0.3 kg 
2.0 kg 
5.0 kg 

10.0 kg 
 

 

        
Doña Maria 
Jasponica 
Plus 

 The Doña Maria 
Jasponica Plus is a 
combination of 
Jasponica Brown Rice 
and Jasponica Rice.  
This product 
specifically targets 
customers who are 
still unfamiliar with 
brown rice but would 
like to make the 
change.   

 High to mid 
income 
segment 

 2.0 kg 
5.0 kg 

 

 

        
Doña Maria 
Miponica 
Rice 

 The Doña Maria 
Miponica Rice is a 
combination of the 
clear, translucent, long 

 High to mid 
income 
segment 

 0.3 kg 
2.0 kg 
5.0 kg 

10.0 kg 

 



 

Page 52 

and slender grain 
quality of Milagrosa 
and the exceptional 
palate quality of 
Japanese rice.  Fluffy 
and sticky with a 
pleasant aroma, 
Miponica rice is easy 
to cook and stays soft 
throughout. 

25.0 kg 
 

        
Doña Maria 
Miponica 
Brown Rice 

 The Doña Maria 
Miponica Brown Rice 
is the brown rice 
alternative of the 
Milagrosa and 
Japanese rice mix.  It 
still maintains the long 
grain and sticky 
qualities of the 
Miponica rice. 

 High to mid 
income 
segment 

 2.0 kg 
5.0 kg 

10.0 kg 
 

 

        
Cherry 
Blossom 
Rice 

 The Cherry Blossom 
Rice is a mix of 
straight milled SL 
hybrid rice. 

 Mid income 
segment 

 2.0 kg 
5.0 kg 

25.0 kg 
 

 

Willy Farms 
Sticky 
Jasmine 
Rice 

 The Willy Farms 
Jasmine Rice contains 
the fragrance of 
Jasmine in sticky rice 
and is ideal for Paella, 
Arroz ala Valenciana, 
and Risotto.  

 Mid income 
segment 

 2.0 kg 
5.0 kg 

25.0 kg 

 

Willy Farms 
Long Grain 
Japanese 
Textured 
Rice 

 The Willy Farms 
Japanese Textured 
Rice has the quality 
and texture of 
Japanese rice but in 
long grains. 

 Mid income 
segment 

 2.0 kg 
5.0 kg 

 

 

Willy Farms 
Premium 
Dinorado 
Rice 

 The Willy Farms 
Premium Dinorado 
Rice caters to all types 
of occasions and 
preparations, 

 Mid income 
segment 

 2.0 kg 
5.0 kg 

10.0 kg 
25.0 kg 

 

 
 

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT 
 
The rice consumed or used for cooking is technically the fruit of the rice plant, resulting from a 
sexual cross between male and female organs of the plant. The reproductive parts of rice grow 
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side by side in the flower of a single plant. Given that the plant can pollinate itself, the reproductive 
process can be completed within the floret of the plant almost immediately after the pollen is 
released from the anther, as illustrated in Figure 3 below.  Due to its self-fertilization in 
reproduction, the offspring is genetically similar, hence the term “inbred”.  Inbred rice is also 
referred to as conventional or regular rice. 
 

Figure 3. Inbred Rice from Self-Pollination 
 

    
 

A “hybrid”, on the other hand, is an offspring that comes from cross-breeding two genetically 
different individuals, as seen in Figure 4 below.  To produce hybrid rice, an individual male with 
functional male and female parts, and a created female (disabled male; female functional) are 
cross-pollinated, which results in the female plant bearing hybrid rice seeds as offspring.  Hybrid 
rice seed is the first filial (“F1”) of a cross of two genetically different varieties of rice. 
 

Figure 4. Hybrid Rice from Diverse Parents 
 

Unlike inbreds, hybrid cultivars usually possess unique heterosis or hybrid vigor, which is the 
tendency of hybrids to perform better than each of its parents. It has been proven that offspring 
from more diverse parents produce even higher hybrid vigor. Not only do hybrids fare better than 
their parents, they also outperform inbred varieties in characteristics like seed quality and yield. 
As a result of the outcome of mix breeding different plants, one of the early hybrids adapted in 
the Philippines was named Mestizo rice. 

Parts of male Parts of female Parts of male Parts of female 

Male plant 

(both male 

and female 

parts are 

functional) 

 

 

Female plant 

(disabled 

male; female 

functional) 
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As a biological phenomenon, heterosis is present in most plant species. Currently, it is a major 
factor for increased crop production in most crop and vegetable species such as maize, sorghum, 
pear millet, cotton, sunflower, tomato, eggplants, chilies, onion, and sugar beet. It is widely 
recognized as the main component of the world’s multi-billion dollar agri-business.   
 
Knowledge about the phenomenon of heterosis in rice has been developed for a number of 
decades but its application has been hampered by the self-pollinating characteristics of the plant. 
Since each plant consists of both male and female parts (versus a male plant and a female plant), 
even if one brings together different varieties, pure cross-pollination will not be possible.   
 
In 1972, a group of Chinese scientists led by Professor Yuan Long Ping succeeded in creating a 
genetic cytoplasmic male-sterile (“CMS”) line, a feat similar to placing an off switch on the anther 
of the plant, thereby making its male part sterile while its female part performs its normal function. 
This CMS-line is also called the “A-line” or, more specifically, the female parent. 
 
The reproduction process of the A-line is completed by crossing it with a partner from a B-line.  
The “B-line”, also called the Maintainer line, is similar to A except that its male parts are not sterile 
and its pollen are viable, as illustrated in Figure 3 below. It maintains the original genetic make-
up of the A-line and multiplies A-line as parental lines for commercial hybrid rice seed production.  
 
Using the CMS A-line, the group of Professor Yuan Longping successfully forged a hybrid 
combination using a Restorer line (“R line”), which is genetically different from the A-line.  The R-
line restores the fertility of the pollen in the offspring.  The offspring in turn, is the source of the 
first generation “F1” seed used to plant commercial hybrid rice. 
 

Figure 5. A-line, B-line, and R-line flowers 
 
 

 
 
The hybrid rice seeds produced through the A, B, and R lines are called hybrid rice of 3-line 
methods. The production combinations of 3-line hybrid rice seeds are shown in Figure 6 below, 
where A x B crosses produce A-line parents, then the A x R crosses produce commercial hybrid 
rice F1 seeds with viable pollen, and B and R lines multiply by themselves much like inbred lines. 
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Figure 6. A-Line, B-Line, and R-Line Flowers 

Hybrid seeds are F1 offspring. The seeds harvested from F1 rice are called “F2” and are used for 
consumption only. Unlike the inbred varieties, F2 seeds cannot be replanted again due to lack of 
uniformity and productivity. As such, farmers have to purchase F1 seeds every cropping season. 
 
In the past three years, the Company has spent a total of approximately P655 million on its 
research and development activities.  These costs were incurred for the development and further 
enhancement of the Company’s existing and commercially viable hybrid rice seeds. Aside from 
SL-7H, SL8H, and SL-9H, the Company is developing the following varieties: SLs 5, 11, 12, 16, 
18 and 19.  
 
The latter are hybrid rice seeds that have been initially determined as viable having been gone 
through several testing and experimentation stages that stabilized the parental lines. Currently, 
the Company is preparing for bigger volume of production of parental lines for further 
enhancement prior to commercial production to make the hybrid seeds tolerant to tropical 
conditions and it followed the same processes involved in the development of SLs 7, 8 and 9. 
 
PRODUCTION PROCESS 

 
Hybrid rice seed production is more complicated, as compared to inbred seed production. 
Expertise on rice cultivars and extensive knowledge on breeding and plant anatomy are extremely 
important in high-yield production, not to mention the proper crop management and fair weather 
condition.  The researchers and scientists personally train the farmers that are involved in the 
preparation, planting, and harvesting of the hybrid rice seeds.  As discussed in the previous 
section, the process begins with the process of crossing the A-line and B-line.  This produces an 
A-line offspring that is to be crossed once again with the R-line, which results in the F1 seeds to 
be sold and planted by the Company.  Due to the multiple breeding processes, two planting 
seasons are required to produce hybrid seeds. 
 
The process of producing the seeds begins with the normal land preparation activities such as 
irrigation and cleaning.  The A-line and B-line, or A-line and R-line seedlings are then planted in 
rows adjacent to each other.  This allows the different lines to breed each other through air 
pollination.  As the seedlings grow, certain fertilizers are applied to ensure the plant’s health and 
maximum seed yield.  To illustrate further, the general steps in hybrid rice seed production are 
outlined in the table below.   

A Line B Line R Line 

F1-Unviable Pollen F1-Viable Pollen 

A Line B Line R Line 

F1-Unviable Pollen F1-Viable Pollen 

A Line B Line R Line 

F1-Unviable Pollen F1-Viable Pollen 

A Line B Line R Line 

F1-Unviable Pollen F1-Viable Pollen 
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Table 9. Step by Step Process in Seed and Rice Propagation per Hectare 

Steps 
Duration (Hours) 

Number of Workers Hybrid 
Seed 

Hybrid 
Rice 

Land Preparation    
Dike Cleaning & Preparation 8 8 5 
Canal Preparation 8 8 2 
Irrigation 8 8 1 
Plowing 8 8 1 
Harrowing 8 8 1 
Rat & Snail Control 8 8 1 
Finishing 8 8 1 
Seed Bed Preparation    
Canal Cleaning 8 4 5 
Lot Leveling 8 4 3 
Seed Bed Plotting 8 4 3 
Pre- Germination    
Soaking 8 8 1 
Incubation 8 8 1 
Sowing 8 8 1 
Chemical Application 8 8 1 
Transplanting    
Pulling of Seedlings 8 5.5 10 
Distribution of Seedlings 8 5.5 10 
Planting of Seedlings 8 5.5 25 
Chemical & Insecticide 
Application 

8 
5.5 

2 

Fertilizer Application 8 5.5 2 
Water Management 8 5.5 1 
Replanting 8 5.5 15 
Weeding 8 5.5 2 
Supplementary Pollination    
Pollination 8 - 2 
Roughing 8 - 15 
GA-3 Application 8 - 3 
Harvesting / Processing    
Cutting 8 8 45 
Threshing 8 8 10 
Drying 3 8 10 
Blowing / Cleaning 3 8 10 
Packing 3 8 2 
Hauling 3 8 10 
Storage    
Distribution  to dealers    
Purchase by Farmers    

           Source: Information provided by management 
 
Hybrid rice seed cultivation requires approximately 30% more labor or approximately 100 days 
per hectare.  This is due to the supplementary procedures taken to produce the hybrid seeds.  
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Additional processes include pollination, roughing, and growth enhancer application.  Similarly, 
hybrid rice propagation as increased yield implies an increase in the labor force requirement, 
especially during the harvest seasons. 
 
However, the difference in yield entails higher income for the farmer, which may cover the 
additional costs to plant and harvest hybrid rice.  Notably, the use of hybrid seeds generates net 
income per hectare of P166,320, more than four times that of inbred seeds as shown in the table 
below. Approximately forty percent (40%) of seed production volume is done through contract 
farming under similar mechanics in the contract farming of the rice business as discussed below. 
 

Table 10. Economic Comparison of Hybrid and Inbred Seeds 

     Yield per hectare (kgs.) 
Hybrid Inbred  

8,000 10,500 13,000 5,000 
(Low-end) (Average) (High-end) (High-end) 

In Philippine pesos (P)     

 Sales price per kg. 17 17 17 17 

  Total Sales 136,000 178,500 221,000 85,000 
 

Production Costs     

     Labor Cost 30,910 30,910 30,910 23,275 

Seedbed preparation and sowing 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 

      Land preparation 4,200 4,200 4,200 4,200 

          Pulling of seedlings 1,500 1,500 1,500 1,500 

          Transplanting 3,500 3,500 3,500 3,500 

          Harvesting 11,760 11,760 11,760 7,350 

          Hauling 1,600 1,600 1,600 1,000 

          Caretaking 7,350 7,350 7,350 4,725 

     Material Cost 21,070 21,470 22,070 19,270 

          Cost of seeds 4,500 4,500 4,500 3,300 

          Fertilizers 13,500 13,500 13,500 13,500 

          Pesticides  1,470 1,470 1,470 1,470 

          Sacks and twines 1,600 2,000 2,600 1,000 

     Other cost 1,700 1,700 1,700 1,700 

          Irrigation fee 1,700 1,700 1,700 1,700 

Total Costs 53,680 54,080 54,680 44,245 

Net Income  82,320 124,420 166,320 40,755 

Return on Investment 153% 230% 304% 92% 
    Source: Information provided by management 
 
The Company engages contract farming for the premium rice production.  SLAC provides SL-7H 
and SL-9H seeds to contracted farmers (who own parcels of lands) together with the necessary 
fertilizers, pesticides, and other farm inputs.  In other cases, the Company provides, instead, 
financing to contracted farmers for the expected farming costs.  The entire farm produce will 
eventually be bought back by the Company at the prevailing market price less costs of inputs 
provided. 
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Figure 7. Contract Farming Business Model 

 
 
As the Company production process is fully integrated, from research and development to 
producing premium rice varieties, the Company does not need as much raw materials since it 
relies mainly on internal operations.  The Company is able to mill and process its SL-7H and SL-
9H hybrid rice varieties into its premium rice products.  Occasionally, the Company procures some 
items such as commercially available pesticides or fertilizers from different companies, and is not 
dependent on one source. 
 
MARKETING, SALES AND DISTRIBUTION 
 

Hybrid Seeds 
 
SL-8H seeds are currently commercially available and accessible to farmers nationwide.  Aside 
from dealers and the Irrigator’s Association, the seeds are also available through the MAO, who 
are currently responsible for the distribution of the seeds to the farmers.  The Company has 
undertaken a Memorandum of Agreement which allows the MAO to act as its intermediary with 
the farmers. 
 
Under the agreement, the MAO is required to provide to both the Company and the Department 
of Agriculture a roster of farmers to whom the seeds were distributed.  The list of farmers serves 
as the basis of both the Company’s deliveries and the subsidy to be released by the Department 
of Agriculture.  The farmers transact solely with the MAO, which in turn collects the payments 
arising from the purchase of hybrid seeds.  
 
Farmers may also opt to obtain the SL-8H seeds from local dealers with which the Company has 
contracts with.  There is also a need for dealers because certain areas such as Nueva Ecija and 
Cagayan are not eligible for the subsidies.  As a result the supply of seeds to the farmers in these 
areas is not monitored by the MAOs, but instead must be coursed through dealers.  
 
The Company’s supply of hybrid seeds is currently located in its warehouse facilities in Laguna 
and Davao.  The seeds are stored in large refrigerators that prolong its shelf life and prevent the 
growth of mites residing in the seeds.  A fleet of delivery trucks deliver the seeds to the different 
MAOs for distribution to the farmers. 
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Figure 8. Distribution Chain

 
 
To increase farmers’ knowledge on the product, the Company conducts several marketing 
activities in order to increase awareness for its products.  The Company has released radio 
advertisements to promote the use of SL-8H.   It also conducts and participates in harvest festivals 
not only to promote the product, but to also provide technical briefings, explain the process of 
procuring the seeds, and planting instructions. 
 
International Business Development 
 
The SL-8H hybrid rice seed of the Company was specifically developed for tropical countries such 
as those in South East Asia.  Following its success as a high-yielding variety here in the 
Philippines, the Company began testing the viability of SL-8H in neighboring countries. SL-8H 
also produced high yields in countries such as Indonesia, Bangladesh, Myanmar, Papua New 
Guinea and Vietnam, which prompted the Company to export its parental line hybrid rice seeds 
to these countries.  
 
In those markets, the Company partners with government-affiliated agencies to roll-out the 
program. Agreements with these agencies involve hybrid rice seed production.  Early this year, 
the Company sealed a partnership with Calmwind Pty. Ltd. in Papua New Guinea for the 
development of SL-12H, SL-8H and SL-18H. In a similar pursuit, the Company signed a 
Memorandum of Agreement (MOA) with the state-run Bangladesh Agricultural Development 
Corp. for a seed production collaboration. The Company previously worked with the Bangladeshi 
government for a seed production program. This recently signed MOA will strengthen said 
partnership by extending the program to 2019. 
 
International sales comprise 5%, 10%, and 10% of the Company’s hybrid rice seed revenue in 
2015, 2014, and 2013, respectively.   
 
Premium Rice 
 
The Doña Maria, Cherry Blossom, and Willy Farms rice products are distributed through retail 
stores, wholesalers, dealers, hotels, restaurants, and cafes.  The retail stores, including 
supermarkets, groceries, and price clubs, make up about 80% of the Company’s sales revenues.  
Wholesalers and dealers, who distribute the rice products to smaller channels such as drug 
stores, department stores, and market stalls, account for 10% of sales revenues. Lastly, the 
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Company also provides rice to hotels, restaurants, and cafes, known collectively as “HORECA”.  
The HORECA market comprises around 10% of the sales revenues.  
 
COMPETITION 

 

Table 11. Competitive Space and Price Points 

Company Variety Pack Size SRP Cost/kl Per ha. 

Bayer Arize Bigante Plus 3kg 965.00 321.67 4,825.00 

 Arize Bigante (TEJ) 5kg 1,376.00 275.20 4,128.00 

 Arize H 64  5kg 1,376.00 275.20 4,128.00 

Pioneer Phb 77,79,81 3kg 850.00 283.33 4,250.00 

Syngenta Frontline Gold 5kg 1,400.00 280.00 4,200.00 

SL Agritech SL-8H   5KG 1,400.00 280.00 4,200.00 
  18KG 4,800.00 266.67 4,800.00 

            Source: Information provided by management 
 
For its hybrid rice seed products, the Company faces competition from seven other hybrid rice 
seed varieties present in the Philippine market.  These varieties are Phb77 by Pioneer Company, 
Bigante by Bayer Philippines, and Frontline Gold by Syngenta. Market data regarding hybrid rice 
seeds is not available, but the Company estimates that 80% of the market is using SL-8H.  The 
Company differentiates its seeds business by providing farmers with the advantage of higher yield 
and cheaper cost of production. 
 
In the Php450 billion market of rice, the Company estimates that only Php45 billion belongs to the 
premium packed rice market.  The Company believes that its main competitors are the products 
of other companies which produce premium rice varieties such as Jasmine rice, Japanese rice, 
Thai Jasmine rice, Brown rice, Red rice, Long grain rice, and High-fiber rice.  Brands that produce 
these varieties include Sunnywood, LH Cereal Corp. (Vita Rice), Northern Luzon (Farmer’s 
Choice), Worthgold, and Qualigrains, among others. The Company believes that its premium rice 
business provides for consistent quality supported by monitoring and control systems that were 
ISO-certified.  
 

COMPETITIVE STRENGTHS 
 

Innovation of high yielding rice technology 
 
Through its researchers and scientists, the Company has successfully developed several hybrid 
rice seeds that are either sold or used for the Company’s premium rice products.  SL-8H, the 
Company’s premier hybrid rice seed product, has been distributed around the country and has 
proven to be a true high-yield variety, acclimatized to Philippine conditions.  The Company has 
marketed its SL-8H seeds nationwide and in other countries while varieties of competitors are still 
on the testing and development stages.  The Company has also developed SL-7H and SL-9H, 
which are varieties with qualities comparable to Japanese, Milagrosa, and Jasmine rice. 
 
Fully integrated operations 
 
The Company began as a private agricultural research facility, and has now grown into a fully 
integrated hybrid rice seed and premium rice producer.   It has the facilities for research and 
development, seed production, rice production, and packaging, and the resources for planning, 
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marketing, and sales.  The Company is able to efficiently conduct its research and development 
activities in Oogong, Laguna, whilst its hybrid rice seed and premium rice production is spread 
out to its different farms and contract growers.  Marketing and sales of both the hybrid rice seeds 
and the premium rice are executed by separate teams. Hybrid rice seeds are marketed to farmers 
and local cooperatives through seminars and harvest festivals around the Philippines.  On the 
other hand, the team for the premium rice promotes its products to the different stores, groceries, 
hotels, and restaurants. 
 
Attractive growth prospects 
 
The Philippines continues to import rice in order to satisfy its national demand.  As the population 
of the country continues to grow, the demand for rice is estimated to continue to increase as well.  
The increase in rice consumption per capita is estimated at 134.7 kg/year in 2010 to 148.9 kg/year 
in 2014, which translates to a consumption of 13.0 million MT of rice in 2010 and to a 16.1 million 
MT in 2014.  Local varieties are currently unable to fulfill demand of rice, and coupled with 
diminishing rice fields due to industrialization, the increasing demand for rice without concomitant 
increase in supply continues to be a national problem.  The Company presents a possible solution 
to this problem through the introduction of hybrid rice.  Being the only Company to achieve 
national success in marketing hybrid rice, the Company’s products may lead the Philippines into 
self-sufficiency in rice. 
 
Strong market position 
 
The Company currently dominates the market for hybrid rice, as it has proprietary rights over 
several high-yielding varieties of hybrid rice seeds.  The Company estimates that SL-8H currently 
captures 80% of the market share for hybrid rice.  Competitors have yet to introduce a variety that 
can compete with the yield of SL-8H.  The Company also employs aggressive and innovative 
marketing strategies, such as harvest festivals, seminars, technical farm demonstrations and 
contests, to further expand its market share.  Competitors may find it difficult to enter the Philippine 
market for hybrid rice seeds, as the development of the products require extensive research that 
is both expensive and time consuming.  
 
BUSINESS STRATEGY 
 
Increase brand awareness 
 
As of the date of this prospectus, the Company has developed three hybrid rice seed varieties 
and nine premium rice products.  Both the hybrid rice seeds and premium rice products are 
marketed aggressively throughout the Philippines.  The SL-8H hybrid rice is being marketed 
nationwide to farmers through seminars, harvest festivals, and contests.  Doña Maria premium 
rice on the other hand is brought to the market through sampling booths, recipes, food kiosks, 
and television advertisements. The Company intends to continue its marketing efforts to further 
strengthen its brand and to attract a larger market for its products.   
 
Maintain its product leadership 
 
Based on Company data, the Company’s hybrid rice seeds account for 80% of the total market 
share of hybrid rice, making it the current leader for hybrid rice seeds.  The Company intends to 
maintain this through the development of better hybrid rice seed products and continuous 
marketing activities.  Despite having the majority of the hybrid rice market, the Company would 
like to expand the overall market for hybrid rice seeds.  This can be achieved through the 
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continuous expansion of the Company’s market reach in the different provinces of the Philippines.  
The Company also intends to strengthen its position in the premium rice market by capturing a 
larger share of the high to mid-income rice consumers. 
 
Improve customer and market knowledge 
 
The Company intends to take advantage of the increasing sophistication or changing lifestyles of 
its hybrid rice seed and premium rice customers.  Farmers are slowly shying away from traditional 
methods of farming and are willing to try other products to improve their output.  Farmers who 
have tried hybrid rice seeds of the Company have seen the benefits of investing in high-yielding 
varieties.  The Company is aware that the willingness of farmers to use new products is 
sometimes hindered by existing traditions or Government policies.  By conducting seminars, the 
Company is made aware of the issues of farmers, and thus is able to educate them on the best 
solutions.  The Company is also aware of the Government policies and programs governing rice 
production, and thus ensures that farmers are educated on these as well. 
 
The tastes and preferences of Filipino consumers are constantly changing.  The target markets 
of the Company, the high to mid-income consumers, are becoming more sophisticated and are 
more particular on the products they purchase.  As they become more quality, health, and price 
conscious, the Company intends to provide more premium rice products that would satisfy their 
needs.  This would include products and recipes that are healthier, with better palate quality, and 
are worth their value for money.   
 
Development of new products 
 
The Company has developed several varieties of hybrid rice seeds, but is continuing its research 
and development activities to further develop better products.  Research is simultaneously done 
for both the Company’s hybrid rice seeds and premium rice products.  Through the utilization of 
the Company’s researchers and scientists, who have been trained by Professor Yuan Longping 
of China, the Company continues to develop new varieties of rice to expand the Company’s brand 
portfolio.  The Company aims to develop high-yielding rice products with good planting and palate 
quality.   
 
Expansion of market share 
 
The Company has employed several marketing strategies to increase its market share in its seed 
and rice business.  For its seed business, the Company periodically introduces the products to 
farmers in the Philippines through seminars and demonstration activities.  Farmers are then 
encouraged to continue the use of hybrid seeds through harvest festivals and contests.  For its 
rice products, the Company currently employs the use of television commercials, booths, 
technical farm demonstration, and sampling to further introduce its products to the market.  The 
Company has also developed the brands “Doña Maria” and “Cherry Blossom” to further 
distinguish itself from its competitors in the market.  The Company aims to continue these 
marketing strategies to gain a larger share of the seed and rice markets. 
 

NON-DEPENDENCE ON A SINGLE CUSTOMER 
 
In its three businesses, hybrid rice seeds, international business development, and premium rice, 
the Company’s sales and growth is not dependent on a single customer.  The Company employs 
different channels of distribution in order for its products to be known to the market, both here in 
the Philippines and in other countries.   
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The Company has several products in its pipeline for all three businesses.  These, however, are 
still in the development stages and have no set launch dates as of the date of this Prospectus. 
 

TRANSACTIONS WITH OR DEPENDENCE ON RELATED PARTIES  
 

Related party transactions are made under the normal course of business. Parties are considered 
to be related if one party has the ability, directly or indirectly, to control the other party or exercise 
significant influence over the other party in making financial and operating decisions and the 
parties are subject to common control or common significant influence. Related parties are 
corporate entities that are owned and controlled by the same owner of the Company (e.g. Sterling 
Paper Products Enterprises Inc. (SPPEI) and Mart One Supermarket), and neither a subsidiary 
or affiliate of the Company. 
 
In the regular course of business, the Company’s significant transactions with related parties 
include the following: 
 

a. As of May 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013, the Company, in its normal course of business, has 
outstanding operational non-interest bearing advances to SPPEI which aggregated to 
P15,651,473, P18,473,816 and P12,455,704, respectively, and is payable within one (1) 
year 

b. At fiscal year ending May 31, 2015, the Company has outstanding receivables arising from 
sale of seeds and rice products with Mica-Genero Abundans Foundation, Inc. 
(P13,125,700), Dona Maria Rice Surprise Corporation (P1,996,704), and Mart One 
(P263,836). The foregoing entities have common shareholders with the Company.  

c. At fiscal year ending May 31, 2015, the Company has outstanding payables arising from 
purchase of office supplies with Central Bookstore (P265,233). The foregoing entities have 
common shareholders with the Company.  
 

Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties 
 
Outstanding balances at year-end are unsecured, interest-free and settlement occurs in cash. 
There have been no guarantees provided or received for any related party receivables or 
payables. 
 
The Company has not recognized any impairment losses on amounts due from related parties for 
the years ended May 31, 2015, 20142014 and 2013. This assessment is undertaken each 
financial year through a review of the financial position of the related party and the market in which 
the related party operates. 
 
INTELLECTUAL PROPERTIES  
 
As of the date of this Prospectus, the Company has registered the following trademarks and/or 
copyrights with relevant authorities: 
 

DATE OF 
REGISTRATION 

TITLE OF WORK  Principal Terms 
and Expiration 
Dates 

February 16, 2005 Copyright Registration 
and Deposit of SL- 8H 
Hybrid Rice Club- 

Created and 
Published: October 
12, 2004 

Lifetime of the 
author and for fifty 
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Busog Yaman Ka 
Dito! (National 
Commission for 
Culture and the Arts) 

(50) years after 
his death. 

January 10, 2005 Copyright Registration 
and Deposit of Dona 
Maria Jasponica Rice 
(National Commission 
for Culture and the 
Arts) 

Created and 
Published: October 
28, 2004 

Lifetime of the 
author and for fifty 
(50) years after 
his death. 

May 21, 2005 Trademark: Doña 
Maria (Intellectual 
Property Office) 

For rice, corn, grains 
of all kinds, fresh 
fruits, natural plants 
and flowers, live 
animals, seeds, 
vegetables, 
horticultural growths. 

Until October 1, 
2021 unless 
sooner cancelled 
in accordance 
with laws and 
regulations. 

May 13, 2006 Trademark of Yuan 
Long Ping with 
representation of rice 
stalk and grain within 
an arc. (Bureau of 
Trademarks) 

For rice, corn, grains 
of all kinds, and other 
agricultural farm 
products, seeds, 
vegetables, and 
horticultural growths. 

Ten (10) years; 
until May 13, 
2016. 

November 20, 2005 Trademark: stylized 
Jolina (Bureau of 
Trademarks) 

For agricultural 
chemical (insecticide) 
for the control of 
major insect pests of 
rice, corn, mango, 
tobacco, cotton, 
cocoa, onion, tomato, 
watermelon and 
mungbean. 

Ten (10) years 
from November 
20, 2005 unless 
sooner cancelled 
in accordance 
with laws and 
regulations. 

February 10, 2005 Trademark: Planergy 
(Bureau of 
Trademarks) 

For rice, corn, 
sorghum, wheat, 
millet, barley, fresh 
corn, sweet corn, 
kernels plus cob 
without husk; and 
other agricultural farm 
products namely root 
and tuber vegetables, 
bulb vegetables, leafy 
vegetables, brassica 
leafy vegetables, 
legume vegetables, 
fruiting vegetables 
and cucurbits 
vegetables. 

Ten (10) years 
from February 10, 
2005 unless 
sooner cancelled 
in accordance 
with laws and 
regulations. A 
renewal has been 
applied for but is 
pending approval. 
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December 18, 2005 Trademark: stylized 
Zukol (Bureau of 
Trademarks) 

For agricultural 
chemical 
(molluscicide) for the 
control of golden 
apple snails in rice. 

Ten (10) years; 
until December 
18, 2016. 

December 18, 2006 Trademark: stylized 
Warak (Bureau of 
Trademarks) 

For agricultural 
chemical (insecticide) 
for the control of 
chewing and sucking 
insect pests of rice, 
corn, tobacco, and 
other crops namely, 
cucurbits, onions, 
legumes. 

Ten (10) years; 
until December 
18, 2016. 

October 2, 2006 Trademark: SL- 8H 
(Bureau of 
Trademarks) 

For rice. Ten (10) years; 
until October 2, 
2016. 

October 2, 2006 Trademark: SL- 7H 
(Bureau of 
Trademarks) 

For rice. Ten (10) years; 
until October 2, 
2016. 

September 2, 2004 Registration of 
‘Mestiso 6’ (Oryza 
sativa) (Bureau of 
Plant Industry) 

  

December 15, 2006 Certificate of Plant 
Variety Protection to 
SL-8R (Bureau of 
Plant Industry) 

 Twenty (20) years 
from December 
15, 2006, unless 
sooner voided or 
cancelled as  
provided in the 
law and 
regulations. 

December 15, 2006 Certificate of Plant 
Variety Protection to 
SL-8H (Bureau of 
Plant Industry) 

 Twenty (20) years 
from December 
15, 2006, unless 
sooner voided or 
cancelled as  
provided in the 
law and 
regulations. 

December 15, 2006 Certificate of Plant 
Variety Protection to 
SL-1B (Bureau of 
Plant Industry) 

 Twenty (20) years 
from December 
15, 2006, unless 
sooner voided or 
cancelled as 
provided in the 
law and 
regulations. 

July 13, 2007 Certificate of Plant 
Variety Protection to 

 Twenty (20) years 
from July 13, 
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SL-1A (Bureau of 
Plant Industry) 

2007, unless 
sooner voided or 
cancelled as 
provided in the 
law and 
regulations. 

December 18, 2008 Certificate of Plant 
Variety Protection to 
SL-9H(Bureau of 
Plant Industry, 
Philippines) 

 Twenty (20) years 
from December 
18, 2008, unless 
sooner voided or 
cancelled as 
provided in the 
law and 
regulations. 

December 18, 2008 Certificate of Plant 
Variety Protection to 
SL-7R(Bureau of 
Plant Industry, 
Philippines) 

 Twenty (20) years 
from December 
18, 2008, unless 
sooner voided or 
cancelled as 
provided in the 
law and 
regulations. 

December 15, 2011 Provisional Certificate 
of Plant Variety 
Protection to SL-11R 
(Bureau of Plant 
Industry, Philippines) 

  

December 15, 2011 Provisional Certificate 
of Plant Variety 
Protection to SL-18R 
(Bureau of Plant 
Industry, Philippines) 

  

December 15, 2011 Provisional Certificate 
of Plant Variety 
Protection to SL-11H 
(Bureau of Plant 
Industry, Philippines) 

  

October 9, 2009 Certificate of Plant 
Varieties Protection to 
SL-1A(Centre of Plant 
Varieties Protection, 
Indonesia) 

 Twenty (20) years 
from October 9, 
2009, unless 
sooner voided or 
cancelled as 
provided in the 
law and 
regulations. 

October 9, 2009 Certificate of Plant 
Varieties Protection to 
SL-1B(Centre of Plant 
Varieties Protection, 
Indonesia) 

 Twenty (20) years 
from October 9, 
2009, unless 
sooner voided or 
cancelled as 
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provided in the 
law and 
regulations. 

October 9, 2009 Certificate of Plant 
Varieties Protection to 
SL-8R(Centre of Plant 
Varieties Protection, 
Indonesia) 

 Twenty (20) years 
from October 9, 
2009, unless 
sooner voided or 
cancelled as 
provided in the 
law and 
regulations. 

October 9, 2009 Certificate of Plant 
Varieties Protection to 
SL-8SHS(Centre of 
Plant Varieties 
Protection, Indonesia) 

 Twenty (20) years 
from October 9, 
2009, unless 
sooner voided or 
cancelled as 
provided in the 
law and 
regulations. 

September 24, 2007 Trademark: Cherry 
Blossom Rice With 
The (Intellectual 
Property Office) 

 Until May 2, 2017 
unless sooner 
cancelled in 
accordance with 
laws and 
regulations. 

October 24, 2013 Trademark: Doña 
Maria Coco Shake 
(Intellectual Property 
Office) 

 Until April 18, 
2023 unless 
sooner cancelled 
in accordance 
with laws and 
regulations. 

November 14, 2013 Trademark: Doña 
Maria Rice Pao 
(Intellectual Property 
Office) 

 Until June 24, 
2023 unless 
sooner cancelled 
in accordance 
with laws and 
regulations. 

December 19, 2013 Trademark: Doña 
Maria Rice Surprise 
(Intellectual Property 
Office) 

 Until April 18, 
2023 unless 
sooner cancelled 
in accordance 
with laws and 
regulations. 

September 10, 2007 Trademark: Gintong 
Butil & Device 
(Intellectual Property 
Office) 

 Until January 18, 
2016 unless 
sooner cancelled 
in accordance 
with laws and 
regulations. 
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November 10, 2005 Trademark: Jasponica 
(Intellectual Property 
Office) 

 Until November 
10, 2015 unless 
sooner cancelled 
in accordance 
with laws and 
regulations. 
Renewal has 
been applied for 
but is pending 
approval. 

October 1, 2007 Trademark: Kristina 
(Intellectual Property 
Office) 

 Until January 16, 
2017 unless 
sooner cancelled 
in accordance 
with laws and 
regulations. 

August 28, 2005 Trademark: Logo 
(Registration No. 
5626) (Intellectual 
Property Office) 

 Until August 3, 
2021 unless 
sooner cancelled 
in accordance 
with laws and 
regulations. 

March 24, 2011 Trademark: Miponica 
(Intellectual Property 
Office) 

 Until November 
22, 2020 unless 
sooner cancelled 
in accordance 
with laws and 
regulations. 

October 2, 2006 Trademark: SL-7H 
(Intellectual Property 
Office) 

 Until December 
16, 2013 unless 
sooner cancelled 
in accordance 
with laws and 
regulations. 
Renewal has 
been applied for 
but is pending 
approval. 

October 2, 2006 Trademark: SL-8H 
(Intellectual Property 
Office) 

 Until December 
16, 2013 unless 
sooner cancelled 
in accordance 
with laws and 
regulations. 
Renewal has 
been applied for 
but is pending 
approval. 
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April 14, 2013 Trademark: SL-9H 
(Intellectual Property 
Office) 

 Until April 14, 
2023 unless 
sooner cancelled 
in accordance 
with laws and 
regulations. 

May 13, 2006 Trademark: Sterling 
(Intellectual Property 
Office) 

 Until November 
26, 2011 unless 
sooner cancelled 
in accordance 
with laws and 
regulations. 
Renewal has 
been applied for 
but is pending 
approval. 

November 20, 2005 Trademark: Stylized 
Shock With 
(Intellectual Property 
Office) 

 Until July 8, 2014 
unless sooner 
cancelled in 
accordance with 
laws and 
regulations. 
Renewal has 
been applied for 
but is pending 
approval. 

August 30, 2012 Trademark: Willy and 
W Device (Intellectual 
Property Office) 

 Until May 16, 
2022 unless 
sooner cancelled 
in accordance 
with laws and 
regulations. 

September 2, 2004 Registration of ’SL- 
8H’ (Oryza sativa) 
(Bureau of Plant 
Industry) 

  

August 11, 2015 Trademark: Doña 
Maria (US PTO) 

 August 11, 2025 
Status: 
Registered 

August 11, 2015 Trademark: Jasponica 
(US PTO) 

 August 11, 
2025Status: 
Registered 

August 11, 2015 Trademark: Miponica 
(US PTO) 

 August 11, 2025 
Status: 
Registered 

February 11, 2014 Trademark: Jasponica 
(SG Registrar of TM) 

 Until February 11, 
2024 
Status: 
Registered 
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February 11, 2014 Trademark: Miponica 
(SG Registrar of TM) 

 Until February 11, 
2024 
Status: 
Registered 

June 5, 2014 Trademark: Jasponica 
(UAE Ministry of 
Economy TM 
Department) 

 February 12, 2024 
Status: 
Registered 

June 5, 2014 Trademark: Miponica 
(UAE Ministry of 
Economy TM 
Department) 

 February 12, 2024 
Status: 
Registered 

June 5, 2014 Trademark: Dona 
Maria (UAE Ministry 
of Economy TM 
Department) 

 February 12, 2024 
Status: 
Registered 

Sep. 16, 2014 Trademark: Dona 
Maria (Taiwan IPO) 

 Sep. 15, 2024 
Status: 
Registered 

Sep. 16, 2014 Trademark: 
Jasponica(Taiwan 
IPO) 

 Sep. 15, 2024 
Status: 
Registered 

Sep. 16, 2014 Trademark: 
Miponica(Taiwan IPO) 

 Sep. 15, 2024 
Status: 
Registered 

April 28, 2015 Trademark: Dona 
Maria (China TO) 

 April 27, 2025 
Status: 
Registered 

April 28, 2015 Trademark: Miponica 
(China TO) 

 April 27, 2025 
Status: 
Registered 

April 28, 2015 Trademark: 
Jasponica(China TO) 

 April 27, 2025 
Status: 
Registered 

January 30, 2015 Trademark: Dona 
Maria (Korean IPO) 

 January 31, 2025 
Status: 
Registered 

January 30, 2015 Trademark: Jasponica 
(Korean IPO) 

 January 31, 2025 
Status: 
Registered 

January 30, 2015 Trademark: Miponica 
(Korean IPO) 

 January 31, 2025 
Status: 
Registered 

February 10, 2014 Trademark: Miponica 
(HK IPO) 

 February 9, 2024 
Status: 
Registered 

February 10, 2014 Trademark: Jasponica 
(HK IPO) 

 February 9, 2024 
Status: 
Registered 
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February 10, 2014 Trademark: Dona 
Maria (HK IPO) 

 February 9, 2024 
Status: 
Registered 

 
 
GOVERNMENT APPROVALS AND PERMITS 
 
All government approvals and permits issued by the appropriate government agencies or bodies 
which are material and necessary to conduct the business and operations of the Company, were 
obtained by SL Agritech and are in full force and effect. 
 
The Company's operations and products are subject to standards and regulations set forth by the 
Government and regulatory agencies (DA and NFA), which may introduce new rules and policies 
or implement changes in the enforcement of existing laws and regulations, which could directly 
affect the operations and profitability of the Company and/or may be costly to comply with. 
Although the Company endeavors to maintain compliance with the required operational licenses, 
accreditations, and certifications, there can be no assurance that the aforementioned agencies 
will not introduce more stringent rules and regulations in the future. These and other legal or 
regulatory changes could materially and adversely affect the Company's financial condition and 
results of operations 
 
The table below lists the Company’s regulatory permits: 
 

REGULATORY PERMITS ISSUE DATE EXPIRY DATE 

National Food Authority 
Grains Business License- Retailing 

and Wholesaling 

July 14, 2015 February  29, 2016 

National Food Authority 
Grains Business License- 

Exporting 

February 6, 2015 December 31, 2015 

 National Food Authority 
Grains Business License-Importing 

February 6, 2015 December 31, 2015 

Department of Environment and 
Natural Resources 

Environment Compliance 
Certificate  

(Talavera, Nueva Ecija) 
Drying, Milling, and Warehousing 

January 7, 2011  

Laguna Lake Development 
Authority 

CLEARANCE 
Warehouse and Rice Mill Facility 

Project  

 
May 8, 2008 

 

Laguna Lake Development 
Authority 

CERTIFICATE OF ENVIRONMENT 
COMPLIANCE COMMITMENT 

May 8, 2008  
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EFFECT OF EXISTING OR PROBABLE GOVERNMENT REGULATIONS ON THE 
COMPANY’S BUSINESS 
 
The DENR is the primary agency responsible for the conservation, management, development, 
and proper use of the country's environment and natural resources and the implementation of 
laws and regulations pertaining thereto. It also has the authority to promulgate additional 
regulations of its own. 
 
The DA on the other hand is responsible for the promotion of agricultural development. The DA 
provides the policy framework and support services needed to effect its mandate. 
 
Finally, the NFA is an agency of the Philippine government under the Office of the President 
responsible for ensuring food security. The NFA is also mandated to ensure stability of rice supply 
and its prices. 
 
The Company incurs expenses for the purpose of complying with the law that consists primarily 
of payments for regulatory fees to these agencies.  Such fees are standard in the industry and 
are minimal.  Costs related to securing the Environmental Compliance Certificates have no 
material impact on the financial position of the Company. 
 
The operations of the Company is also monitored and to a certain extent, restricted by these 
agencies. The Company must always abide by the rules and programs set forth by said agencies.  
To the best of the Company’s knowledge, it has complied with all applicable environmental laws. 
 
EMPLOYEES 
 

As of the date of this Prospectus, SLAC employs 122 officers and 249 rank-and-file employees. 
Presently, SLAC has no existing collective bargaining agreement with its employees. 
Furthermore, SLAC employees are not part of any organized labor organizations. The Company 
has no plans to increase the number of employees for the next 12 months. 
 
The Company has no collective bargaining agreements with its employees and there are no 
organized labor organizations in the Company. The Company complies with the minimum 
compensation and benefits standards pursuant to Philippine law. The Company has not 
experienced any disruptive labor disputes, strikes or threats of strikes and the Company believes 
that its relationship with its employees in general is satisfactory. 
 
PLANS AND PROGRAMS 
 
The Company is expanding its hybrid rice production and strengthening its organization to 
effectively manage the high growth in demand.  The Company intends to achieve this through: 
 

 Capital expenditures – for the use of procuring production and delivery equipment, cold 
storage, bulk grain storage facility and build warehouses 

 Manpower complement – to employ more researchers and scientists  

 Research and development – continuous research and development of commercially 
viable hybrid rice seed varieties.  Research on the market of premium rice, and to develop 
products depending on market needs. 
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 Sales and marketing – to increase its current number of employees to strengthen its sales 
and marketing group for both hybrid rice seeds and premium rice. 

 

PROPERTIES 
 
As of the date of this Prospectus, the Company owns three (3) parcels of land where the 
Company’s existing production facilities are also found.  
 
Bagong Silang, Talavera, Nueva Ecija 
 
A parcel of land situated in Bagong Silang, Talavera, Nueva Ecija containing an area of of 6 
hectares with at least 35 meters wide as frontage. Said area has rice milling facilities and a 
warehouse. The Company will also put up cold storage and bulk grain storage facilities in the said 
area.  
 
Barangay. Oogong, Santa Cruz, Laguna 
 
A parcel of land situated in Barangay Oogong, Santa Cruz, Laguna containing an area of 41 
hectares with 150 meters wide as frontage.  The development with a total area of 7,508 square 
meters consists of rice mill, warehouses, motor pool, sun drying area and rice production area.  
The proposed research center will also be constructed within the area. 
 
Lupon, Davao Oriental 
 
A parcel of land situated Bagumbayan, Lupon, Davao Oriental containing an area of 15,998 
square meters. The Company’s production facility in the said area consists of sun drying area, 
office and processing facilities, warehouse, staff house, fumigation area and covered court.  
 
Some of the real estate properties in Talavera, Nueva Ecija and Santa Cruz, Laguna referred to 
above are the subject of real estate mortgage in favor of certain bank creditors.  
 
Leased Properties 
 
Aside from the properties owned by the Company, it also leases agricultural land in Lupon, Davao 
Oriental with an area of 490 hectares for purposes of seed production.  The lease is for terms of 
up to three (3) years, at an average price of Php30,000.00 per hectare per season.  The existing 
lease contracts will expire by 2018 but are renewable subject to renegotiation. The Company also 
leases warehouses in Talavera, Nueva Ecija with a total area of 8,600 square meters (sqm) at an 
average leasing rate of Php62 per sqm renewable every six (6) months subject to renegotiation. 
 
Future Acquisition 
 
The Company is presently negotiating to acquire properties in Northern Luzon and Mindanao for 
purposes of expansion of its seed and rice production and construction of warehouses. 
Acquisition of said properties will be funded through existing internally-generated funds. 
 
INSURANCE 
 
The Company has sufficient insurance coverage that is required by Philippine regulations for real 
and personal property. Subject to the customary deductibles and exclusions, the Company’s 
insurance policy include coverage for, among other things, buildings, improvements, machinery 
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and equipment, furniture, fixture, fittings and motor vehicles against damage from fire and natural 
perils, machinery breakdown, third-party liability to the public and construction works.  
 
 
LEGAL PROCEEDINGS 
 
There are no material legal proceedings, pending or threatened against the Company, its 
subsidiary or affiliates, or in which the properties of the Company, its subsidiary or affiliates are 
the subject thereof.  The existing legal proceedings involve labor disputes, the adverse decision 
of which would not have any material impact on the Company and its financial condition. 
 

 
MARKET INFORMATION 
 
The Company’s shares are not registered and publicly traded.  There has also been no recent 
transfer of the common shares of the Company which would provide a price information of such 
shares. The common shares are not subject to outstanding options or warrants to purchase, or 
securities convertible into common shares.  
 
No stockholder shall have a right to purchase or subscribe to any additional share of the capital 
stock of the Company whether such shares of capital stock are now or hereafter authorized, 
whether or not such stock is convertible into or exchangeable for any stock of the Company or of 
any other class, and whether out of the number of shares authorized by the Articles of 
Incorporation of the Company as originally filed, or by any amendment thereof, or out of shares 
of the capital stock of any class of the Company acquired by it after the issue thereof; nor shall 
any holder of any such stock of any class, as such holder, have any right to purchase or subscribe 
for any obligation which the Company may issue or sell that shall be convertible into, or 
exchangeable for, any shares of the capital stock of any class of the Company or to which shall 
be attached or appertain any warrant or warrants or any instrument or instruments that shall confer 
upon the owner of such obligation, warrant or instrument the right to subscribe for, or to purchase 
from the Company, any shares of its capital stock of any class.  
 
The Board of Directors may, from time to time, grant stock options, issue warrants or enter into 
stock purchase or similar agreements for purposes necessary or desirable for the Company and 
allocate, sell or otherwise transfer, convey or dispose of shares of stock of the Company of a 
class or classes and to such persons or entities to be determined by the Board of Directors 
including, but not limited, to employees, officers and directors of the Company.  
 
DIVIDEND POLICY 
 
The Company’s board of directors is authorized to declare cash or stock dividends or a 
combination thereof.  A cash dividend declaration requires the approval of the Board and no 
shareholder approval is necessary.  A stock dividend declaration requires the approval of the 
Board and shareholders representing at least two-thirds of the Company’s outstanding capital 
stock.  Holders of outstanding shares on a dividend record date for such shares will be entitled to 
the full dividend declared without regard to any subsequent transfer of shares. 
 
Under the Corporation Code, the Company may not make any distribution of dividends other than 
out of its unrestricted retained earnings. 
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Each holder of a common share is entitled to such dividends as may be declared in accordance 
with the Company’s dividend policy.  The Company’s current dividend policy entitles holders of 
common shares to receive dividends based on the recommendation of the board of directors.  
Such recommendation will take into consideration factors such as operating expenses, 
implementation of business plans, and working capital among other factors. 
 
As a policy, the Company intends to declare at least 5% of its prior year’s net income as dividends, 
whether in stock or in cash, subject to statutory limitations and/or creditor restrictions. 
 
Dividend History for the last three (3) years 
 
2012 
 
For the year 2012, the Board of Directors on March 12, 2012 approved the declaration of 
270,000,000 common shares as stock dividends with a par value of Php1.00 per share.   
 
2013, 2014, 2015 
 
The Company has not declared dividends from Fiscal Year 2013 to 2015. 

 
RECENT ISSUANCE OF EXEMPT OR UNREGISTERED SECURITIES 
 
The Company has not issued any exempt or unregistered securities in the last 3 years. 
 
DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT 
 

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for over-all management and direction of the 
Company. The Board meets to review and monitor the Company’s future plans. The Company 
has seven (7) directors.  
 
The table below sets forth each member of the Company’s Board elected during the most recent 
annual stockholder’s meeting and are to serve until the next annual stockholders’ meeting or until 
their successors have been duly elected and qualified. 
 

Name Designation 

Henry Lim Bon Liong Chairman/President and CEO 

Joseph Lim Bon Huan Director 

Gerry Lim Bon Hiong Director/Executive Vice President and CFO 

Ruben Lim Bon Siong Director 

Evelyn Lim Director 

Pete Nicomedes Prado  Independent Director 

Gregorio Pio P. Catapang Jr. Independent Director 

Christine P. Base Corporate Secretary 

 
Henry Lim Bon Liong, 64, Filipino, is the Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer of the 
Company since its inception. He is currently the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of Sterling 
Paper Products Enterprises, Inc., Central Book Store, Inc., Expressions Stationery Shop Inc., S.P. 
Properties, Inc., and Straight Lines International, Inc.  He is also a Director of the Philippine 
Stationers Association, Inc. and of the Philippine School Pad & Notebook Manufacturers 
Association, Chairman of the Agriculture Committee of the Philippine Chamber of Commerce & 
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Industry, Inc., and a Vice President and Board Member of the Federation of Filipino-Chinese 
Chamber of Commerce & Industry. He was formerly the President of the Philippine Stationers 
Association, Inc. in 1995 and of the Philippine School Pad & Notebook Manufacturers Association 
in 2000, the Chairman of the Food Security Committee of the Philippine Chamber of Commerce 
& Industry, Inc. in 2006, and the executive Director & Vice Chairman of the External Affairs 
Committee of the Federation of Filipino-Chinese Chamber of Commerce & Industry in 1999.  Mr. 
Lim graduated from the University of the Philippines with a Bachelor of Science degree in 
Mechanical Engineering in 1972. He attended the Strategic Business Economics Program at the 
University of Asia and the Pacific in 1992 and the Executive Education Program – 
Owner/President Management Program at the Harvard Business School from 2003 - 2005.   
 
Joseph Lim Bon Huan, 62, Filipino, is a Director of the Company since its inception. He is 
currently the President and Chief Operating Officer of Sterling Paper Products Enterprises, Inc., 
SP Properties, Inc., Central Bookstore Inc., and Straight Lines International, Inc, President of 
Expressions Stationery Shop, and Vice President of QCABI.  He is also in the Board of Trustees 
of Ai-Hu Foundation Incorporated and is a Board Member in the Federation of Filipino-Chinese 
Chamber of Commerce & Industry, Inc.  He was formerly the Executive Director of the Federation 
of Filipino-Chinese Chamber of Commerce & Industry, Inc. from 2005 to 2009, the President of 
Ai Hu Foundation Incorporated from 2003 to 2010 and of Bulacan Commercial & Industrial 
Association, Inc from 2004 to 2004.  He completed subjects leading to a Bachelor of Science 
degree in Electrical Engineering from the University of the Philippines. 
 
Gerry Lim Bon Hiong, 55, Filipino, has been a Director since the Company’s inception and is 
currently the Executive Vice President and CFO of the Company. He is currently the President of 
Sterling Global Call Center Inc., the Executive Vice President of Sterling Paper Products 
Enterprises, Inc., Treasurer of SP Properties, Inc. and Vice President for Marketing of Straight 
Lines International, Inc.  Mr. Lim graduated from the University of Santo Tomas with a Bachelor 
of Science degree in Business Administration, Major in Marketing in 1981.  

 
Ruben Lim Bon Siong, 52, Filipino, is a Director of the Company since its inception. By 
profession, Mr. Ruben Lim Bon Siong is a Doctor of Medicine, specializing in Opthalmology.  He 
is currently serving as a Director in the International Eye Institute of St. Luke’s Medical Center, as 
Chair of St. Luke’s College of Medicine of the Deparment of Opthalmology, as a Board Memberof 
the Philippine Board of Opthalmology, as a Senior Consultant in the Allied Opthalmic Consultants, 
as Vice President in the Philippine Academy of Opthalmology and and as a Trustee in the Eye 
Bank Foundation of the Philippines and the Hope in Sight Foundation.  Mr. Ruben Lim Bon Siong 
is also concurrently a part time Clinical Associate Professor in the College of Medicine of the 
University of the Philippines and a Medical Specialist III in the Philippine General Hospital.  Mr. 
Ruben Lim Bon Siong graduated cum laude with a degree in Biology in 1984 and as a Doctor of 
Medicine in 1989 from the University of the Philippines.  He then studied Cornea, External Disease 
and Refractive Surgery from the Barnes-Jewish Hospital Washington University School of 
Medicine in St. Louis, Missouri, USA and Dacryology in the Centro Especial Hospital Ramon y 
Cajal, Unibersidad de Alcala de Heneras in Madrid, Spain in 1994.  This was followed by studies 
in Cornea and External Diseases in the University of the Philippines in 1995. 
 
Evelyn Co Lim, 44, Filipino, is a Director of the Company since its inception. She is currently the 
Assistant Vice President for Purchasing of Sterling Paper Products Enterprises, Inc. and of 
Central Bookstore, Inc.  She was previously the AVP of Purchasing of SL Agritech Corporation 
from 2008 to 2010 and the AVP of Purchasing of Central Bookstore, Inc. from 1996 to 2006.  Ms. 
Evelyn Lim graduated from the College of the Holy Spirit with a Bachelor of Science degree in 
Marketing in 1993.  
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Pete Nicomedes Prado, 67, Filipino, is a non-executive director of the Company since June 1, 
2010. He is currently the Chairman and CEO of Kifil International Inc. (Phils.), Churn Properties, 
LLC (Georgia, USA) and Southeast Country Bank, the Chairman and President of Pratrium 
Holdings, N.A. Inc. (USA), the Chairman of Pratrium Holdings Inc. (Phils.) and President of 
Barnston Herbs International, Inc. (Phils.)  Mr. Prado previously served as the Secretary of the 
Department of Transportation and Communication from 1990 to 1992, as Chairman of the Board 
of the Manila International Airport Authority from 1990 to 1992 and the Philippine National 
Railways, as the Chairman and General Manager of the Project Management Office from 1987 
to 1990, the Chairman of the Philippine Ports Authority from 1990 to 1992, and as a Director in 
the United Nations Development Program 1973 to 1990.  Mr. Prado received his Doctor of 
Humanities from the University of Baguio in 1990, Master’s Degree in Environmental Planning 
from the University of the Philippines in 1971, Postgraduate diploma in Intermodal Transportation 
system from the United Nations Center for Regional Development in Japan in 1973, Bachelor of 
Arts degree from the Ateneo de Manila University, and an Associate of Arts degree from San Jose 
Seminary in 1967. 
 
Gregorio Pio P. Catapang Jr., 56, Filipino, is an Independent Director of the Company. He is a 
member of the board of directors of Bases Conversion and Development Authority. Previously, 
he served as the 45th Chief of Staff of the Armed Forces of the Philippines, Chairman of the Board 
of Armed Forces and Police Savings and Loan Association, Armed Forces and Police Mutual 
Benefit Association, Inc., and Armed Forces of the Philippines Retirement and Separation Benefit 
System. 
 
Christine P. Base, 45, Filipino, is the Corporate Secretary of the Company since July 2010. She 
is currently a Corporate and Tax Lawyer at Pacis and Reyes, Attorneys and the Managing Director 
of Legisforum, Inc. She is a director and/or corporate secretary of several private corporations. 
She was an Auditor and then Tax Lawyer of Sycip, Gorres, Velayo & Co. She is a graduate of 
Ateneo De Manila University School of Law with a degree of Juris Doctor. Ms. Base is also a 
Certified Public Accountant. She graduated from De La Salle University with a Bachelor of 
Science degree of Commerce major in Accounting. 
 
Key Officers 
 

Name Position 

Zhang Zhao Dong Executive Vice President - Research and Development 

Catalina B.Galura Senior Vice President  

Dr. Noel Mamicpic Vice President for Seed Quality Control 

Dr. Weijin Xu Vice President- International Business Development 

Emanuel Cendana Vice President for Rice Division Sales 

Zhang Zhicheng General Manager – Seed Production 

 
Zhang Zhao Dong, 63, Chinese, is the Executive Vice President of Research and Development 
of the Company since its inception, .Mr Zhang graduated from Hunan Agricultural University with 
a Bachelor of Science degree in Agriculture in 1978. Before joining SLAC, he was the Vice 
Director and Senior Scientist of China National Hybrid Rice Research and Development Center. 
He was a lecturer of Lingling Agricultural School, Vice President of Hunan Rice Research Institute 
and President of Rice Foundation Seed Farm of Hunan Rice Research Institute.  
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Catalina B. Galura, 60, Filipino, is a Senior Vice President of the Company since June 16, 2005. 
Prior to joining SLAC, she was the Regional Finance Manager and Business Analyst, Asia of PPG 
Coatings, (Malaysia) Sdn Berhad / PPG Industries (Singapore) Pte., Ltd from 1999 to 2002 and 
the Regional Finance Manager for Asia of ICI Paints (Asia Pacific) Pte. Ltd. From 1998 to 1999.  
Ms. Galura graduated with a Bachelor’s degree in Commerce major in Accounting from La 
Consolacion College in 1976 and a Master’s degree in Business Management from the University 
of the Philippines in 1995. She is a Certified Public Accountant since 1977. 
 
Dr. Weijin Xu, 50, Chinese, has been the Vice President of International SalesSales of the 
Company since 2003.  Dr. Xu was previously the Chief Consultant of BISI Indonesia until 2002 
and a Project Scientist in the International Rice Research Institute until 2001.  He has received 
training from the Department of Agriculture, Philippines on Plant seed testing and quality control 
in 2004.He graduated with a Bachelor of Science degree in Agronomy from the Wannan 
Agricultural College in Anhui, China in 1986, and a Master of Science in Plant Breeding and 
Genetics from the Kunnan Agricultural University in Kunming, China in in 1989, and a Doctor of 
Philosophy in Plant Breeding and Bio Chemistry from the University of the Philippines in 1999. 
 
Dr. Noel Mamicpic, 79, Filipino, is Vice President for Seed Quality Control of the Company since 
October 1, 2002. Dr. Mamicpic served as Dean of the Graduate School at the University of the 
Philippines in Los Banos in 1990-1993. He was a Technical Consultant with the Philippine Rice 
Research Institute, Department of Agriculture in Nueva Ecija from January to September 2002 
and Director of the Asia and Pacific Seed Association, Bangkok, Thailand from 1995- 2001 He 
graduated from the University of the Philippines, Los Baños with a Bachelor’s degree in 
Agriculture major in Agronomy in 1957. He undertook a Master of Science degree in Seed 
Technology from Mississippi State University in the USA, and a Doctor of Philosophy in Field 
Crop Science and Seed Technology from Cornell University in 1970. 
 
Emanuel Cendana, 58, Filipino, is the Vice President of Sales for the Rice Division of the 
Company. He also serves as a consultant for sales management and training in RMP Consultancy 
and CBB Consultancy. Previously, he held senior positions in the sales division of the following 
companies: Henkel Philippines, CDO Foodsphere, Sterling Tobacco Corporation, Pacific Royal 
Bottling Corp., Jaka Foods Processing Corp., and Holland Pacific Paper. 
 
Zhang Zhicheng, 35, Chinese, is the General Manager of the Seed Production of the Company 
has been with the Company since 2004. His father is Zhang Zhaodong. He was previously a 
Research & development Manager in the China National Hybrid Rice R&D Center in 2003.Mr. 
Zhang graduated from Hunan Agriculture University with a Bachelor of Science degree in 
Agriculture Science in 2002.  He trained directly under Yuan Longping, the Father of Hybrid Rice 
from 2001 to2002. 
 
Significant Employee 

 
The business of the Company is not highly dependent on the services of any particular employee. 
 
The Company has a group of select researchers and scientists which have trained under Dr. Yuan 
Longping in China.  This group of researchers and scientists heads the Company’s research and 
development on hybrid rice seeds.  The researchers and scientists work as a team, thus the 
Company is not dependent on one specific researcher and/or scientist to develop its products.  In 
the future, the Company also intends to expand the number of its researchers and scientists to 
ensure the continuous development of products.    
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Family Relationships 
 
Directors Henry Lim Bon Liong, Joseph Lim Bon Huan, Gerry Lim Bon Hiong, Ruben Lim Bon 
Siong, and Evelyn Lim are siblings. 
 
Other than the foregoing, there are no family relationships either by consanguinity or affinity up to 
the 4th civil degree among the executive officers. 
 

Compensation of directors and executive officers 
 
Under the By-Laws of the Company, by resolution of the Board, each director, shall receive a 
reasonable per diem allowance for his attendance at each meeting of the Board. As 
compensation, the Board shall receive and allocate an amount of not more than ten percent (10%) 
of the net income before income tax of the Company during the preceding year. Such 
compensation shall be determined and apportioned among the directors in such manner as the 
Board may deem proper, subject to the approval of stockholders representing at least majority of 
the outstanding capital stock at a regular or special meeting of the stockholders. As of date, the 
directors have yet to pass a resolution fixing their per diem. 
 
There are no other arrangements for compensation either by way of payments for committee 
participation or special assignments. There are also no outstanding warrants or options held by 
the Company’s Chief Executive Officer, other officers and/or directors. 
 

INVOLVEMENT IN CERTAIN LEGAL PROCEEDINGS 
 
The Company is not aware of the occurrence during the past five (5) years of any of the following 
events that are material to an evaluation of the ability or integrity of any director or executive 
officer: 
 

1. Any bankruptcy petition filed by or against any business of a director, nominee for election 
as director, or executive officer who was a general partner or executive officer either at 
the time of the bankruptcy or within two years prior to that time; 
 

2. Any director, nominee for election as director, or executive officer being convicted by final 
judgment in a criminal proceeding, domestic or foreign, or being subject to a pending 
criminal proceeding, domestic or foreign, excluding traffic violations and other minor 
offenses; 

 
3. Any director, nominee for election as director, or executive officer being subject to any 

order, judgment, or decree, not subsequently reversed, suspended or vacated, of any 
court of competent jurisdiction, domestic or foreign, permanently or temporarily enjoining, 
barring, suspending or otherwise limiting his involvement in any type of business, 
securities, commodities or banking activities; and 

 
4. Any director, nominee for election as director, or executive officer being found by a 

domestic or foreign court of competent jurisdiction (in a civil action), the Commission or 
comparable foreign body, or a domestic or foreign exchange or other organized trading 
market or self-regulatory organization, to have violated a securities or commodities law or 
regulation, and the judgment has not been reversed, suspended, or vacated. 
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There are no material pending litigations or arbitration proceedings where the Company or any of 
its affiliates is a party and/or of which any of their property or the property used by them is the 
subject matter and no litigation or claim of material importance is known to the Directors pending 
or threatened against the Company wherein property used by the latter is the subject matter.   
 
EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION 
 
Information as to the aggregate compensation during the last two (2) fiscal years paid to the 
Company’s four (4) other most highly compensated executive officers, all other officers and the 
directors as a group are as follows: 
 
Key Management Personnel Compensation 
 
Key management personnel of the Company include all officers with rank of Vice-President for 
Quality Assurance and Senior Vice-President for Operations. 
 
The summary of compensation of key management personnel included under operating expenses 
account in the statements of comprehensive income follows: 
  
 2015 2014 2013 
Salaries and other short 
term employee benefits 

P 5,312,469469 P 4,829,517517 P 4,390,470470 

Pension expense 1,305,651651 1,068,260260 971,145145 

 P 6,618,120120 P 5,897,777777 P 5,361,615615 
 
Compensation 
 

SUMMARY COMPENSATION TABLE 
Annual Compensation 

(In thousands) 

 Compensation of Executive Officers and Directors (in thousand 
Pesos) 

Name and Principal 
Position 

Year (s) Salaries  
(in Php) 

Bonus Other Annual 
Compensation 

Total in Php 

Mr. Henry Lim Bon 
Liong  
 
Chairman, President, & 
Chief Executive Officer 

   
 

  

Mr. Gerry Lim Bon 
Hiong 
 
Executive Vice 
President & Chief 
Finance Officer 

     

Mr. Zhang Zhao Dong  
 
Senior Vice President 

     

Ms. Cathy Galura  
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Executive Vice 
President 

Mr.  Emmanuel 
Cendana  
 
Vice President-
Marketing 

     
 

Aggregate 
Compensation of the 
Officers and directors 
named 

2015    Php     5,525,000 

 2014    Php   5,410,476 

 2013    Php  5,301,406 

All other officers and 
directors unnamed 

2015    
Php 1,560,000 

 2014    Php 1,485,714 

 2013    Php 1,414,966 

      

Estimates in 2016     Php 7,793,500 

  
The estimated executive compensation of Officers and directors named for fiscal year 2016 is 
about Php 6,077,500. 
 
Currently, employees of the Company do not receive supplemental benefits or incentive 
arrangements. 
 
Pursuant to the Company’s Manual on Corporate Governance, the Company will establish a 
formal and transparent procedure for developing a policy on executive renumeration and for fixing 
the remuneration packages of corporate officers and directors wherein no officer or director will 
be allowed to decide his own renumeration.  A Compensation Committee will be created to 
provide oversight over renumeration of senior management and other key personnel to ensure 
that compensation is consistent with the Company’s culture, strategy and control environment, 
commensurate with corporate and individual performance.  It shall also ensure consistency of the 
Corporation’s policies and practices on the determination of the remuneration package. 
 
In addition, the Company may regularly undertake an internal audit of its policies and procedures 
to determine compliance with its Manual on Corporate Governance and adopted leading practices 
on good corporate governance, and necessity of improving the corporate governance of the 
company. The Directors of the Company also plan to attend corporate governance seminars. 
 
Compensation of Directors 
 
Under the By-Laws of the Company, by resolution of the Board, each director, shall receive a 
reasonable per diem allowance for his attendance at each meeting of the Board. As 
compensation, the Board shall receive and allocate an amount of not more than ten percent (10%) 
of the net income before income tax of the corporation during the preceding year. Such 
compensation shall be determined and apportioned among directors in such manner as the Board 
may proper, subject to the approval of stockholders representing at least majority of the 
outstanding capital stock at a regular or special meeting of the stockholders. As of date, the 
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directors have yet to pass a resolution fixing their per diem.  However, each director receives a 
per diem of P60,000 per meeting. 
 
There are no other arrangements for compensation either by way of payments for committee 
participation or special assignments. There are also no outstanding warrants or options held by 
the Company’s Chief Executive Officer, other officers and/or directors. 
 
Employee Contracts and termination of Employment and Charge-In-Control Assignments 
 
All key officers of the Company have employment contracts. The employment contracts can be 
terminated due to any of the following reasons: unsatisfactory performance or failure to meet 
reasonable standards set by the management, failure to comply with terms and conditions of the 
contract, and for any cause or causes allowed under Philippine laws after complying with the 
statutory requirements for such termination.  
 
Warrants and Options 
 
There are no outstanding warrants and options held by any of the Company’s directors and 
executive officers. 
 
None of the Company’s common shares are subject to outstanding warrants or options. 

 
Voting Trust Holders of 5% or More  
 
There is no voting trust arrangement executed among the holders of five percent (5%) or more of 
the issued and outstanding shares of common stock of the Company. 
 
Change in Control 
 
The Company’s Articles and By-laws do not contain any provision that will delay, deter or prevent 
a change in control of the Company. 
 
No change in control of the Company has occurred since incorporation. The Company has no 
knowledge of any existing arrangements that may result in a change in control of the Company 
 
Certain Relationships and Related Transactions 
  
The Company has not had any transaction in which any director, executive officer or stockholder 
of the Company or a member of the immediate family of any such director, executive officer or 
stockholder has had a direct or indirect material interest in the last two (2) years. 
 
SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN RECORD AND BENEFICIAL OWNERS 
 

Listed below are the top twenty (20) shareholders of each class and the number of shares held 
and the percentage of total shares outstanding held by each as of November 2, 2015: 
 

Title of Class Name of Beneficial Owner No. of Shares Percent   

Common Henry Lim Bon Liong 287,549,996 40.50% 

Common Joseph Lim Bon Huan 259,110,950 36.49% 

Common Gerry Lim Bon Hiong 113,600,000 16.00% 
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Common Ruben Lim Bon Siong 49,700,000 7.00% 

Common Evelyn Lim 39,050 0.01% 

Common Pete Nicomedes Prado 2 0.00% 

Common Jesus Tanchanco 2 0.00% 

Common Gregorio Pio P. Catapang Jr. 1 0.00% 

  --------------- ----------- 

TOTAL  710,000,001 100.00% 

 
The issuance of the STCPs shall have no effect on the amount and percentage of the present 
holdings of the Company’s common equity shareholders and will not result in foreign ownership 
of the common equity of the Company. 
 
Listed below are the persons known to the Company to be directly or indirectly the record or 
beneficial owner of more than five percent (5%) of the Company’s voting securities as of August 
31, 2015: 
 

Title of 
Class 

Name, Address of 
Record Owner & 

Relationship with the 
Company 

Name of 
Beneficial Owner 
and Relationship 
with the Record 

Owner 

Citizen-
ship 

No. of Shares Percentage   

Common Henry Lim Bon Liong 
Chairman and 
President 
111 Lapu-Lapu St., 
Kalookan City 
Chairman, President & 
CEO 

Same as the 
record owner 

Filipino 287,549,996 40.50% 

Common  Joseph Lim Bon Huan 
Director 
111 Lapu-Lapu St., 
Kalookan City 
Director 

Same as the 
record owner 

Filipino 259,110,950 36.49% 

Common Gerry Lim Bon Hiong 
Director and Treasurer 
111 Lapu-Lapu St., 
Kalookan City 
Director and Treasurer 

Same as the 
record owner 

Filipino 113,600,000 16.00% 

Common Ruben Lim Bon Siong 
Director 
111 Lapu-Lapu St., 
Kalookan City 
Director 

Same as the 
record owner 

Filipino 49,700,000 7.00% 

TOTAL    709,960,946 99.99% 
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Security Ownership of Directors and Management 
  
As of September 30, 2015, the Company’s directors and key officers own one hundred percent 
(100%) of the Company’s issued and outstanding shares of common stock as follows:  
 

Title of Class Name of Beneficial 
Owner 

Amount and 
Nature of 
Beneficial 
Ownership 

Citizen-
ship 

Percent of Class 

Common Henry Lim Bon Liong 
Chairman and President 
111 Lapu-Lapu St., 
Kalookan City 

287,549,996 
Same as the 
record owner 

Filipino 40.50% 

Common Joseph Lim Bon Huan 
Director 
111 Lapu-Lapu St., 
Kalookan City 

259,110,950 
Same as the 
record owner 

Filipino 36.49% 

Common Gerry Lim Bon Hiong 
Director and Treasurer 
111 Lapu-Lapu St., 
Kalookan City 

113,600,000 
Same as the 
record owner 

Filipino 16.00% 

Common Ruben Lim Bon Siong 
Director 
111 Lapu-Lapu St., 
Kalookan City 

49,700,000 
Same as the 
record owner 

Filipino 7.00% 

Common Evelyn Lim 
Director 
111 Lapu-Lapu St., 
Kalookan City 

39,050 
Same as the 
record owner 

Filipino 0.01% 

Common Pete Nicomedes Prado 
Independent Director 
 

2 
Same as the 
record owner 

Filipino 0.00% 

Common Gregorio Pio P. 
Catapang Jr. 
Independent Director 
 

1 
Same as the 
record owner 

Filipino 0.00% 

  --------------------  --------------------- 

TOTAL  710,000,001  100.00% 

 
There are no arrangements that will result in a change in control of the Company. 
 
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 
 
The Company adopted its Manual on Corporate Governance in compliance with the requirements 
of the Revised Code of Corporate Governance under SEC Memorandum Circular No. 6, series 
of 2009. Pursuant to good corporate governance, the Company has adopted a Fit and Proper 
Rule for the selection of corporate directors and officers.  The Board of Directors of the Company 
also passed a resolution which undertakes to allow the SEC to resolve conflicting issues regarding 
the selection of independent director/s. 
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Pursuant to the Company‘s Manual on Corporate Governance, the Board of Directors of the 
Company will create an Audit Committee and appoint board members thereto. 
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS OF 
FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF 

OPERATION 
 
The following management’s discussion and analysis of the Company’s financial condition and 
results of operations should be read in conjunction with the Company’s audited financial 
statements, including the related notes, contained in this Prospectus. This Prospectus contains 
forward-looking statements that are based largely on the Company’s current expectations and 
projections about future events and trends affecting its business and operations. The Company 
cautions investors that its business and financial performance is subject to substantive risks and 
uncertainties. The Company’s actual results may differ materially from those discussed in the 
forward-looking statements as a result of various factors, including, without limitation, those set 
out in “Risk Factors.” In evaluating the Company’s business, investors should carefully consider 
all of the information contained in “Risk Factors." 
 
The selected financial information set forth in the following table has been derived from the 
Company’s audited consolidated financial statements for the years ended May 31, 2015, 2014 
and 2013. 
 
The Company’s financial statements were audited by Sycip, Gorres, & Velayo for 2015, 2014 and 
2013, in accordance with PFRS. 
 
In Php Millions, except for per share amounts 

Audited As of and for the years ended May 31 

Income Statement Data: 2015 2014 2013 
Revenues……………………. 2,066 1,392 1,262 
Cost of Sales…………………            1,812                      1,190         1,081  
Net Profit…………………….. 254 201 181 
    
Balance Sheet Data:    
Current Assets………………. 3,499 2,442 1,944 
Noncurrent Assets………….. 1,447 1,224 1,079 
Total Assets…………………. 4,947 3,666 3,023 
Total Liabilities………………. 3,456 2,430 1,985 
Stockholders’ Equity………... 1,491 1,236 1,036 
    
Earnings per share- adjusted… 0.36 0.28 0.25 
Book Value per share………… 2.10 1.74 1.46 

 
OVERVIEW 
 
The increasing population coupled with the effect of climate change and the quest for rice 
sufficiency has forced the Government to focus on modern farming technology such as the use 
of hybrid rice seeds that has been proven to deliver high yield and good tasting quality rice.  Being 
the market leader in this segment, SLAC was able to post gains in its sales and net income for 
the last three fiscal years. From fiscal years 2012 to 2015, the Company’s net sales increased by 
an average rate of 32.9%. On the other hand, net income for the same three-year period 
significantly grew by an average rate of 28.0%.  
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As SLAC continues to expand its network of customers here and abroad, the Company expects 
to continually grow its revenues and profits. Its hybrid rice varieties continue to be the “farmer’s 
choice” and has gained market leadership with its competitors lagging behind.  Dona Maria rice 
brand dominates the premium rice market and started to gain consumer preference abroad.  Last 
year, the Company started exporting rice to the United States and the Middle East.   Its 
international seed business is growing as well as it enters new territories such as Myanmar, Papua 
New Guinea, Nigeria, Vietnam and other neighboring countries.  Management believes that 
growth opportunity for the Company is wide as it expands its operations beyond Philippine 
borders. 
 
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS 
 
Fiscal year ended May 31, 2015 compared to fiscal year ended May 31, 2014 
 
The Company posted an impressive growth of 48.5% in the fiscal year ended May 31, 2015 
compared to last year’s sales growth of 10.3%. The high percent growth has been due to the 
increased farmer’s preference for SL-8H seeds as a result of the bumper harvest of previous 
cropping seasons for farmers using SLAC varieties.  In addition, the Government promoted the 
use of hybrid rice seed technology as it realized its value in assisting the Government program 
for rice sufficiency.  As a result, SLAC posted net sales of ₱2.07 billion in fiscal year ending May 
31, 2015 as compared to ₱1.39 billion in fiscal year ending May 31, 2014.  
 
As a result of increased volume, Cost of Sales in fiscal year 2015 increased to ₱1.30 billion from 
₱0.72 billion in fiscal year 2014 or an increase of 74.8% or ₱0.54 billion.  
 
Total Operating Expenses increased by ₱60.7 million or 17.6% from ₱344.28 million in fiscal year 
2014 to ₱405.00 million in fiscal year 2015 mainly due to the increase in delivery expense and 
advertising and promotions expense. The increase in sales volume coupled with the high fuel cost 
has increased delivery cost by 128%. The Company incurred advertising and promotional 
expenses to increase awareness for Dona Maria premium rice products during the fiscal year 
ended May 31, 2015. 
 
For the fiscal year ended May 31, 2015, the Company recorded a fair value gain on agricultural 
produce of ₱19.28 million as compared to ₱55.54 million in fiscal year ended May 31, 2014 or a 
65.3% reduction. The reduction in gain in 2015 is due to the reduce level of seed inventories 
caused by high sales volume for the year. 
  
Finance cost amounted to ₱136.26 million and ₱117.43 million in fiscal years 2015 and 2014, 
respectively. The increase in Finance cost was due to increased working capital requirement to 
meet increasing sales demand. 
 
Other income increased by ₱2.29 million in fiscal year 2015 primarily attributable to foreign 
exchange gain incurred on US dollar denominated transactions. 
 
The Company is registered with the Board of Investment under the Investment Priority Plan and 
therefore enjoy income tax holidays.  Income tax expense reflected in the Income Statements are 
final tax incurred on interest income on savings deposit. 
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As a result of the foregoing, net income of ₱254.41 million for the fiscal year ended May 31, 2015 
registered a significant increase of 26.6% or ₱53.47 million compared to the previous fiscal year’s 
income of ₱200.9 million. 
 
Material Changes to the Company’s Audited Income Statement as of Fiscal Year ended 
May 31, 2015 compared to the Audited Income Statement as of Fiscal Year ended May 31, 
2014 (increase/decrease of 5% or more) 
 
53.2% increase in Net Sales 
Higher sales volume of SLAC’s hybrid rice seeds and premium rice products as the Company 
expanded its retail outlets to include SM Supervalue and Hypermart, Robinson Supermarket, 
Puregold, Unimart, Cash & Carry, Waltermart, Makati Supermart, Rustans, Shopwise, S&R, 
Landmark, Hi-Top for the premium rice and sold the hybrid rice seeds in new markets in other 
parts of the country (i.e., Mindoro and Davao in Mindanao).  Moreover, SLAC introduced and sold 
additional variants of the Dona Maria premium rice brand in the 2010 (i.e., Miponica, Jasponica 
Brown, and Jasponica plus).  
 
64. 08% increase in Operating expenses 
Higher personnel and advertising and promotional expenses resulting from higher sales of hybrid 
rice seeds and premium rice products in fiscal year 2015. 
 

-65.3% Decrease in Fair value gain on agricultural produce. 
Decrease in the inventory level of hybrid rice seeds due to high sales volume in the last 
DS2014-15 cropping season. 
 
16.0% increase in Finance cost 
Increase level of borrowings to support robust business activities. 
 

43.4% increase in Finance income 

Increase level of bank deposits. 
 

213.2% increase in Other Income (Charges) 
Favorable FX rate on dollar denominated transactions. 
 

90% decrease in Provision for final tax. 
Decrease in interest income 
 
Fiscal year ended May 31, 2014 compared to fiscal year ended May 31, 2013 
 
Company’s net sales increased to ₱1.39 billion in fiscal year 2014 from ₱1.26 billion in fiscal year 
2013. The modest growth was contributed by sustained demand for SLAC products.  The 
Company expanded its market coverage especially in the premium rice market as it penetrated 
key supermarkets and distributors.  Among these are SM, Robinsons and Puregold. Meanwhile, 
increased sales of the hybrid rice seeds was brought about by the expansion of the domestic 
market and export market. 
  
Cost of sales, as a percentage of net sales stood at 52.3% for the fiscal year 2014 compared with 
57.1% of fiscal year 2013. However, growth in total cost of sales reflected a minimal increase of 
1%.  Higher costs of fertilizer, seeds and agrichemicals contributed mainly to the increase in the 
said account. 
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Operating expenses likewise increased resulting from higher sales in fiscal year 2014. The 
Company hired additional manpower and engaged in a number of activities promoting the 
premium rice products. As such, personnel and advertising and promotional expenses were the 
major costs incurred by the Company 
 
For the fiscal year ended May 31, 2014, the Company recorded a fair value gain of ₱55.54 million 
compared to fiscal year 2013’s fair value loss of (₱3.63 million).). The huge reversal which 
resulted to a gain was mainly due to the higher seeds inventory in fiscal year 2014 as compared 
to fiscal year 2013. 
 
Finance costs posted an increase of ₱21.43 million or 22.3% in fiscal year 2014 compared to the 
fiscal year 2013 balance of ₱96.0 million. The increase in Finance cost was due to increased 
working capital requirement to meet increasing sales demand. 
 
Other charges increased by ₱.60 million or 138.2% from ₱0.4 million in fiscal year 2013 to ₱1.0 
million in fiscal year 2014 primarily attributable to the foreign exchange gain on US$ denominated 
transactions. 
  
As a result of the foregoing, net income for the fiscal year ended May 31, 2014 registered an 
increase of 11.3% or ₱20.4 million higher compared to the previous fiscal year’s net income of 
₱180.5 million. 
 
Material Changes to the Company’s Audited Income Statement as of Fiscal Year ended 
May 31, 2014 compared to the Audited Income Statement as of Fiscal Year ended May 31, 
2013 (increase/decrease of 5% or more) 
 
55.6% increase in Net Sales 
Higher sales volume of SLAC’s hybrid rice seeds and premium rice products as the Company 
expanded its retail outlets, to include SM Supervalue and Hypermart, Robinson Supermarket, 
Puregold, Unimart, Cash & Carry, Waltermart, Makati Supermart, Rustans, Shopwise, S&R, 
Landmark, Hi-Top, for the premium rice and sold the hybrid rice seeds in other parts of the country 
(i.e., Mindoro, other parts of Mindanao).  Moreover, SLAC introduced and sold additional variants 
of the Dona Maria premium rice brand in the 2014 (i.e., Miponica, Jasponica Brown, and 
Jasponica plus).  
 
30.2% increase in Operating expenses 
Higher personnel and advertising and promotional expenses resulting from higher sales of hybrid 
rice seeds and premium rice products in fiscal year 2014. 
  
11,631.5% increase in Fair value gain on agricultural produce 
Increase in the inventory level of hybrid rice seeds. 
 
22.3% increase in Finance cost 
Higher working capital requirements. 
  
59.8% increase in Finance income 
Increase in interest bearing bank deposits. 
 
138.2% increase in Other charges 
Foreign exchange loss incurred on US dollar denominated transactions   
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22,359.3% increase in Provision for final tax.  
High level of taxable income.  
 

FINANCIAL CONDITION 
 
Fiscal Year ended May 31, 2015 vs. Fiscal Year ended May 31, 2014 
 
Total assets grew by 34.9% from ₱3.67 billion in fiscal year ended May 31, 2014 to ₱4.95 billion 
in fiscal year ended May 31, 2015. 
 
Because of the higher sales generated in fiscal year 2015, the Company’s net trade receivables 
increased by ₱468.18 million or 46.0% from ₱1.02 billion in fiscal year 2014 to ₱1.49 billion in 
fiscal year 2015. In anticipation of higher sales, the Company’s net inventories went up by 30.9% 
or by ₱401.99 million from ₱1.30 billion in fiscal year 2014 to ₱1.70 billion in fiscal year 2015. 
Prepayments particularly prepaid lease and insurance increased by ₱4.02 million or 26.11% from 
₱15.39 million in fiscal year 2014 to ₱19.41 million in fiscal year 2015 due to contracts with 
landowners for hectare requirements for fiscal year 2015. The Company invested in a new milling 
plant and other equipment in fiscal year 2015 which led to the increase of the Property and 
equipment account to ₱520.49 million in fiscal year 2015 from ₱452.99 million in fiscal year 2014 
or an increase of 14.9% or ₱67.50 million. For the development and improvement of SLAC’s 
existing and commercially feasible hybrid rice seeds, the Company spent an additional ₱150.0 
million or 19.5% over fiscal year 2014’s ₱770.14 million. Security deposits in fiscal year 2015 
increased by ₱5.59 million from ₱1.50 million in fiscal year 2014 to ₱7.09 million in fiscal year 
2015. Such increase can be mainly attributed to the increase in guarantee deposits made with 
leasing companies in relation to acquisition of vehicles for the Company’s operations. 
 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses amounted to ₱158.03 million and ₱109.65 million as of 
fiscal years ending May 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively. The increase can be mainly attributed 
to the recognition of trade payables related to importation requirements for fiscal year 2015. The 
Company availed from its Trust Receipts (“TR”) facilities made available by local banks to procure 
imported and local raw materials to be used in the production. For fiscal year 2015, TR availments 
increased by 218.3% or an increase of ₱542.92 million from ₱248.68 million in fiscal year 2014 
to ₱791.60 million in fiscal year 2015. In addition, the Company borrowed on short-term basis 
from local banks to cover its working capital requirements. Short-term notes payable amounted 
to ₱2.49 billion in fiscal year 2015 or up by 21.0% over fiscal year 2014’s ₱2.06 billion. Prevailing 
annual market rates ranged from 6.0% to 5.0% and with maturity dates of three (3) months to one 
(1) year. The Company maintains an unfunded noncontributory defined benefit plan type of 
retirement plan which substantially covers all of its employees based on the minimum contribution 
required by law. The balance of this account in fiscal year 2015 stood at ₱13.22 million brought 
about by adjustments based on latest actuarial valuation conducted. Stockholders’ equity grew 
by 20.6% from fiscal year 2014’s balance of ₱1.24 billion to ₱1.49 billion in fiscal year 2015. The 
increase primarily due to profitable operations of the Company. 
 
Material Changes to the Company’s pro-forma Balance Sheet as of Fiscal year ended May 
31, 2015 compared to pro-forma Balance Sheet as of Fiscal year ended May 31, 2014 
(increase/decrease of 5% or more) 
 
171.4% increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents 
Higher cash position in preparation for increase palay purchases as harvest season is at its peak. 
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46.0% increase in Receivables - net 
Higher sales revenues generated by the Company’s Seeds Division  
 
30.9% increase in Inventories - net 
Build up of the palay inventory in anticipation of higher sales 
 
26.1% increase in Prepayments 
Increase in prepaid rent due to high level of production activity 
  
14.9% increase in Property and equipment - net 
Additional capital expenditures  
 
19.5% increase in Development costs - net 
Additional costs incurred to improve the SL16, SL7 and SL9 seed varieties. 
 
218.3% increase in Trust receipts payable  
Additional availments to fund the purchases of palay 
 
21.0% increase in Short-term notes payable 
Additional short-term borrowings to cover working capital requirements  
 
15.5% increase in Pension liability. 
Adjustments in connection with hiring of new employees and longevity of current employees. 
 
Fiscal Year ended May 31, 2014 vs. Fiscal Year ended May 31, 2013 
 
Total assets grew by 21.6%, from ₱3.02 billion in fiscal year 2013 to ₱3.67 billion in fiscal year 
2014. 
 
The Company utilized its excess cash in fiscal year 2014 to beef up its inventory of palay in 
anticipation of increase in sales which led to the decline of the cash position by 61.6% or ₱172.41 
million from ₱279.7 million in fiscal year 2013 to ₱107.3 million in fiscal year 2014. Net trade 
receivables increased to ₱1.02 billion in fiscal year 2014 from ₱0.86 billion in fiscal year 2013 due 
to higher sales.  Likewise, net inventories increased by 63.9% or ₱507.39 million in fiscal year 
2014 from ₱794.44 million in fiscal year 2013 to ₱1.30 billion in fiscal year 2014 attributable to 
the increase in the buy-back of dry season harvest which occurred at the end of the Company’s 
fiscal year. In anticipation for higher sales, the company increased the land area being used for 
production as more hectares were needed to address anticipated high sales volume. As such, 
prepayments, prepaid rent in particular increased by 18.4% or ₱2.40 million in fiscal year 2014 
from ₱13.0 million in fiscal year 2013 to ₱15.39 million in fiscal year 2014. Additional costs were 
incurred in connection with the improvements made seed varieties. As such, Net development 
costs increased by ₱210.52 million or 37.6% compared to fiscal year 2013’s ₱559.62 million. 
Security deposits showed minimal increase in fiscal year 2014. 
 
Accounts payable slightly declined to ₱109.65 million in fiscal year 2014 from ₱116.27 million in 
fiscal year 2013 or a decline by 5.7% primarily to less imports in fiscal year 2014. To fund partially 
the purchases of fertilizers and packaging materials, the Company availed of its Trust Receipts 
(“TR”) facilities made available by local banks. TRs payable accounts decreased by 16.4% or 
₱48.70 million, from ₱297.39 million in fiscal year 2013 to ₱248.68 million in fiscal year 2014. The 
Company borrowed on short-term basis to further supplement its working capital which led to an 
increase in the Short-term notes payable accounts to ₱2.06 billion or up by 31.8% over fiscal year 
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2013’s ₱1.56 billion. Pension liability amounted to ₱11.44 million and ₱6.37 million for fiscal years 
2014 and 2013, respectively. The increase was mainly due to the additional hiring of employees 
and the prolonged tenure of employees. Total equity stood at ₱1.24 billion in fiscal year 2014, an 
increase of 19.01% from ₱1.04 billion in fiscal year 2013 due to the ₱200.94 million net income 
recognized by the Company in fiscal year 2014.  
 

Material Changes to the Company’s pro-forma Balance Sheet as of Fiscal year ended May 
31, 2014 compared to pro-forma Balance Sheet as of Fiscal year ended May 31, 2013 
(increase/decrease of 5% or more) 
 
61.6% decline in Cash and Cash Equivalents 
Pre-termination of short term investments as funds were used to purchase palay for the dry 
season in anticipation of the projected increase in net sales for fiscal year 2015. 
 
18.7% increase in Receivables - net 
Higher sales revenues generated by the Company’s Seeds Division  
 
63.9% increase in Inventories - net 
Build up of the palay inventory in anticipation of higher sales 
 
18.4% increase in Prepayments 
Increase in prepaid rent due to high level of production activity 
  
11.40% decrease in Property and equipment - net 
Depreciation related decline.  
 
37.6% increase in Development costs - net 
Additional costs incurred to improve the SL16, SL7 and SL9 seed varieties. 
 
16.4% decrease in Trust receipts payable  
Payment related decline 
 
31.88% increase in Short-term notes payable 
Additional short-term borrowings to cover working capital requirements  
 
28.0% increase in Pension liability. 
Adjustments in connection with hiring of new employees and longevity of current employees. 
 

There are no other material changes in the Company’ financial position (5%) or more and 
condition that will warrant a more detailed discussion.  Further, there are no material events and 
uncertainties known to management that would impact or change reported financial information 
and condition of the Company. 
 
There are no known trends or demands, commitments, events or uncertainties that will result in 
or that are reasonably likely to result in increasing or decreasing the Company’s liquidity in any 
material way.  The Company does not anticipate having any cash flow or liquidity problems.  The 
Company is not in default or breach of any note, loan, lease or other indebtedness or financing 
arrangement requiring it to make payments. 
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There are no material off-balance transactions, arrangements, obligations (including contingent 
obligations), and other relationships of the Company with unconsolidated entities or other persons 
created during the reporting period. 
 
There are no material commitments for capital expenditures, events or uncertainties that have 
had or that are reasonably expected to have a material impact on the continuing operations of the 
Company. 
 
There are no material amounts affecting assets, liabilities, equity, net income or cash flows that 
are unusual in nature; neither are there changes in estimates of amounts reported in prior interim 
period of the current financial year.  
 
In Php Millions, except for per share amounts 

 Unaudited As of and for the first quarter ended Aug 31  

Income Statement Data: 2015 2014 2013 

Revenues……………………. 229 199 165 
Cost of Sales…………………  206 190 156 
Net Profit…………………….. 23 9 9 
      

Balance Sheet Data:     

Current Assets………………. 3,208 2,452 1,815 
Noncurrent Assets………….. 1,445 1,243 1,049 
Total Assets…………………. 4,653 3,695 2,864 
Total Liabilities………………. 3,139 2,449 1,819 
Stockholders’ Equity………... 1,514 1,246 1,045 

 
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS 

First Quarter ended August 31, 2015 compared to First Quarter August 31, 2014 

The Company registered a total sales level of ₱228.8 million—a 14.7% growth compared to last 
year’s quarter ending August 2014. The continuous demand on Doña Maria Rice Products gave 
a boost in sales for the quarter ending August 2015.  
 
Cost of sales, as a percentage of net sales stood at 57.5% for the quarter ending August 2015 
compared with 53.9% in quarter ending August 2014. The increase was attributed to higher seed 
production costs. 
 
Total Operating Expenses decreased by ₱17.2 million in 2015 or 32.0% from ₱53.8 million in the 
quarter ending August 2014. This reduction was attributed to timing differences of expenses 
especially in advertising and promotion. 
 
A 31.2% increase in finance costs was registered in the quarter ending August 2015 bringing total 
finance costs to ₱37.8 million. This was due to increased working capital requirements to meet 
the increasing sales demand. 
 
As a result of the foregoing, net profit increased to ₱22.8 million in the quarter ending August 
2015—a 141.2% growth from the quarter ending 2014 net profit of ₱9.5 million. 



 

Page 94 

 
Material Changes to the Company’s Unaudited Income Statement as of First Quarter ended 
August 31, 2015 compared to the Unaudited Income Statement as of First Quarter ended 
August 31, 2014 (increase/decrease of 5% or more) 
 
14.7% increase in Net Sales 
Higher sales volume of SLAC’s premium rice products, additional variants and expansion of its 
retail outlets. 
 
32.0% decrease in Operating expenses 
Minimal advertising and promotional activities  
 
31.2% increase in Finance cost 
Higher working capital requirements. 
 
First Quarter ended August 31, 2014 compared to First Quarter ended August 31, 2013 

The Company’s net sales increased to ₱199.5 million as compared to ₱164.9 million in the quarter 
ending August 2013. This increase was attributed to the increased market coverage of Doña 
Maria Premium Rice products.  
 
Cost of Sales increased by 25.9% from ₱85.4 million to ₱107.50 million. The increase was 
attributed to higher seed production costs. 
 
Total Operating Expenses increased by ₱8.3 million in quarter ending August 2015 or 18.0% 
higher from ₱45.43 million in the quarter ending August 2014. This was due to additional 
manpower needs as well as promotional and advertising activities during the period. 
 
Finance costs increased by 14.7% or ₱3.69 million from ₱25.14 million as the Company availed 
of loans to support higher working capital requirements.  
 
As a result of the foregoing, net profit for the quarter ending August 2014 was ₱23 million—an 
increase of 6.7% or ₱0.6 million higher than the quarter ending August 2015  net profit of ₱8.9 
million. 
 
Material Changes to the Company’s Unaudited Income Statement as of First Quarter ended 
August 31, 2014 compared to the Unaudited Income Statement as of First Quarter ended 
August 31, 2013 (increase/decrease of 5% or more) 
 
21% increase in Net Sales 
Higher sales volume of SLAC’s Doña Maria premium rice products as the Company expanded its 
market coverage.  
 
18.4% increase in Operating expenses 
Higher personnel and advertising expenses to promote Doña Maria premium rice products. 
 
14.7% increase in Finance cost 
Higher working capital requirements. 
 
557.9% increase in Finance income 
Increase in interest bearing bank deposits. 
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73.8% decrease in Other charges 
Foreign exchange income incurred on US dollar denominated transactions   
 
FINANCIAL CONDITION 
 
Fiscal year ended May 31, 2015 vs. First Quarter ended August 31, 2015 

Increase in receivables from ₱1.49 billion to ₱1.58 billion was brought about by high sales volume 
in the first quarter of 2016. 
 
Decrease in inventory from ₱1.70 billion to ₱1.57 billion was driven by higher sales turnover. 
 
Increase by ₱0.49 million from ₱19.4 million in prepayments resulted from additional contracts 
with landowners. 
 
Additional machineries caused the increase in property and equipment. 
 
Development cost declined by 0.3% or ₱2.66 million from ₱920.14 million due to amortization. 
 
Decrease in security deposits was caused by the termination of lease agreements amounting to 
₱0.37million from ₱7.1million.  
 
Settlement of company’s current obligations caused the decline of Accounts Payable, Trust  
Receipts and Short-term Notes Payable from ₱3.29 billion to ₱2.96 billion. 
 
Stockholders’ equity growth of 1.5% was due to the profitable operations of the Company. 
 
In effect, total assets declined by 5.95% from ₱4.95 billion at the end of May 2015 to ₱4.65 billion 
at the end of August 2015. 
 
Material Changes to the Company’s pro-forma Balance Sheet as of Fiscal Year ended May 
31, 2015 compared to pro-forma Balance Sheet as of First Quarter ended August 31, 2015 
(increase/decrease of 5% or more) 
 
87.8% decrease in Cash and Cash Equivalents 
Pre-termination of short term investments as funds were used to purchase palay for the dry 
season in anticipation of the projected increase in net sales. 
 
6.4% increase in Receivables - net 
Higher sales revenues generated by the Company  
 
7.72% decrease in Inventories - net 
High sales volume distributed  
 
2.5% increase in Prepayments 
Increase in prepaid rent due to high level of production activity 
 
28.0% decrease in Trust receipts payable  
Payment related decline 
 
4.12% decrease in Short-term notes payable 
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Payment related decline 
 

First Quarter ended August 31, 2015 vs. First Quarter ended August 31, 2014 

Total assets increased by 25.9% from ₱3.69 billion to ₱4.65 billion. This was driven by the 
following: 
 
Increase in receivables from ₱1.12 billion to ₱1.58 billion brought about by the higher sales 
generated; 
 
Increase in inventory from ₱1.19 billion to ₱1.57 billion due to anticipation of higher sales for fiscal 
year 2016; 
 
Increase in prepayments by ₱2.98 million from ₱16.9 million brought about by contracts with 
landowners for contract growing requirements in the quarter ending August 2015; 
 
Increase in property and equipment of 17.8% to ₱520.8 million due to the acquisition of new 
machineries and equipment to sustain market demand in 2015; 
 
Increase in development costs by 15.3% or ₱121.8 million from ₱795.7 million in support of the 
development and improvement of hybrid rice seeds; 
 
Increase in security deposits from ₱5.32 million to ₱6.71 million as the Company leased container 
vans for importation purposes. 
 
The increase in asset base was supported by a 28.2% increase in total liabilities and a 21.5% 
increase in stockholder’s equity. Total liabilities in the quarter ending August 2015 increased to 
₱3.1 billion. The following explains the foregoing increase in liabilities: 
 
Increase in the Company’s account payables by 20.5% to ₱165.2 million mainly attributed to 
import-related trade payables; 
 
Increase in Trust Receipts and Short-term notes payable by 28.7% from ₱2.30 billion to ₱2.96 
billion to fund the procurement of locally-sourced and imported materials andcover working capital 
requirements; 
 
Increase in pension liability by 15.5% from ₱11.4 million to ₱13.2 million brought by adjustments 
in the actuarial valuation based on the mandated minimum contribution. 
 
Stockholders’ equity growth of 21.5% to ₱1.5 billion was due to higher retained earnings which 
increased by 50.0% to ₱803.9 million in the quarter ending August 2015. 
 
Material Changes to the Company’s pro-forma Balance Sheet as of First Quarter ended 
August 31, 2015 compared to pro-forma Balance Sheet as of First Quarter ended August 
31, 2014 (increase/decrease of 5% or more) 
 
69.3% decrease in Cash and Cash Equivalents 
Pre-termination of short term investments as funds were used to purchase palay for the dry 
season in anticipation of the projected increase in net sales 
40.5% increase in Receivables - net 
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Higher sales revenues generated by the Company  
 
31.6% increase in Inventories - net 
Build-up of palay inventory in anticipation of higher sales 
 
17.6% increase in Prepayments 
Increase in prepaid rent due to higher production levels 
 
17.8% increase in property and equipment – net 
Additional capital expenditures 
 
15.3% increase development costs – net 
Additional costs incurred to develop seed varieties 
 
265.1% increase in Trust receipts payable  
Additional availments to fund the purchase of palay 
 
11.5% increase in Short-term notes payable 
Additional short term borrowings to cover working capital requirements 
 
15.5% increase in Pension liability 
Adjustment in connection with the hiring of new employees and the tenure of current employees 
 
14% increase in Capital Stock 
Declaration of stock dividends last June 10, 2015 amounting to ₱100.0 million by the Company’s 
Board of Directors  
 
First Quarter ended August 31, 2014 vs. First Quarter ended August 31, 2013  
 
Total assets grew by 29.0% from ₱2.86 billion of the quarter ending August 2013 to ₱3.69 billion 
for the quarter ending August 2014. This was driven by the following: 
 
Increase in receivables from ₱0.94 million to ₱1.13 billion  due to the higher sales volume; 
 
Increase in inventory of ₱478.7 million brought about by the higher volume of palay purchased 
from dry season harvest; 
 
Increase in prepayments by ₱1.8 million from ₱15.1million to ₱16.9 due to higher production 
levels; 
 
Increase in development cost by ₱238.8 million from ₱556.9 million to ₱795.7 million as a result 
of greater research and development activities of seed varieties; 
 
Increase in security deposits due to guarantee deposits made with a leasing company for vehicle 
acquisition which rose from ₱1.1 million to ₱5.3 million. 
 
The increase in asset base was supported by a 34.7% increase in total liabilities and a 19.2% 
increase in stockholder’s equity. Total liabilities in the quarter ending August 2014 increased to 
₱2.4 billion. The following explains the foregoing increase in liabilities: 
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Increase in short-term notes payable by 49.0% from ₱1.44 billion to ₱2.14 billion to supplement 
working capital requirements; 
 
Increase in pension liability by 27.9% from ₱8.9 million to ₱11.4 million due to additional hiring 
and prolonged tenure of employees. 
 
Meanwhile, accounts Payable decreased by 22.7% from ₱177.5 million to ₱137.1 million due to 
the settlement of current obligations; 
 
Stockholders’ equity growth of 19.2% to ₱1.2 billion was due to higher retained earnings which 
increased by 59.9% to ₱535.9 million in the quarter ending August 2014. 
 
Material Changes to the Company’s pro-forma Balance Sheet as of First Quarter ended 
August 31, 2014 compared to pro-forma Balance Sheet as of First Quarter ended August 
31, 2013 (increase/decrease of 5% or more) 
 
17.6% decrease in Cash and Cash Equivalents 
Pre-termination of short term investments as funds were used to purchase palay for the dry 
season and anticipation of the projected increase in net sales. 
 
19.1% increase in Receivables - net 
Higher sales revenues generated by the Company  
 
66.9% increase in Inventories - net 
Build-up of the palay inventory in anticipation of higher sales 
 
12.2% increase in Prepayments 
Increase in prepaid rent due to higher production levels 
 
9.9% decrease in Property and equipment - net 
Depreciation-related decline.  
 
42.9% increase in Development costs - net 
Additional costs incurred for the improvement of seed varieties. 
 
19.3% decrease in Trust receipts payable  
Payment-related decline 
 
49.0% increase in Short-term notes payable 
Additional short-term borrowings to cover working capital requirements  
 
28.0% increase in Pension liability. 
Adjustment in connection with hiring new employees and longevity of current employees 
 
LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES 
 
In the years 2013, 2014 and 2015, the Company’s primary source of liquidity was proceeds from 
sales and bank borrowings. Net cash from operating and financing activities were sufficient to 
cover the Company’s working capital and CAPEX requirements in the years 2013, 2014, and 
2015. In addition, the Company repaid some loans in all the periods under review. As of fiscal 
year ended May 31, 2015, the Company’s cash and cash equivalents totaled ₱291.2 million. 
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Cash Flows 
 
The following table sets forth information from the Company’s pro forma statements of cash flows 
for the period indicated: 
 

(amounts in ₱ millions) For the years ended May 31 
(audited) 

Cash Flow 2013 2014 2015 

Net cash provided by (used in) operating 
activities 

 21.15 (364.73) (469.43) 

Net cash provided by (used in) investing 
activities 

(379.80) (255.75) (323.08) 

Net cash provided by (used in) financing 
activities 

397.14 448.07 976.40 

 

(amounts in ₱ millions) For the first quarter ended Aug 31 
(unaudited) 

Cash Flow 2013 2014 2015 

Net cash provided by (used in) operating 
activities 

90.5 59.8 97.1 

Net cash provided by (used in) investing 
activities 

(1.7) (43.3) (28.4) 

Net cash provided by (used in) financing 
activities 

(228.5) (8.5) (324.5) 

 
Indebtedness 
 
To date, the Company has not been in default in paying interests and principal amortizations 
 
KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS 
 
The Company’s top five (5) key performance indicators are listed below: 
 

 As of and for the years ended May 31 

 2013 2014 2015 

Current Ratio¹ 0.98 1.01 1.02 
Debt to Equity Ratio² 1.92 1.97 2.32 
Earnings per Share³ 0.25 0.28 0.36 
Earnings before Interest and Taxes⁴ 277M 320M 389M 
Return on Equity⁵ 25.4% 28.3% 35.8% 

 
 

 As of and for the first quarter 
ended Aug 31 

 2013 2014 2015 

Current Ratio¹ 1.00 1.01 1.03 

Debt to Equity Ratio² 0.64 0.66 0.67 

Earnings per Share³ 0.01 0.01 0.03 
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Earnings before Interest and Taxes⁴ 34M 38M 61M 

Return on Equity⁵,6 0.9% 0.8% 1.5% 

 
Notes: 
 
(1) Current Assets/Current Liabilities 
(2) Bank Loans/Stockholder’s Equity 
(3) Net Income/Outstanding Shares 
(4) Net Income plus Interest Expenses and Provision for Income Tax 
(5) Net Income/Total Stockholders’ Equity  
(6) The computed return on equity on a quarterly basis is reflective of the first quarter net income 
only. It must be noted that the Company’s revenues are subject to seasonality and about 60% of 
the revenues for the year is historically realized in the second half of its fiscal year (December to 
May). Consequently, there is historically a very significant increase in the Company's net income 
during the same period compared to the prior period (June to November). 
 
These key indicators were chosen to provide Management with a measure of the Company’s 
financial strength (i.e., Current Ratio, Debt to Equity Ratio, and Earnings before Interest and 
Taxes) and the Company’s ability to maximize the value of its stockholders’ investment in the 
Company (i.e., Return on Equity, Earnings per Share). Current ratio shows the liquidity of the 
Company by measuring how much current assets it has over its current liabilities. The Debt to 
Equity Ratio indicates how much debt the Company has incurred for each amount of equity in the 
Company. A higher ratio means that the Company is more aggressive in its use of capital. 
Earnings per share shows how much the Company is earning for each share that is currently 
issued and outstanding. Earnings before interest and taxes indicates how much income the 
Company is generating from its entire operations before interest charges and taxes are deducted. 
Return on Equity shows how much profits the Company is making for each amount of equity 
invested in the Company. Likewise, these ratios are used to gauge the performance of the 
Company in the industry in which it operates. 
 

Critical Accounting Policies  
 
Cash and Cash Equivalents 
Cash includes cash on hand and in banks.  Cash equivalents are short-term, highly liquid 
investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash with original maturities of 
three (3) months or less from dates of placement and are subject to an insignificant risk of 
changes in value. 
 
Financial Instruments 
Financial assets within the scope of PAS 39, Financial Instruments: Recognition and 
Measurement, are classified as: (1) financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVPL);  
(2) available-for-sale (AFS) financial assets; (3) held-to-maturity (HTM) investments; and (4) loans 
and receivables. 
 
The classification of the financial assets depends on the purpose for which the financial assets 
were acquired.  Management determines the classification of its investments at initial recognition 
and, where allowed and appropriate, re-evaluates this designation at every reporting date.  The 
Company classifies its financial assets as loans and receivables. 
 
The Company classifies its financial liabilities as other financial liabilities. 
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Date of recognition 
The Company recognizes a financial asset or a financial liability in the balance sheet when it 
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.  Purchases or sales of financial 
assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame established by regulation or convention 
in the marketplace are recognized on the settlement date. 
 
Initial recognition of financial instruments 
All financial assets and financial liabilities are initially recognized at fair value.  Except for financial 
assets and liabilities at FVPL, the initial measurement of financial assets and liabilities includes 
transaction costs.  Management determines the classification at initial recognition and, where 
allowed and appropriate, re-evaluates such designation at every reporting date. 
 
Determination of fair value 
The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets at the balance sheet date is based 
on their quoted market price or dealer price quotations (bid price for long positions and ask price 
for short positions), without any deduction for transaction costs.  When current bid and asking 
prices are not available, the price of the most recent transaction provides evidence of the current 
fair value as long as there has not been a significant change in economic circumstances since 
the time of the transaction. 
 
For all other financial instruments not listed in an active market, the fair value is determined by 
using appropriate valuation techniques.  Valuation techniques include net present value 
techniques, comparison to similar instruments for which market observable prices exist, options 
pricing models, and other relevant valuation models. 
 
Day 1 profit 
Where the transaction price in a non-active market is different to the fair value from other 
observable current market transactions in the same instrument or based on a valuation technique 
whose variables include only data from observable market, the Company recognizes the 
difference between the transaction price and fair value (a Day-1 profit) in the statement of 
comprehensive income.  In cases where inputs to the valuation technique are not observable, the 
difference between the transaction price and model value is only recognized in the statement of 
income when the inputs become observable or when the instrument is derecognized.  For each 
transaction, the Company determines the appropriate method of recognizing the ‘Day-1’ profit 
amount. 
 
Loans and receivables 
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments 
that are not quoted in an active market other than those that the Company intends to sell in the 
short-term or that it has designated as at FVPL.  After initial measurement, loans and receivables 
are subsequently carried at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method less any 
allowance for impairment losses.  Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount 
or premium on acquisition and includes fees that are an integral part of the effective interest rates.  
Gains and losses are recognized in the statement of income when the loans and receivables are 
derecognized or impaired, as well as through the amortization process.  This accounting policy 
applies primarily to the balance sheet captions “Cash and cash equivalents”, “Receivables” and 
“Security deposits”. 
 
Other financial liabilities 
Issued financial instruments or their components, which are not classified or designated at FVPL 
are classified as other financial liabilities, where the substance of the contractual arrangement 
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results in the Company having an obligation either to deliver cash or another financial asset to 
the holder, or to satisfy the obligation other than by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or 
another financial asset for a fixed number of own equity shares.  Gains and losses are recognized 
under the other charges account in the statement of income. 
 
After initial measurement, other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost 
using the effective interest rate method.  Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any 
discount or premium on acquisition and fees that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. 
 
This accounting policy applies primarily to the Company’s accounts and other payables, trust 
receipts payable, short-term notes payable, current portion of long-term notes payable and long-
term notes payable. 
 
Impairment of Financial Assets 
The Company assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is objective evidence that a 
financial asset or group of financial assets is impaired.  A financial asset or a group of financial 
assets is deemed to be impaired if, and only if, there is objective evidence of impairment as a 
result of one or more events that has occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (an incurred 
‘loss event’) and that loss event (or events) has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of 
the financial asset or the group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.  Evidence of 
impairment may include indications that the borrower or a group of borrowers is experiencing 
significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or principal payments, the 
probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganization and where observable 
data indicate that there is measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such as 
changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate with defaults. 
 
Loans and receivables 
For loans and receivables carried at amortized cost, the Company first assesses whether 
objective evidence of impairment exists individually for financial assets that are individually 
significant, or collectively for financial assets that are not individually significant.  If the Company 
determines that no objective evidence of impairment exists for individually assessed financial 
asset, whether significant or not, it includes the asset in a group of financial assets with similar 
credit risk characteristics and collectively assesses for impairment.  Those characteristics are 
relevant to the estimation of future cash flows for groups of such assets by being indicative of the 
debtors’ ability to pay all amounts due according to the contractual terms of the assets being 
evaluated.  Assets that are individually assessed for impairment and for which an impairment loss 
is, or continues to be, recognized are not included in a collective assessment for impairment. 
 
If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been incurred, the amount of the loss 
is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the 
estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred).  The 
carrying amount of the asset is reduced through use of an allowance account and the amount of 
loss is charged to the statement of comprehensive income.  Interest income continues to be 
recognized based on the original effective interest rate of the asset.  Receivables, together with 
the associated allowance accounts, are written off when there is no realistic prospect of future 
recovery and all collateral has been realized.  If, in a subsequent year, the amount of the estimated 
impairment loss decreases because of an event occurring after the impairment was recognized, 
the previously recognized impairment loss is reversed.  Any subsequent reversal of an impairment 
loss is recognized in profit or loss, to the extent that the carrying value of the asset does not 
exceed its amortized cost at the reversal date. 
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For the purpose of a collective evaluation of impairment, financial assets are grouped on the basis 
of such credit risk characteristics as industry, past-due status and term. 
 
Future cash flows in a group of financial assets that are collectively evaluated for impairment are 
estimated on the basis of historical loss experience for assets with credit risk characteristics 
similar to those in the group.  Historical loss experience is adjusted on the basis of current 
observable data to reflect the effects of current conditions that did not affect the period on which 
the historical loss experience is based and to remove the effects of conditions in the historical 
period that do not exist currently.  The methodology and assumptions used for estimating future 
cash flows are reviewed regularly by the Company to reduce any differences between loss 
estimates and actual loss experience. 
 
Derecognition of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities 
 
Financial asset  
A financial asset (or, where applicable a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar 
financial assets) is derecognized when: 
 

 the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; 

 the Company retains the right to receive cash flows from the asset, but has assumed an 
obligation to pay them in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ 
arrangement; or 

 the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset and either (a) 
has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) has neither 
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has 
transferred control of the asset. 

 
Where the Company has transferred its right to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered 
into a pass-through arrangement, and has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the 
risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the asset is recognized to the 
extent of the Company’s continuing involvement in the asset.  Continuing involvement that takes 
the form of guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying 
amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Company could be 
required to repay. 
 
Where continuing involvement takes the form of a written and/or purchased option (including a 
cash settled option or similar provision) on the transferred asset, the extent of the Company’s 
continuing involvement is the amount of the transferred asset that the Company may repurchase, 
except that in the case of a written put option (including a cash settled option or similar provision) 
on an asset measured at fair value, the extent of the Company’s continuing involvement is limited 
to the lower of the fair value of the transferred asset and the option exercise price. 
 
 
Financial liability 
A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or 
cancelled or has expired.  Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the 
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially 
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability 
and the recognition of a new liability, and the difference in the respective carrying amounts is 
recognized in the statement of comprehensive income. 
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Offsetting of financial instruments 
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the balance 
sheet if, and only if, there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognized amounts 
and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability 
simultaneously.  This is not generally the case with master netting agreements, and the related 
assets and liabilities are presented gross in the balance sheet. 
 
Inventories 
Inventories carried at lower of cost or net realizable value 
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost or net realizable value (NRV).  NRV is the selling price 
in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of production, marketing and distribution.  
Cost is determined based on actual production cost using the weighted average method, while 
cost of materials, parts and supplies is determined using the moving average method.  Inventories 
carried at lower of cost or NRV relates to agrichemicals and milled rice. 
 
Inventories carried at fair value less estimated point-of-sale cost at point of harvest 
Inventories carried at fair value less estimated point-of-sale costs at point of harvest are the 
harvested product from the Company’s biological assets.  These are the Company’s agricultural 
produce.  A harvest occurs when product is either detached from the bearer biological asset or 
when the biological asset’s life processes cease.  The agricultural produce is initially measured 
at its fair value less estimated point-of-sale costs at point of harvest.  The fair value is determined 
by reference to current market transaction price.  The fair value resulting from initial measurement 
is subsequently used as cost if the product is subsequently sold.  Other costs such as drying and 
chemical treatment are included but only to the extent that these are incurred in bringing the 
agricultural produce to its intended location and condition.  Point-of-sale costs exclude transport 
and other costs necessary to get the agricultural produce to a market.  The agricultural produce 
recognized as inventories relates to parental line seed and hybrid rice seed. 
 
Biological Assets 
Biological assets are measured on initial recognition and at each balance sheet date at its fair 
value less estimated point-of-sale costs, except for biological assets where little biological 
transformation has taken place, or where fair value is not clearly determinable.  In the event of a 
fair value being not clearly determinable or impossible to measure reliably, biological assets are 
measured at cost, less impairment losses and depreciation. 
 
The biological assets of the Company are divided into germplasm and parental line growing crops. 
 
As there are neither observable market prices for these biological assets nor alternative estimates 
of fair values that are determined to be clearly reliable exist that give a fair expression of the fair 
values, germplasm crop and parental line crop are valued at cost which comprises its purchase 
price and any cost attributable in bringing the biological asset to its location and condition intended 
by the management.  If there are indications that the NRV of these crops are lower than cost, a 
write down is made. 
 
The gain or loss arising on initial recognition of agricultural produce at fair value less estimated 
point-of-sale costs is included in the profit for the period in which it arise.  A gain or loss arises on 
initial recognition of agricultural produce as a result of harvesting. 
 
If it becomes possible at a later date to measure the fair value of a biological asset reliably, the 
Company measures it at its fair value less estimated point-of-sale costs.  As the fiscal year ends 
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at May 31, there are no outstanding crops qualifying as biological assets as these have been 
harvested at that date. 
 
Property and Equipment 
Land is stated at cost less impairment in value.  Property and equipment is stated at cost less 
accumulated depreciation and amortization and accumulated impairment in value.  Such cost 
includes initial transaction cost, but excludes day to day servicing cost.  Where an obligation exist 
to restore a site to its former condition at the end of the assets useful life, the estimated cost of 
such restoration is added to the asset’s cost of acquisition and a corresponding provision is 
recognized.  Replacement or major inspection costs are capitalized if it is probable that future 
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the entity and the cost of the item can be 
reliably measured. 
 
Depreciation and amortization are computed on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful 
lives (EUL) of the individual property and equipment as follows:  
 

 Years 

Machinery and equipment 5-10 
Buildings and warehouse 5-10 
Office equipment 5 
Transportation equipment 5 
Tools and equipment 5 
Furniture and fixtures 2 

 
Expenses for repair of property and equipment, such as ongoing maintenance, are charged to 
operations.  The cost of acquisition or construction is capitalized if the expenses related to the 
asset will result in future economic benefits. 
 
The assets’ residual values, useful lives and depreciation and amortization method are reviewed 
at each balance sheet date and adjusted if appropriate.  Impairment reviews take place when 
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying values may not be recoverable.  
Impairment losses are recognized in the statement of comprehensive income. 
 
An item of property and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no further future 
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal.  Any gain or loss arising on derecognition 
of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the original cost 
of the asset) is included in the statement of comprehensive income in the year the asset is 
derecognized.  This is not applicable to items that still have a useful life but are currently classified 
as idle, depreciation and amortization continues for those items. 
 
Assets under construction are stated at cost.  These include costs of construction of property and 
equipment and other direct costs.  Assets under construction are not depreciated until such time 
as the relevant assets are completed and put into operational use. 
 
Research and Development Costs 
Research costs are expensed as incurred.  Development expenditure is carried forward when its 
future recoverability can be reasonably regarded as assured.  Following the initial recognition of 
the development expenditure, the cost model is applied requiring the asset to be carried at cost 
less accumulated amortization and impairment losses.   
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The carrying value of the development cost is reviewed for impairment at the end of each financial 
year or more frequently when an indicator of impairment arises during the reporting year indicating 
that the carrying values may not be recoverable. 
 
Hybrid Seeds Development Cost 
The Company capitalizes hybrid seed development costs when the asset can demonstrate that it 
will generate probable future economic benefits to the Company.  The assessment on whether 
future economic benefits will flow to the Company requires management to make significant 
judgment and assumption which may include the expected period of benefits, expected returns 
and future cash flows.  Costs incurred during the research phase are expense outright. 
 
Costs not qualifying capitalization are expensed as incurred. 
 
Amortization of the asset begins when the development of hybrid seeds are complete and 
available for use or sale.  Development costs are amortized on a straight-line basis over the EUL 
of the individual significant components of development costs of twenty (20) years.  During the 
period in which the asset is not yet in use, the hybrid seeds development cost is tested for 
impairment. 
 
Impairment of Non-financial Assets 
This accounting policy applies primarily to the Company’s property and equipment and 
development costs. 
 
The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may 
be impaired.  If any such indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is 
required, the Company makes an estimate of the asset’s recoverable amount.  An asset’s 
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s fair value less costs to 
sell and its value in use and is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not 
generate cash inflows that is largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets.   
 
Where the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered 
impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.  In assessing value in use, the estimated 
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects 
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset.   
 
Impairment losses of continuing operations are recognized in the statement of comprehensive 
income in those expense categories consistent with the function of the impaired asset. 
 
An assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is an indication that previously 
recognized impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased.  If such indication 
exists, the recoverable amount is estimated.  A previously recognized impairment loss is reversed 
only if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the asset’s recoverable 
amount since the last impairment loss was recognized.  If that is the case, the carrying amount of 
the asset is increased to its recoverable amount.  That increased amount cannot exceed the 
carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation and amortization, had no 
impairment loss been recognized for the asset in prior years.  Such reversal is recognized in the 
statement of comprehensive income unless the asset is carried at revalued amount, in which 
case, the reversal is treated as a revaluation increase.  After such reversal, the depreciation and 
amortization are adjusted in future periods to allocate the asset’s revised carrying amount, less 
any residual value, on a systematic basis over its remaining useful life. 
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Foreign Currency Transactions 
Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are recorded in Philippine Peso based on the 
exchange rate at the transaction date.  Foreign currency-denominated monetary assets and 
liabilities are translated to Philippine Peso at closing exchange rates prevailing at the balance 
sheet dates.  Foreign exchange differentials between the transaction rate and the rate at 
settlement date or balance sheet date of foreign currency-denominated monetary assets or 
liabilities are credited to or charged against current operations. 
 
Borrowing Costs 
Borrowing costs are generally expensed as incurred.  Interest on borrowed funds used to finance 
the construction of property and equipment to the extent incurred during the period of construction 
is capitalized as part of the cost of property and equipment.  The capitalization of these borrowing 
costs as part of the cost of property and equipment: (a) commences when the expenditures and 
borrowing costs are being incurred during the construction and related activities necessary to 
prepare the property for its intended use are in progress; and (b) ceases when substantially all 
the activities necessary to prepare the property and equipment for its intended use are complete.  
If the carrying amount of the asset exceeds its recoverable amount, an impairment loss is 
recorded. 
 
Capitalized borrowing cost is based on the applicable weighted average borrowing rate.  These 
costs are amortized using the straight-line method over the EUL of the property and equipment. 
 
Interest expense on loans is recognized using the effective interest rate method over the term of 
the loans. 
 
Income Tax 
Current tax 
Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods are measured at the amount 
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities.  The tax rates and tax laws used 
to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet 
date. 
 
Deferred tax 
Deferred tax is provided, using the balance sheet liability method, on all temporary differences, 
with certain exceptions, at balance sheet date between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and 
their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.  A deferred tax asset is recognized when 
it is probable that taxable income will be available to allow all or part of the deferred income tax 
asset to be utilized. 
 
Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, carry forward of 
unused tax credits from excess minimum corporate income tax (MCIT) and unused net operating 
loss carry over (NOLCO), to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against 
which the deductible temporary differences and the carry forward of unused tax credits from MCIT 
and unused NOLCO can be utilized. 
 
The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced 
to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all 
or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilized.  Unrecognized deferred tax assets are reassessed 
at each balance sheet date and are recognized to the extent that it has become probable that 
future taxable profit will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered. 
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Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the 
period when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates and tax laws that 
have been enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date. 
 
The Company does not recognize deferred taxes on temporary differences expected to reverse 
for periods where Income Tax Holiday (ITH) is in effect (Notes 26 and 29). 
 
 
Equity 
Capital stock is measured at par value for all shares issued.  When the Company issues shares 
in excess of par, the excess is recognized as additional paid-in capital (APIC).  Incremental costs 
incurred directly attributable to the issuance of new shares are treated as deduction from APIC. 
 
Retained earnings represent accumulated earnings of the Company less dividends declared. 
 
Provisions 
Provisions are recognized only when the Company has present obligation (legal or constructive) 
as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic 
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount 
of obligation.  Provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the 
current best estimate. 
 
Pension Cost 
Pension cost is actuarially determined using the projected unit credit method (PUC).  This method 
reflects services rendered by employees up to the date of valuation and incorporates assumptions 
concerning employees’ projected salaries.  Actuarial valuations are conducted with sufficient 
regularity, with option to accelerate when significant changes to underlying assumptions occur.  
Pension cost includes current service cost, interest cost, expected return on any plan assets, 
actuarial gains and losses, past service cost and the effect of any curtailment or settlement. 
 
The net pension liability recognized by the Company in respect of the defined benefit pension 
plan is the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the balance sheet date less the fair 
value of the plan assets, together with adjustments for unrecognized actuarial gains or losses and 
past service costs that shall be recognized in later periods.  The defined benefit obligation is 
calculated by an independent actuary using the PUC method.  The present value of the defined 
benefit obligation is determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows using risk-free 
interest rate of government bonds that have terms to maturity approximating the terms of the 
related pension liability. 
 
A portion of the actuarial gains and losses is recognized as income or expense if the cumulative 
unrecognized actuarial gains and losses at the end of the previous reporting period exceeded the 
greater of 10% of the present value of the defined benefit obligation or 10% of the fair value of 
the plan assets.  These gains and losses are recognized over the expected average remaining 
working lives of the employees participating in the plan. 
 
Leases 
Leases where the lessor retains substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the asset 
are classified as operating leases.  Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating an operating lease 
are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognized over the lease term.  
Operating lease payments are recognized as an expense in the statement of comprehensive 
income on a straight-line basis over the lease term. 
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Earnings Per Share (EPS) 
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing net income attributable to equity holders of the 
Company by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding during the year.  
Diluted EPS is computed by dividing net income for the year by the weighted average number of 
common shares issued and outstanding during the period after giving effect to assumed 
conversion of potential common shares. 
 
Operating Segment 
The Company’s operating businesses are organized and managed separately according to the 
nature of the products provided, with each segment representing a strategic business unit that 
offers different products and serves different markets.  Financial information on business 
segments is presented in Note 6 of the Company’s financial statements. 
 
Contingencies 
Contingent liabilities are not recognized in the financial statements.  These are disclosed unless 
the possibility of an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is remote.  Contingent 
assets are not recognized in the financial statements but disclosed when an inflow of economic 
benefits is probable. 
 
Events after Reporting Date 
Post year-end events that provide additional information about the Company’s position at the 
balance sheet date (adjusting events) are reflected in the financial statements.  Post year-end 
events that are non-adjusting events are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements, when 
material. 
 
Revenue Recognition 
Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the 
Company and the amount can be reliably measured.  Revenue is measured at the fair value of 
the consideration received, excluding discounts and other sales taxes.  The Company assesses 
its revenue arrangements against specific criteria in order to determine if it is acting as principal 
or agent.  The Company has concluded that it is acting as principal in all of its revenue 
agreements.  The following specific recognition criteria must also be met before revenue is 
recognized: 
 
Income from sale of products 
Sale is generally recognized upon delivery when the risks and rewards of ownership have passed 
to the buyer.  Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, 
net of any trade discounts and volume rebates. 
 
Interest 
Interest income is recognized as it accrues using the effective interest rate method. 
 
Cost of Sales 
Cost of sales includes the purchase price of the products sold, as well as costs that are directly 
attributable in bringing the merchandise to its intended condition and location.  These costs 
include the costs of direct labor and overhead costs.   
 
EXTERNAL AUDIT FEES AND SERVICES 
The financial statements of the Company for the periods ended May 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013 
appearing in this Prospectus have been audited by SyCip Gorres Velayo & Co., independent 
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auditor, as set forth in their report thereon appearing elsewhere herein. The partner-in-charge for 
the periods ended May 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013 is Mr. Michael Sabado, CPA.  There has been 
no resignation, dismissal or otherwise cessation of services of and by the independent auditor 
and there has yet been no rotation or change in the handling partner in compliance with SEC 
Memorandum Circular No. 8, series of 2003 and Rule 68(3)(b)(iv) of the Amended Implementing 
Rules and Regulations of the Securities Regulation Code. 
 
The aggregate professional fees for the independent auditor in the last two fiscal years amounted 
to Php 1,400,000.00 inclusive of taxes. 
 

Type of Service Aggregate Nature of Service 

2015 2014 

Audit and Audit Related 
Fees 

Php700,000 Php700,000 Audit of the financial 
statements 

Tax Fees None None None 

All Other Fees None None None 

Total External Audit Fees Php700,000 Php700,000  

 
The Board of Directors in consultation with Management review and approve the audit plan and 
scope of work for the above services and ensure that the rates are competitive as compared to 
the fees charged by other equally competent external auditors performing similar nature ad 
volume of activities. 
 
CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANT ON ACCOUNTING AND 
FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE 
 
The Company and SyCip Gorres Velayo & Co. have not had any disagreements with regard to 
any matter relating to accounting principles or practices, financial statement disclosures or 
auditing scope or procedures.  
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MATERIAL CONTRACTS & AGREEMENTS 
 

The Company’s principal contracts generally consist of Memorandum of Agreements with 
government agencies and different Corporations.  The Company also has existing financing 
agreements. Save for the contracts mentioned below, the Company is not a party to any contract 
of material importance and outside the usual course of business, and the Directors do not know 
of any such contract involving the Company. 
 

Date Name of Contract Parties Consideration 

Expiry 
Date/ Term 

of the 
contract 

     

September 14, 
2012 

Memorandum of Agreement  - This 
MOA is a precursor for a joint 
venture agreement between the 
parties  for the contract farming, 
processing, sale, and distribution of 
hybrid rice, and the production and 
promotion of hybrid seeds in 
Myanmar, using technology 
developed by SLAC 

IBTC Group of 
Companies 
and 
Capital Rice 
International 
Co. Ltd. 

  

March 3, 2015 Collaboration Agreement - This is a 
renewal contract for the supply of 
good genetically pure parental lines 
to be used for F1 seed production 
(AXR) at US$7.50/kg, and joint 
hybrid seed production. 

Bangladesh 
Agricultural 
Development 
Corporation 

Royalties shall 
be paid by 
BADC to 
SLAC in the 
amount of 
US$0.40/kg, 
computed on 
the basis of 
the amount of 
actual harvest 
of seed yield, 
to be paid by 
31 December 
of every year 
after the 
amount of 
royalty is 
finalized by 
both Parties. 

If within 3 
consecutive 
years, the 
total seed 
production 
is less than 
1200 ha., 
the Parties 
may agree 
to terminate 
the 
Agreement. 
 
Renewable 
upon 
mutual 
agreement 
of the 
Parties. 
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Dec. 8, 2014 Memorandum of Agreement on the 
Hybrid Rice Production in South 
Pacific Nations such as Papua New 
Guinea, Fiji, Samoa and Solomon 
Islands. 

Calmwind Pty 
Ltd. (CPL) 

SLAC will 
provide its 
high-yielding  
hybrid rice 
seeds to be 
planted in 
CPL’s rice 
fields in South 
Pacific nations. 
CPL in turn will 
provide 
exclusivity in 
favor of SLAC 
in the supply, 
sale and 
production of 
such high-
yielding  hybrid 
rice within 
CPL’s 
territorial and 
operational 
jurisdiction  in 
said South 
Pacific nations. 
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REGULATORY & ENVIRONMENTAL MATTERS 
 
Various government agencies in the Philippines regulate the different aspects of the Company’s 
business. 
 
The Consumer Act of the Philippines, the provisions of which are principally enforced by the 
Department of Trade and Industry, seeks to protect consumers against hazards to health and 
safety and against deceptive, unfair and unconscionable sales acts and practices; and provide 
information and education to facilitate sound choice and the proper exercise of rights by the 
consumer. 
 
This law imposes rules to regulate such matters as (i) consumer product and safety; (ii) the 
production, sale, distribution and advertisement of food, drugs, cosmetics and devices as well as 
substances hazardous to the consumer’s health and safety; (iii) fair, honest consumer 
transactions and consumer protection against deceptive, unfair and unconscionable sales acts or 
practices; (iv) practices relative to the use of weights and measures; (v) consumer product and 
service warranties; (vi) compulsory labeling, and fair packaging; (vii) liabilities for defective 
products and services; (viii) consumer protection against misleading advertisements and 
fraudulent sales promotion practices; and (ix) consumer credit transactions. 
 
The DA on the other hand is another government agency regulating the Company. It is 
responsible for the promotion of agricultural development by providing the policy framework, 
public investments, and support services. It is tasked to improve farm income and generate work 
opportunities for farmers and other rural workers.  DA is mandated to encourage people's 
participation in agricultural development through sectoral representation in agricultural policy-
making bodies so that the policies, plans and programs of the Department are formulated and 
executed to satisfy their needs. 
 
Considering that rice is a staple grain in Filipino households, the NFA is established to oversee 
agricultural companies. It is an agency under the Office of the President responsible for ensuring 
stability of rice supply and prices, with the end goal of ensuring food security. 
 
Under the SRC, the SEC has jurisdiction and supervision over all corporations, partnerships or 
associations that are grantees of primary franchises, license to do business or other secondary 
licenses. As the government agency regulating the Philippine securities market, the SEC issues 
regulations on the registration and regulation of securities exchanges, the securities market, 
securities trading, the licensing of securities brokers and dealers and reportorial requirements for 
publicly listed companies and the proper application of SRC provisions, as well as the Corporation 
Code, and certain other statutes. 
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 GENERAL CORPORATE INFORMATION 
 

INCORPORATION 
 
The Company is duly organized as a corporation under the laws of the Philippines and was 
registered with the SEC on September 11, 2000. 
 
ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION AND BY-LAWS 
 
The Articles of Incorporation of the Company was approved by the SEC on September 11, 2000.  
The latest amended Articles was approved by the SEC on July 9, 2012.  
 
The By-Laws of the Company was registered with the SEC on September 11, 2000 and was 
amended on September 28, 2010. 
 
PRIMARY PURPOSE 
 
Under the Articles, the Company’s primary purpose is to cultivate, grow, mill and/or process palay 
to rice grains, and/or to outsource the cultivation of rice, corn, grains, etc. through independent 
landowners and/or farmers by supplying seeds, farm implements, and other resources under 
acceptable offsetting and payback arrangements and/or otherwise engage in buy and sell either 
in retail or wholesale, export or import of rice, corn, grains of all kinds and other agricultural farm 
products, seeds, vegetables, horticultural growths, fertilizers, chemical or organic livestock of all 
kind and farm implement and machineries; and to conduct research and development for the 
production of aromatic super hybrid rice and cereals; to sell the technology/intellectual property 
rights of the product developed through own research and development. 
 
CORPORATE TERM 
 
The Company is authorized to exist for a term of 50 years from the date of its incorporation. This 
term may be renewed through an amendment to the Articles approved by the SEC. 
 
FISCAL YEAR 
 
The business year of the Company begins on the first day of June and ends on the last day of 
May of each year. 
 
APPROVALS 
 
The issue and sale of the Short Term Commercial Papers was duly authorized by resolutions of 
the Board of Directors of the Company passed on September 23, 2015.  
 
DOCUMENTS AVAILABLE FOR INSPECTION 
 
Copies of the Articles of Incorporation and By-laws are available for inspection at the principal 
office of the Company, during normal business hours on any day on which such office is open for 
business. Copies may also be inspected at the office of the SEC. 
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PHILIPPINE TAXATION 
 

Following is a general description of certain Philippine tax aspects of investment by prospective 
STCP Holders. This discussion is based upon Philippine tax laws, in particular the Tax Code, its 
implementing regulations and rulings in effect at the date of this Prospectus. Subsequent 
legislative, judicial or administrative changes or interpretations may be retroactive and could affect 
the tax consequences to the prospective STCP Holders. 
 
The tax treatment of a prospective STCP Holder may vary depending on such STCP Holder’s 
particular situation and certain prospective STCP Holders may be subject to special rules not 
discussed below. This summary does not purport to address all tax aspects that may be important 
to a prospective STCP Holder. 
 
This general description does not purport to be a comprehensive description of the Philippine tax 
aspects of investment in the STCPs and no information is provided regarding the tax aspects of 
acquiring, owning, holding or disposing the STCPs under applicable tax laws of other jurisdictions 
and the specific tax consequence in light of particular situations of acquiring, owning, holding and 
disposing the STCPs in such other jurisdictions. 
 
EACH PROSPECTIVE STCP HOLDER SHOULD CONSULT WITH HIS OWN TAX ADVISER 
AS TO THE PARTICULAR TAX CONSEQUENCES TO SUCH STCP HOLDER OF 
PURCHASING, OWNING AND DISPOSING OF THE STCPs, INCLUDING THE 
APPLICABILITY AND EFFECT OF ANY STATE, LOCAL AND NATIONAL TAX LAWS. 
 
As used in this section, the term “resident alien” refers to an individual whose residence is within 
the Philippines but who is not a citizen of the Philippines; a “non-resident alien” is an individual 
whose residence is not within the Philippines and who is not a citizen of the Philippines; a non-
resident alien who is actually within the Philippines for an aggregate period of more than 180 days 
during any calendar year is considered a “non-resident alien doing business in the Philippines”; 
otherwise, such non-resident alien who is actually within the Philippines for an aggregate period 
of 180 days or less during any calendar year is considered a “non-resident alien not doing 
business in the Philippines.” A “resident foreign corporation” is a foreign corporation engaged in 
trade or business within the Philippines; and a “non-resident foreign corporation” is a foreign 
corporation not engaged in trade or business within the Philippines.  The term “foreign” when 
applied to a corporation means a corporation which is not domestic while the term “domestic” 
when applied to a corporation means a corporation created or organized in the Philippines or 
under its laws. 
 
Taxation of Interest Income/Discount 
 
The STCPs will be, under current interpretation of the Tax Code, treated as, a deposit substitute 
instrument as such term is defined under the Tax Code. Interest income earned or yield or any 
other monetary benefit from the STCPs realized by the STCP Holders shall be taxed as described 
in the following sections. 
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Interest income/Discount earned by individuals 
 
As a general rule, interest income earned or yield or any other monetary benefit from the STCPs 
realized by individual citizens of the Philippines, resident aliens and non-resident aliens engaged 
in trade or business in the Philippines is subject to a final withholding tax at the rate of 20%.  
 
Transfers or assignments of the STCPs by the STCP Holders are subject to a final tax on the 
interest income already earned by the transferor STCP Holder which shall be borne by the STCP 
Holder.  
 
Interest income received by non-resident aliens not engaged in trade or business in the 
Philippines shall generally be subject to a final withholding tax of 25%. However, such tax rate 
may be reduced under an applicable tax treaty. 
 
Interest income/Discount earned by corporations 
 
 Interest income earned or yield or any other monetary benefit derived by domestic and resident 

foreign corporations from the STCPs shall be subject to a final withholding tax of 20% of such 
interest income.  
 
On the other hand, interest income received by a non-resident foreign corporation shall be subject 
to 30% final withholding tax. This rate may also be reduced under an applicable tax treaty.  
 
Interest income/Discount earned by trusts 
 
A trust is generally taxed in the same way as an individual pursuant to the Tax Code which 
provides that the tax imposed upon individuals shall apply to the income of any kind of property 
held in trust (except qualifying employee’s trust considered tax-exempt). Accordingly, since trusts 
are, for tax purposes, treated as an individual, interest income earned by trusts are likewise 
subject to the 20% final withholding tax.  
 
Tax-exempt persons 
 
All sums payable by the Issuer to tax-exempt persons shall be paid in full without deductions for 
taxes, duties, assessments, or government charges, subject to the submission to the Registrar 
by the STCP Holder claiming the exemption of reasonable evidence of such exemption. 
 
DOCUMENTARY STAMP TAXES 
 
The Tax Code imposes a documentary stamp tax on all debentures, certificates of indebtedness, 
due bills, bonds, loan agreements, deposit substitute debt instruments at the rate of P1.00 on 
every P200, or fractional part thereof, of the face value of such securities; Provided, that for such 
debt instruments with terms of less than one (1) year, the documentary stamp tax to be collected 
shall be of a proportional amount in accordance with the ratio of its term in number of days to 
three hundred sixty-five (365) days. The Company has undertaken to pay the documentary stamp 
tax on the issuance of the STCPs. 
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VALUE-ADDED TAX AND GROSS RECEIPTS TAX 
 
At issuance, no VAT shall be imposable upon the STCPs. Subsequent transfers shall similarly be 
free of VAT, unless the STCP Holder is a dealer in securities. In that instance, the STCP Holder 
shall be liable to pay 12% VAT on the gross income derived from the trading of the STCPs. 
 
Under Republic Act No. 9238, services rendered in the Philippines by, among others, banks, non-
bank financial intermediaries, quasi-banks, finance companies, and other financial intermediaries 
not performing quasi-banking functions (excluding insurance companies) are exempted from the 
coverage of the VAT. The exemption, which took effect retroactively on 1 January 2004, reverts 
to the application of the GRT regime on services rendered by banks, non-bank financial 
intermediaries, quasi-banks, finance companies, and other financial intermediaries not performing 
quasi-banking functions (excluding insurance companies). Rates of GRT shall be as follows: 
 

(1) Banks and Non-Bank Financial Intermediaries Performing Quasi-Banking 
Functions: 
(a) On interest, commission and discounts from lending activities as well as 

income from financial leasing, on the basis of the remaining maturities of 
instruments from which such receipts are derived: 

  Maturity period is five years or less – 5% 
  Maturity period is more than five years – 1% 
(b) On dividends and equity shares in net income of subsidiaries – 0% 
(c) On royalties, rentals of real or personal property, profits from exchange and 

all other items treated as gross income under the Tax Code – 7% 
(d) On net trading gains within the taxable year on foreign currency, debt 

securities, derivatives and other similar financial instruments – 7% 
 (2) Other Non-Bank Financial Intermediaries: 

(a) On interest, commission, discounts and all other items treated as gross 
income under the Tax Code – 5% 

(b) On interest, commission and discounts from lending activities as well as 
income from financial leasing, on the basis of the remaining maturities of 
instruments from which such receipts are derived: 

  Maturity period is five years or less – 5% 
  Maturity period is more than five years – 1% 

 
ESTATE AND DONOR’S TAX 
 
The transfer of the STCPs by a decedent to his heirs, whether or not such decedent was residing 
in the Philippines, will be subject to an estate tax which is levied on the net estate of the deceased 
at progressive rates ranging from 5% to 20% if the net estate is over P200,000.  
 
STCP Holders, whether or not citizens or residents of the Philippines, will be subject to donor’s 
tax upon the donation of the STCPs to strangers at a flat rate of 30% of the net gifts. A “stranger” 
is defined as any person who is not a brother, sister (whether by whole- or half-blood), spouse, 
ancestor and lineal descendant or relative by consanguinity in the collateral line within the fourth 
degree of relationship. A donation to a non-stranger will be subject to a donor’s tax at progressive 
rates ranging from 2% to 15% if the net gifts made during the calendar year exceed P100,000. 
 
The estate tax, as well as the donor’s tax in respect of the STCPs, shall not be collected if: (a) the 
deceased at the time of his death or donation was a citizen and resident of a foreign country 
which, at the time of his death or donation, did not impose a transfer tax of any character in respect 
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of intangible personal property of citizens of the Philippines not residing in that foreign country; or 
(b) the laws of the foreign country of which the deceased or the donor was a citizen and resident 
at the time of his death or donation allows a similar exemption from transfer or death taxes of 
every character or description in respect of intangible personal property owned by citizens of the 
Philippines not residing in that foreign country.  
 
TAXATION OUTSIDE THE PHILIPPINES 
 
The tax treatment of non-resident STCP Holders in jurisdictions outside the Philippines may vary 
depending on the tax laws applicable to such holder by reason of domicile or business activities 
and such holder’s particular situation. This Prospectus does not discuss the tax considerations 
on such non-resident holders under laws other than those of the Philippines. 


